DOCKET 04-1015-EL-CRS

GO F A\CZ

May 30, 2014

VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS

VIA PUCO ONLINE DOCKETING SYSTEM
Public Utilities Commission of Ohio
Docketing Division 13th Floor

180 East Broad Street

Columbus Ohio 43215-3793

RE: BIENNIAL LICENSE RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR RETAIL GENERATION PROVIDERS

AND POWER MARKETERS

CASE NO. 04-1015-EL-CRS

GDF SUEZ ENERGY RESOURCES NA, INC. CRES LICENSE NO. 04-118(1)

In accordance with the Chapter 4901:1-24 of the Ohio Administrative Code, Chapter 4901:1-21 of the
Ohio Administrative Code, and Section 4928.08 of the Ohio Revised Code, GDF Suez Energy Resources
NA, Inc. ("GDF Suez”) hereby submits its amended 2014 License Renewal Application for Retail
Generation Providers and Power Marketers. Enclosed please fine one (1) original and ten (10) copies of
the application of the public version with confidential information redacted. GDF Suez is submitting the
public version with confidential information redacted via on-line filing.

Also enclosed is our Motion for Protective Order executed by Ohio counsel. Under separate cover GDF
Suez is filing a copy of the confidential information, together with a copy of the Motion for Protective

Order.

If you have any questions regarding
naveen.rabie@gdfsuezna.com.

Respectfully submitted,

-

Naveen Rabie

Counsel

GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc.
1990 Post Oak Boulevard, Suite 1900
Houston, TX 77056
www.gdfsuezenergyresources.com

cC: Michael Palkowski
Financial Analysis, Utilities Department
Public Utilities Commission of Ohio
180 East Broad Street
Columbus OH 43215-3793
michael.palkowski@puc.state.oh.us

this filing, please contact me via email at



BEFORE
THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO

In the Matter of the Application of )
GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc. for )
Renewal of its Certification as a Retail Electric )
Service Provider ' )

Case No. 04-1015-EL-CRS

MOTION FOR PROTECTIVE ORDER

Now comes GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc. (“GDF”), seeking renewal of
its certification to provide retail generation and power marketer services and pursuant to Rule
4901-1-24(D) of the Ohio Administrative Code (“O.A.C.”) moves for a protective order to keep
financial exhibits (Exhibits C-4 and C-5) to its renewal application for certification confidential
and not part of the public record. The reasons underlying this motion are detailed in the attached
Memorandum in Support. Consistent with the requirements of the above cited Rule, three (3)
unredacted copies of the exhibits are submitted under seal.

Respectfully submitted,

ot

=

E. Brett Breitschwerdt (0082801)

McGuireWoods LLP

434 Fayetteville Street, Suite 2600

PO Box 27507 (27611)

Raleigh, North Carolina 27601

(919) 755-6563 Direct
bbreitschwerdi@mecguirewoods.com

Counsel for GDF Suez Energy Resources N4, Inc.



MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF
MOTION FOR PROTECTIVE ORDER

GDF requests that the information designated as confidential — Exhibits C-4 and C-5 —in
its Renewal Application for Certification as a Retail Electric Service Provider to provide retail
generation and power marketer services be protected from public disclosure. The information
for which protection is sought covers financial arrangements (C-4) and financial forecasts (C-5).
If released to the public, such information would harm GDF by providing its competitors with
proprietary information in what is designed by statute to be a competitive service.

Rule 4901-1-24(D) of the O.A.C provides that the Commission or certain designated
employees may issue an order which is necessary to protect the confidentiality of information
contained in documents filed with the Commission’s Docketing Division to the extent that state
or federal law prohibits the release of the information and where non-disclosure of the
information is not inconsistent with the purposes of Title 49 of the Revised Code. State law
recognizes the need to protect certain types of information which are the subject of this motion.
The non-disclosure of the information will not impair the purposes of Title 49. The Commission
and its Staff have full access to the information in order to fulfill its statutory obligations. No
purpose of Title 49 wouid be served by the public disclosure of the information.

The need to protect the designated information from public disclosure is clear, and there
is compelling legal authority supporting thle requested protective order. While the Commission
has often expressed its preference for open proceedings, the Commission also long ago
recognized its statutory ébligations with regard to trade secrets:

The Commission is of the opinion that the “public records™ statute
must also be read in pari materia with Section 1333.31, Revised
Code (“trade secrets” statute). The latter statute must be interpreted

as evincing the recognition, on the part of the General Assembly,
of the value of trade secret information.



In re: General Telephone Co., Case No. 81-383-TP-AIR (Entry, February 17, 1982). Likewise,

the Commission has facilitated the protection of trade secrets in its rules (O.A.C. § 4901-1-
24(A(7)).
The definition of a “trade secret” is set forth in the Uniform Trade Secrets Act;

“Trade secret” means information, including the whole or any
portion or phase of any scientific or technical information, design,
process, procedure, formula, patter, compilation, program, device,
method, technique, or improvement, or any business information
or plans, financial information or listing of names, addresses, or
telephone numbers, that satisfies both of the following:

(1) Tt derives independent economic value, actual or potential,
from not being generally known to, and not being readily
ascertainable by proper means by, other persons who can obtain
economic value from its disclosure or use.

(2) It is the subject of efforts that are reasonable under the
circumstances to maintain its secrecy.

R.C. § 1333.61(D). This definition clearly reflects the state policy favoring the protection of
trade secrets such as the financial information which is the subject of this motion.

Courts of other jurisdictions have held that not only does a public utilities commission
have the authority to protect the trade secrets of the companies subject to its jurisdiction, the

trade secrets statute creates a duty to protect them. New York Tel. Co. v, Pub. Serv, Comm.

N.Y., 56 N.Y. 2d 213 (1982). Indeed, for the Commission to do otherwise would be to negate
the protections the Ohio General Assembly has granted to all businesses, including public
utilities, and now the new entrants who will be providing power through the Uniform Trade
Secrets Act. This Commission has previously carried out its obligations in this regard in

numerous proceedings. See, e.g., Elyria Tel. Co., Case No. 8§9-965-TP-AEC (Finding and Order,

September 21, 1989); Ohio Bell Tel. Co., Case No. 89-718-TP-ATA (Finding and Order, May

31, 1989); Columbia Gas of Ohio, Inc,, Case No. 90-17-GA-GCR (Entry, August 17, 1990).




In Pyromatics, Inc. v: Petruziellg, 7 Ohio App. 3d 131, 134-135 (Cuyahoga County

1983), the Court of Appeals, citing Koch Engineering Co. v. Faulconer, 210 U.S.P.Q. 854, 861
(Kansas 1980), has delineated factors to be considered in recognizing a trade secret:

(1) The extent to which the information is known outside the

business, (2) the extent to which it is known to those inside the

business, i.e., by the employees, (3) the precautions taken by the

holder of the trade secret to guard the secrecy of the information,

(4) the savings effected and the value to the holder in having the

‘information as against competitors, (5) the amount of effort or

money expended in obtaining and developing the information, and

(6) the amount of time and expense it would take for others to

acquire and duplicate the information.
Applying these factors to the two financial exhibits GDF seeks to protect as they contain
confidential information, it is clear that a protective order should be granted.

Exhibits C-4 and C-5 contain confidential financial arrangements and financial forecasts.

Such sensitive financial information is generally not disclosed. Its disclosure could give
competitors an advantage that would hinder GDF’s ability to compete. Further, public disclosure

of this financial information would not assist the Commission in carrying out its duties under

retail electric supplier rules.



WHEREFORE, for the above reasons GDF requests the Commission to grant its motion
for a protective order and to maintain exhibits C-4 and C-5 of its Renewal Application for
Certification as a Retail Electric Service Provider under seal.

Respectfully submitted,

w2 v

E. Brett Breitschwerdt (0082801)
McGuireWoods LLP

434 Fayetteville Street, Suite 2600
PO Box 27507 (27611)

Raleigh, North Carolina 27601

(919) 755-6563 Direct
bbreitschwerdt@mcguirewoods.com

Counsel for GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc.



LIST OF EXHIBITS
FOR WHICH PROTECTION IS SOUGHT

EXHIBITS REASONS JUSTIFYING PROTECTION

C-4 (Financial Arrangements) These exhibits contain financial information.
Disclosure would give an undue advantage to

C-5 (Financial Forecasts) competitors and would hinder GDF’s ability to
compete,
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The Public Utitities Commission of Ohio

Renewal Instructions for Retail Electric Generation Providers and
Power Marketers

L Where to File: Renewal applications should be sent to: Public Utilities Commission of
Ohio, Docketing Division 13" Floor, 180 East Broad Street, Columbus Ohio 43215-3793.

11 What to File: Applicant must submit one original notarized application signed by a
principal officer and ten copies including all exhibits, affidavits, and other attachments. All
attachments, affidavits, and cxhibits should be clearly identified. For example, Exhibit A1l
should be marked “Exhibit A-11 “Corporate Structure.”” All pages should be numbered and
attached in a sequential order. VERY IMPORTANT: The renewal application_must be

docketed in the applicant’s original EL-CRS case number.

III. Renewal Application Form: The renewal application is available on the Commission’s
web site, www.puco.ohio.gov or direetly from the Commission at: Public Utilities Commission
of Ohio, Docketing Division 13" Floor, 180 East Broad Street, Columbus Ohio 43215-3793.

IV.  Confidentiality: If any of an applicant’s answers require the applicant to disclose what
the applicant believes to be privileged or confidential information not otherwisc available to the
public, the applicant should designate at each point in the application that the answer requires the
applicant to disclose privileged and confidential information. Applicant must fully support its
request to maintain confidentiality for the information it believes to be confidential or proprietary
in a motion for protective order filed pursuant to Rule 4901-1-24 of the Ohio Administrative
Code.

V. Commission Process for Certification Renewal: An application for renewal shall be
made on forms approved and supplied by the Commission. The applicant shall complete the
appropriate renewal form in its entirety and supply all required attachments, affidavits, and
evidence of capability specified by the form at the time an application is filed. The Commission
renewal process begins when the Commission’s Docketing Division receives and time/date
stamps the application. An incomplete application may be suspended or rejected. An application
that has been suspended as incomplete will cause delay in renewal

‘The Commission may approve, suspend, or deny a renewal application within 30 days. 1f the
Commission does not act within 30 days, the renewal application is deemed automatically
approved on the 31% day afier the official filing date. If the Commission suspends the
application, the Commission shall notify the applicant of the reasons for such suspension and
may direct the applicant to furnish additional information. The Commission shall act to approve
or deny a suspended application within 90 days of the date that the renewal application was
suspended. Upon Commission approval, the applicant shall receive notification of approval and a

“I'he Pablic Utilities Commission of Ohia is an Equal Opporurity Employer and Service Provider ® 186 Fast Broad Street. @ Columbes. O1143215-3793



numbered certificate that specifies the service(s) for which the applicant is certified and the dates
for which the certificate is valid.

Unless otherwise pecified by the Commission, a competitive retail electric service provider's
certificate is valid for a period of two years, beginning and ending on the dates specified on the
certificate. The applicant may renew its certificate in accordance with Rule 4901:1-24-09 of the
Ohio Administrative Code.

CRES providers shall inform the Commission of any material change to the information supplied
in a renewal application within thirty days of such material change in accordance with Rule
4901:1-24-10 of the Ohio Administrative Code.

VL. Questions: Questions regarding filing procedures should be directed to Tamara
Turkenton at (614) 995-7096 or Tammy.Turkenton@puc.state.oh.us or Chuck Stockhausen at
(614) 728-5049 or Charles.Stockhausen(ipuc.state.oh.us .

VIL. Governing Law: The certification/renewal of competitive retail electric suppliers is
governed by Chapter 4901:1-24 of the Ohio Administrative Code, Chapter 4901:1-21 of the Ohio
Administrative Code, and Section 4928.08 of the Ohio Revised Code.



Original CRS

Casc Number Version

The Public Utilitiex Commission of Ohio o4 - 1015-EL-CRS August 2004

RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR RETAIL GENERATION PROVIDERS
AND POWER MARKETERS

Please print or type all required information. Identify all attachments with an exhibit label and
title (Example: Exhibit A-11 Corporate Structure). All attachments should bear the legal name
of the Applicant. Applicants should file completed applications and all related correspondence
with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, Docketing Division; 180 East Broad Street,
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3793.

This PDF form is designed so that you may input information directly onto the form.
You may also download the form, by saving it to your local disk, for later use.

A. RENEWAL INFORMATION

A-1  Applicant intends to be renewed as: (check all that apply)

[[Retail Generation Provider OPower Broker
[OPower Marketer [JAggregator

A-2  Applicant’s legal name, address, telephone number, PUCO certificate number, and
web site address

Legal Name_GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc.

Address 1990 Post Oak Blvd., Suite 1900

PUCO Certificate # and Date Certified 04-118(1) -issued 7/2012; expires 7/25/2014
Telephone #(713) 636-1100 Web site address (if any)_gdfsuezenergyresources.com

A-3  List name, address, telcphone number and we b site address under which Applicant
does business in Ohio

Legal Name_same as A-2

Address
Telephone # Web site address (if any)




A4 List all names under which the applicant does business in North America
N/A

A-5  Contact person for regulatory or emergency matters

Name Joon Chun (Emergency); Jeffrey Levine (Regulator

Title Vice President, Operations; Director Regualtory Affi

Business address 1990 Post Oak, Suite 1900 Houston, Texas 77056
Telephone # (713) 636-1100 Fax # (713) 636-1601

E-mail address (if any)_joon.chun@gdfsuezna.com
jeffrey.Levine@gdfsuezna.com

A-6  Contact person for Commission Staff use in investigating customer complaints

Name Ray Cunningham

Title VP and General Counsel

Business address 1990 Post Oak. Suite 1900 Iouston, Texas 77056
Telephone # (713) 636-1980 Fax # (713) 636-1601
E-mail address (if any)_ray.cunningham@gdfsuezna.com

A-7  Applicant's address and tol-ree number for customer service and complaints

Customer Service address PO Box 25237 Lehigh Valley, PA 78002
Toll-free Telephone # (188) §23-2620 Fax # (713) 636-1601
E-mail address (if any)_custserv@gdfsuezna.com

A-8  Applicant's federal employer identification number # 76-0685946

A9 Applicant’s form of ownership (check one)

OSole Proprietorship OPartnership
OLimited Liability Partnership (LLP) OLimited Liability Company (LLC)
ECorporation Oother

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED:

A-10 Exhibit A10 "Principal Officers, Directors & Partners" provide the names, titles,
addresses and telephone numbers of the applicant’s principal officers, directors, partners,

or other similar officials.

A-11 Exhibit A-11 "Corporate Structure,” provide a description of the applicant’s corporate
structure, including a graphical depiction of such structure, and a list of all affiliate and
subsidiary companies that supply retail or wholesale electricity or natural gas to
customers in North America.




B-1

B4

B-5

MANAGERIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED:

Exhibit B-1 “Jurisdictions of Operation,” provide a st of all jurisdictions in which
the applicant or any affiliated interest of the applicant is, at the date of filing the
application, certified, licensed, registered, or otherwise authorized to provide retail or
wholesale electric services.

Exhibit B-2 "Experience & Plans," provide a description of the applicant’s experience
and plan for contracting with customers, providing contracted services, providing billing
statements, and responding to customer inquiries and complaints in accordance with
Commission rules adopted pursuant to Section 4928.10 of the Revised Code.

Exhibit B-3 "Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations," provide a description of all
existing, pending or past rulings, judgments, contingent liabilities, revocation of
authority, regulatory investigations, or any other matter that could adversely impact the
applicant’s financial or operational status or ability to provide the services it is seeking to
be certified to provide,

Disclose whether the applicant, a predecessor of the applicant, or any principal officer of
the applicant have ever been convicted or held liable for fraud or for violation of any
consumer protection or antitrust laws within the past five years.

No O Yes

If yes, provide a separate attachment labeled as Exhibit B-4 "Disclosure of Consumer
Protection Violations” detailing such violation(s) and providing ail relevant documents.

Disclose whether the applicant or a predecessor of the applicant has had any certification,
license, or application to provide retail or wholesale electric service denied, curtailed,

suspended, revoked, or cancelled within the past two years.
No O Yes

If yes, provide a separate atlachment labeled as Exhibit B-5 '"Disclosure of

Certification Denial, Curtailment, Suspension, or Revocation” detailing such

action(s) and providing all relevant documents.

FINANCIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED:

Exhibit C-1 “Annual Reports,” provide the two most recent Annual Reports to
Sharcholders. If applicant does not have annual reports, the applicant should provide
similar information in Exhibit C-1 or indicate that Exhibit C-1 is not applicable and why.




C-5

C-8

C9

Exhibit C-2 “SEC Filings,” provide the most recent 10-K/8-K F ilings with the SEC. If
applicant does not have such filings, it may submit those of its parent company. If the
applicant does not have such filings, then the applicant may indicate in Exhibit C-2 that
the applicant is not required to file with the SEC and why.

Exhibit C-3 “Financial Statements,” provide copies of the applicant’s two most recent
years of audited financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow
statement). If audited financial statements are not available, provide officer certified
financial statements. If the applicant has not been in business long enough to satisfy this
requirement, it shall file audited or officer certified financial satements covering the life
of the business.

»

Exhibit C-4 “Financial Arrangements,” provide copies of the applicant's financial
arrangements to conduct CRES as a business activity (e.g., gvarantees, bank

commitments, contractual arrangements, credit agreements, etc.,).

Exhibit C-5 “Forecasted Financial Statements,” provide two years of forecasted
financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement) for the
applicant’s CRES operation, along with a list of assumptions, and the name, address, e-
mail address, and telephone number of the preparer.

Exhibit C-6 “Credit Rating,” provide a statement disclosing the applicant’s credit rating
as reported by two of the following organizations: Duff & Phelps, Dun and Bradstreet
Information Services, Fitch IBCA, Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poors, or a
similar organization. In instances where an applicant does not have its own credit ratings,
it may substitute the credit ratings of a parent or affiliate organization, povided the
applicant submits a statement signed by a principal officer of the applicant’s parent or
affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations of the applicant.

Exhibit C-7 “Credit Report,” provide a copy of the applicant’s credit report from
Experion, Dun and Bradstreet or a similar organization.

Exhibit C-8 “Bankruptey Information,” provide a list and description of any
reorganizations, protection from creditors or any other form of bankruptcy filings made
by the applicant, a parent or affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations of the
applicant or any officer of the applicant in the current year or within the two most recent
years preceding the application.

Exhibit G9 “Merger Information,” provide a statement describing any dissolution or
merger or acquisition of the applicant within the five most recent years preceding the

application.




D. TECHNICAL CAPABILITY

D-1

D-3

D-4

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED:

Exhibit D-1 “Ope rations” provide a written description of the operational nature of the
applicant’s business, Please include whether the applicant’s operations include the
generation of power for retail sales, the scheduling of retail power for transmission and
delivery, the provision of retail ancillary services as well as other services used to arrange
for the purchase and delivery of electricity to retail customers.

Exhibit D2 “Operations Expertise,” given the operational nature of the applicant’s
business, provide evidence of the applicant’s experience and technical expertise in
performing such operations.

Exhibit D-3 “Key Technical Personnel,” provide the names, titles, e-mail addresscs,
telephone numbers, and the background of key personnel involved in the operational
aspects of the applicant’s business,

Exhibit D-4 “FERC Power Marketer License Number,” provide a statement
disclosing the applicant’s FERC Power Marketer License number. (Power Marketers

only)

Sam Henry, President and CEO

Signature of Applicant and Title

Sworn and subscribed before me this ' , 2014
Month Year

q
Marsha Griffin

Signature of official administcwm Print Name and Title

My commission expires on @_{/’/}?//}0/2




State of  Te*a®

AFFIDAVIT

~Houston S,
(Town)
County of Harris
Sanglensy _ . Affiant, being duly sworn/affirmed according to law, deposes and says that:
. . DF Suez Energy Resources NA. Inc .
He/She is the President and CEO  (Office of Affiant) of ___(Name of Applicant);

That he/she is authorized to and does make this affidavit for said Applicant,

10.

The Applicant herein, attests under penalty of false stalement that all statements made in the
application for certification renewal are true and complete and that it will amend its application while
the application is pending if any substantial changes occur regarding the information provided in the
application.

The Applicant herein, attests it will timely file an annual report with the Public Utilities Commission
of Ohio of its intrastate gross receipts, gross earnings, and sales of kilowatt-hours of electricity
pursuant to Division (A) of Section 4905.10, Division (A) of Section 4911.18, and Division (F) of
Section 4928.06 of the Revised Code.

The Applicant herein, attests that it will timely pay any assessments made pursuant to Sections
4905.10, 4911.18, or Division F of Section 4928.06 of the Revised Code.

The Applicant herein, attests that it will comply with all Public Utilities Commission of Ohio rules or
orders as adopted pursuant to Chapter 4928 of the Revised Code.

The Applicant herein, attests that it will cooperate fully with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio,
and its Staff on any utility matter including the investigation of any consumer complaint regarding any
service offcred or provided by the Applicant.

The Applicant herein, attests that it will comply with all state and/or federal rules and regulations
concerning consumer protection, the environment, and advertising/promotions.

The Applicant herein, attests that it will fully comply with Section 4928.09 of the Revised Code
regarding consent to the jurisdiction of Qhio Courts and the service of process.

The Applicant herein, attests that it will use its best efforts to verify that any entity with whom it has a
contractual relationship to purchase power is in compliance with all applicable licensing requirements
of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

The Applicant herein, attests that it will cooperate fully with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio,
the electric distribution companies, the regional lransmission entities, and other electric suppliers in the
event of an emergency condition that may jeopardize the safety and reliability of the electric service in
accordance with the emergency plans and other procedures as may be determined appropriale by the

Commission.

If applicable to the service(s) the Applicant will provide, the Applicant herein, attests that it will adhere
to the reliability standards of (1) the North American Electric Reliability Council (NERC), (2) the
appropriate regional reliability council(s), and (3) the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. (Only
applicable if pertains to the services the Applicant is offering)



11. The Applicant herein, attests that it will inform the Commission of any material change to the
information supplied in the renewal application within 30 days of such material change, including any
change in contact person for regulatory purposes or contact person for Staff use in investigating
customer complaints.

orth are true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge, information, and belief and that
icant to be ghic to prove the same at any hearing hereof.

I President and CEQ M/
Sworn and subbcribed before me this _a/my of M&Y . 2014

onth Year
~
: Marsha Griffin

Signatum of official administcri_né oath, Print Name and Title

/
My commission expires on QE;_/Z/_? 9‘0/ 8?

MARSHA FROST GRIFFIN

My Commission Explces
May 18, 2018




DOCKET 04-1015-EL-CRS

Exhibit A-10 "Principal Officers, Directors & Partners” provide the names, titles, addresses and telephone
numbers of the applicant’s principal officers, directors, partners, or other similar officials.

Sam Henry

President & CEO

1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900
Houston, TX 77056

T: 713-636-0000

F: 713-636-1601

Email: sam.henry@gdfsuezna.com

Patrick Gaussent

Vice President, CFO & Treasurer

1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900
Houston, TX 77056

T: 713-636-0000

F: 713-636-1601

Email: Patrick.gaussent@gdfsuezna.com

Ray Cunningham

Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900

Houston, TX 77056

T: 713-636-0000

F: 713-636-1601

Email: Ray.cunningham@gdfsuezna.com

Brenda Bayer

Vice President & Assistant Treasurer
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900
Houston, TX 77056

T: 713-636-0000

F: 713-636-1601

Email: Brenda.bayer@gdfsuezna.com

JD Burrows

Vice President, Marketing

1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900
Houston, TX 77056

T: 713-636-0000

F: 713-636-1601

Email: jd.burrows@gdfsuezna.com

Vikram Kulkarni

Vice President, Supply and Acting Vice President of Sales
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900

Houston, TX 77056

T: 713-636-0000

F: 713-636-1601

Email: Vikram.Kulkarni@gdfsuezna.com

Douglas Stein

Vice President & Controller, Business Control
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900

Houston, TX 77056

T: 713-636-0000

F: 713-636-1601

Email: Douglas.Stein@gdfsuezna.com




DOCKET 04-1015-EL-CRS

John Henderson

Vice President & General Manager of Retail Strategy
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900

Houston, TX 77056

T: 713-636-0000

F: 713-636-1601

Email: john.henderson@gqdfsuezna.com

Rachel W. Kilpatrick

Vice President

1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900
Houston, TX 77056

T: 713-636-0000

F: 713-636-1601

Email: Rachel.kilpatrick@gdfsuezna.com

Zin Smati

Vice President

1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900
Houston, TX 77056

T: 713-636-0000

F: 713-636-1601

Email: Zin.smati@gdfsuezna.com

Naveen Rabie

Assistant Secretary

1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900
Houston, TX 77056

T: 713-636-0000

F: 713-636-1601

Email: Naveen.rabie@gadfsuezna.com




DOCKET 04-1015-EL-CRS

Exhibit A-11 "Corporate Structure,” provide a description of the applicant's corporate structure, including a
graphical depiction of such structure, and a list of all affiliate and subsidiary companies that supply retail or wholesale
electricity or natural gas to customers in North America.

See attached corporate structure chart.
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DOCKET 04-1015-EL-CRS

Exhibit B-1 “Jurisdictions of Operation,” provide a list of all jurisdictions in which the applicant or any affiliated
interest of the applicant is, at the date of filing the application, certified, licensed, registered, or otherwise authorized

to provide retail or wholesale electric services.

STATE OF LICENSE LICENSE NO. LICENSE ISSUE DATE
Connecticut Docket #04-06-11 9/26/2004
Delaware Docket #04-325 11/23/2004
District of Columbia Order # 13472 1/6/2005
lliinois ICC Cert. No. 050257 6/7/2005
Maine Docket #2003-120 3/14/2003
Maryland License #605 3/21/2004
Massachusetts License # CS-037 5/15/2002
New Jersey License # E-SL-0061 8/6/2003
New York (NY does not Issue license #) 9/13/2004
Ohlo License #04-118 7/25/2004 )
Pennsylvania License No. A-110156 9/25/2002
Rhode Island Docket #D-96-6 (P2) 10/25/2004
Texas License # 10053 8/5/2003

Headquartered in Houston, Texas, GDF SUEZ Energy Resources NA, Inc. currently serves commercial and industrial
retail electric customers in the following states: Connecticut, Delaware, District of Columbia, lllinois, Maine, Maryland,
Massachusetts, New Jersey, New York, Pennsylvania, and Texas.

GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc's wholly owned subsidiary, GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions LLC, dba Think
Energy is licensed in the following jurisdictions as a retail electric supplier:

STATE OF LICENSE LICENSE NO. LICENSE ISSUE DATE
Connecticut Docket #11-10-14 02/09/2012
Delaware Docket #11-482 04/17/2012
District of Columbia Case No. EA-11-28; Order #16630 12/02/2011
lllinois ICC Certificate No. 11-0531 09/21/2011
Maine Docket #2011-425 11/22/2011
Maryland License #IR-2404 08/17/2011
Massachusetts License #CS-087 08/09/2011
New Jersey License #ESL-1020 03/12/2012
New York NY Does Not Issue License Nos. 09/16/2011
Pennsylvania License #A-2011-2268361 12/16/2011
Texas License #10204 08/26/2011

Headquartered in Houston, Texas, GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC d/b/a Think Energy currently serves small
commercial and industrial retail electric customers in the following states: llinois, Massachusetts, Maryland, New

York, Pennsylvania and Texas.



DOCKET 04-1015-EL-CRS

Exhibit B-2 "Experience & Plans,” provide a description of the applicant’s experience and plan for contracting with
customers, providing contracted services, providing billing statements, and responding to customer inquiries and
complaints in accordance with Commission rules adopted pursuant to Section 4928.10 of the Revised Code.

GSERNA Experience. Contracting, Billing, Customer Service, and Inquiry/Complaint Response

GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc. (‘GSERNA”") provides risk-managed retail electricity to commercial and
industrial customers, with products and services that offer budget certainty, reduce energy expenditures, and set new
standards in electricity supply. In-house expertise and market-based knowledge helps control costs and manage risks
and volatility through a variety of energy products. GSERNA is the one of the largest and one of the fastest growing
C&l retail electricity suppliers in the United States, with more than 50,000 commercial and industrial accounts in
Connecticut, Delaware, llinois, Maryland, Massachusetts, Maine, New Jersey, New York, Pennsylvania, Washington
D.C. and Texas. Its success is based on the ability to provide innovative products and services that help customers
control costs and minimize risk. Based in Houston, GDF SUEZ Energy North America, Inc. is a business unit of GDF
SUEZ Energy International and is responsible for managing GDF SUEZ's positions within the energy value chain in
the U.S., Mexico, and Canada, including electricity generation and cogeneration, natural gas and LNG, asset-based
trading and origination, and energy sales and related services. GSERNA serves customer accounts representing
almost $2 billion in contract value and to more than 25,000 meters. GSERNA'’s financial strength sets it apart. As part
of GDF SUEZ, GSERNA is backed by the resources of one of the world's top 10 power producers with annual
revenues exceeding $110 billion. Our company leadership team comprises some of the best talent in retail energy,
with extensive experience from many of the top companies in the industry Additionally, GSERNA maintains a
centralized, scalable back office to enable competitive pricing.

Customer Service is GSERNA’s greatest strength. Our organization and culture are built around meeting the
commitments made in the sales process. GSERNA has invested significant resources to ensure that all customers
receive on-time switching, timely and accurate billing, and immediate response to customer care issues. Our
Customer Service and Support organization is designed to provide dedicated professionals to handle all aspects of
energy supply, delivery, and risk management. GSERNA has received high marks in customer satisfaction, as
evidenced by independent surveys placing GSERNA in the top-tier of all energy providers. Additionally, GSERNA
enjoys industry leading receivables performance. GSERNA firmly believes if customers switch on time, promptly
receive accurate and understandable bills, and enjoy courteous and knowledgeable answers to their questions, it is a
formula for success for all. That has proven to be true. GSERNA publically guarantees an on-time enrollment.
GSERNA is recognized a leader in quick problem resolution, execution on price guotes, and on-time billing. GSERNA
will respond to all customer inquiries and/or complaints in accordance with the Commission rules adopted pursuant to
Section 4928.10 of the Revised Code.

GSERNA has also instituted quality control and quality assurance practices to ensure our people, processes, vendors
and systems operate at this highly level of quality. Key Performance Indicators (KPI's) have been developed to
measure the performance of each critical function within our organization.

GSERNA KP! Examples

Enroliment/Drops: 99.8% (.2% outside GSERNA control)
Billing Timeliness: 98.7% within 48 hours

Bill Accuracy: >99%

Account Add / Delete: <2 Day

Customer Service Calls: >80% answered within 20 seconds

Payment Application: 98% same day, 100% within 48 hours



DOCKET 04-1015-EL-CRS

Exhibit B-3 "Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations ," provide a description of all existing, pending or past
rulings, judgments, contingent liabilities, revocation of authority, regulatory investigations, or any other matter that
could adversely impact the applicant’s financial or operational status or ability to provide the services it is seeking to
be certified to provide.

GDF Suez Energy Resources, NA warrants that there are no existing, pending or past rulings, judgments, contingent
liabilities, revocation of authority, regulatory investigations, or any other matters that could adversely impact
GSERNA's financial or operational status or ability to provide the services it is seeking to renew.



DOCKET 04-1015-EL-CRS

Exhibit C-1 “Annual Reports,” provide the two most recent Annual Reports to Shareholders. If applicant does not
have annual reports, the applicant should provide similar information in Exhibit C-1 or indicate that Exhibit C-1 is not
applicable and why.

See attached 2011 GDF SUEZ Annual Report.

See attached 2012 GDF SUEZ Annual Report.

See attached 2013 GDF Suez Energy NA Financials



IPR-GDF SUEZ
North America, Inc.
and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements as of and
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder of
1PR-GDF SUEZ North America, Inc and subsidiaries

Houston, Texas
io have sudited the i lidated fi ial of IPR-GDF SUEZ z::.—. America, Inc. and its
idiaries (the “Comp L.v,ize_.. prise the lidated of financial position as of Dy ber 31, 2012
and 2011, and the related o?:oq:_o. prehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the lidated financial
Management's Responsibility for the C: i d Fl jal St
is responsible for the p i -:n?:. i omz.oﬁ lidated financial in
with T ional Financial Reporting S d d by the 1 ional A ing Standards Board:
this includes the design, impl ion, and mai of interual control H_ng!nsnvnvﬁvﬂﬁ_ﬂ_-imw:
P ion of tidated fi ial thar are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditors’ Responsibllity

Our respansibility is to express an QEEo= on __..ﬂn lidated fi I based on our audits We conducted
our audits in o with audi pted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan snd perform the eudit to ocE: -onmgozo assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement

>=En_._=<o_<aueem§=_=mv..§ﬂ_=§_oa¢§=5ﬂ_= idence sbout the Ea discl inthe i
The proced o&ggg_gg_aqu d the R.Eo:u_ng
material mi of the s_!rn.n:n.am..lao_.sqi In making those risk
—sn-.:_:s. id _=ﬁs-_3=wc_1u<§ﬁnﬁn§- paration and fuir p ion of the
d financi in onder to design audit procedures that are appropriste in the ci but not for
.i%iﬁ?ﬂgasggg ?nﬁﬁp.ﬁﬁ-&.?ﬂgg s internal control. Accocdingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also ing the app 8 policies used and the reasonableness
of sig? g esti made by r 18 well 8 cval g the overall presentation of the

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriste to provide & basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

Jerad £

In our opinion, the

referred (o above present fairly, in all materisl respects, the financial

position of IPR-GDF SUEZ North America, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the resuits
a.:.n:ons!_o:- and their cash =osa ?2_5 years .:n_ n.&n._ in d with I ional Financial R ing
d by the I 8 ds Board,
March 28, 2013
Member of

Outnais St Sitmmstias Grmieg



IPR-GDF SUEZ NORTH AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

{nth )
Notes M2 2011
ASSETS
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Tntangible assets — nel 6 5 68602 $ 119157
Goodwill 7 1,408,912 1,440,336
Property, plant, and equipment — ncl ] 7,607,601 7.963.217
Derivative instruments 14 195,678 235,636
Imvestments m associancs 9 99,588 108,078
Loans and credits at amortized cosl — net 13 00,074 -
Other noncurront asscls 2 59,962 74,420
Defered tax wsscls S 359 2238
Total noncurrent assats 9,534.016 9.943.142
CURRENT ASSETS:
Derivative instrumends 14 236,081 3535713
Notes reecivable 13 25,748 305,497
Trade and other roceivables — net 3 651,303 496,057
Inventorics 1t 284,682 272662
Assets held for sale 3 . 516913
Other current assels 12 79918 62402
Cash and cash cquivalcnts 13 119,108 189.621
Total current asscts 1,396,840 2,196,725
TOTAL $ 10,930,856 s12. _uwuwmq
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
EQUITY:
Sharcholder's equity £ 4901481 § 471319
Noncontrolling interesis 187.451 187,630
Total cquity 5,088,932 4,900,828
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Provisions 16 40929 31,174
Long-tcim borrowings 13,15 3,688,542 5,205,397
Derivalive instruments 4 106,440 149,142
16 191,727 143,921
5 ___418414 296,024
Total noncurrent lisbilitics 4.446.052 5,825 658
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Provisions 16 24,248 54,141
Short-lerm borrowings 13,15 585,071 203,765
Derivalive ingtrumenls 14 251,617 462424
Tradc and other payables 13 346,3% 480,492
Liabilities held for sale 3 - 13,712
Other current Tiabilitios 16 188.542 198.847
Tolal current liabilitioy 1,395,872 1413381
TOTAL $10.930.856 512139867

Sec nolcs o liduicd financial

IPR-GDF SUEZ NORTH AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

({In thousands)
Notes 2012 2011

Revenues 4  $5471,598 $ 6,586,773
Purchases (3,960,836)  (4,879,079)
Personnel costs (252,875) (261,585)
Depreciation, amortization, and provisions (437,728) (469,089)
Other operating expenses — net (230,205) (274,273)
CURRENT OPERATING INCOME 589,954 702,747
Mark-to-market on commodity contracts other than

trading instrurments 14 (4.587) 16,122
Impairment of property, plant, and equipment and

imangible assets 6,8 (56,942) (82,132)
Restructuring costs 16 (3,995) (61,446)
Gain (loss) on disposal of subsidiaries 3 (26,895) 106,321
Loss on disposal of assets — net 8 (28,213) (8.686)
INCOME FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 469,322 672,926
Financial expenses (337,071) (345,797)
Financial income 50,968 12,301
NET FINANCIAL LOSS 14 (286,103) (333,496)
Net income before tex and income of associates 183219 339,430
Income tax provision 5 (73,340) (85,957)
Share in net income (loss) of associates 9 414 (3,311)
NET INCOME $ 110,293 $ 250,162
Company share 107,519 248214
Non-controlling interests 2,774 1,948

See notes 1o lidated i




IPR-GDF SUEZ NORTH AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

{in thousands)
Netes 2012 2011
NET INCOME $110,203  $250,162
Net investrnent hedges . 1,801 IPR-GDF SUBZ NORTH AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Cash flow hedges 14 21,641 31,768 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
Commodity cash flow hedges 14 97,878 (25,401) B
Actaril gans and losses @ G R e T Sl o o -
Shww” Gapital  Capital Nr Income andOther Adpatment  Equily [l EqAly
Deferred income tax 5 (49,469) 4,747 HQUITY —— Laruary 1.201 | 90 S5 S2QA®  SIMMT SNy gLl s2ITm g 7
} . Ot crmprchenstve Income . . . - [£27.) (37,069 QLson 4s0n
Translation adjustments 15,935 (37,069) e e N G P .
Other easiveli (loss) 79,058 nNA. 507) Tolal coraprehcrive (Jaas) ncnme: — = - 248214 12502 (37069 anJor 225,658
sty quodribuied (Nclo 3) H . L9536 | P59506 1959936
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME £189.351 5 NNm“mmm Conadiam diveatituro (Notz 3) ny
Eraployee shure-hascd sompensmion . - 208 2.4 2438
Company share 186,577 223,707 Dlatritastions by tho Canpony = s @y
EQUITY — Desaber 31, 2011 AR 9 sz @il _oemp  uiesy  _GTasy ECTTY
Non-controlling interests 2,774 1,48 [T — . 6 %5 Tops s
Nellacome .. wste 10751 1028
See notes to lidated fr ial Tons) v e b —_— e e AW e e _ies7y ILEL]}
Ermploysy share-bmes) compenwtion By —F. 7 .. 3
Jo 1
[, T



IPR-GDF SUEZ NORTH AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
{in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Share in not (income)loss of sesocisics
Dividends reccivod from associates
Nel deprociati ion. and pi
Nel capilal loss on disposal
Mark 1o markel on commodity contracts other than rading instrumants
Impsirments of property. plani, and cquipmknt, and intangiblcs asscls
Restrucluring costs
Loss (gain) on disposal of sudsidiarics
Distributions 1o non<controlling infeTosts
Other iloms with no cash impast
1ncome tax provision
Net financial (oss

Cush gencrated from eporations bofora income tax und working capital requiroments

Tax paid ,
Change in working capiisl requiramtsnis

Nel cash provided by oporating sotivilics

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisitions of property, plani, and equipment, and intangible sssctn
Government grani prococda for property, plent, and cquipment
Disposals of property, planL, and equipment and intangibles asscts
Disposals of cnlitics nct of cash and cash equivalens sold
Contributions 10 associates
Acquisitions of cntitics nct of cesh and cash cquivalents acquired
Changr in restricted cash
Change in loans and receivables originated by the group and other

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activitics
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of borrowings and debt
Tnicred paid
Increase in borrowings and debt
Net cash uged ¢n fincmg activities
EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATES AND OTHER
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — Beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — End of year

2012

s 110293
{414)
8,600
437.728
28213
4,587
56,942
(5.650)
26,495
(2,9%3)
13321
73,340

286,103
1,037,004
(8910)

_ (233395
792,699

——2T2

(180,048)
18.009

51,612
94511

(120)
256,145

— 22100

540.109

{1,733,870)
(240.781)
370,071

(1.404,580)
1259
(70,513)
189621

$_119.108

2011

$ 250,162
3300

85,987

g
333,4%
1,134,785

4.724)
267833

1,417,896
(272.761)

(24,932)
(35,700)
108.784

683
—(266.609)

(490,535
(1,659,577
{(288,996)
1.039.203
(509,370)
11.429
29,420
160,201

5 139,621

IPR-GDF SUEZ NORTH AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

index to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note

1. Description of Business

2. Significant Accounting Policies

3, Significant Events

4, Revenues

5. Income Taxes

6. Intangible Assets

7. Goodwill

8.  Property, Plant, and Equipment

9. Investments in Associates

10, Investmentu in Joint Ventures

11, Inventories

12, Other Assets

13. Financial Instruments other than Derivatives
14. Risk Management Activities

15. Financial Debt and Borrowings

16. Provisions and Other Liabilities

17. Leases — Finance and Operating

18. Contractual Commitments

19. Contingencics and Legal Proceedings
20 Employee Benefit Plans

21. Share-Based Compensation

22, Related-Party Transactions

23. Subsequent Events

24. List of the Main Consolidated Companies

Page



1

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

IPR-GDF SUEZ North America, Inc. (the “Company” or “IPGSNA”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Suez-Tractebel, S.A. (the “‘Parent”™), a Belgian company, and was formed and incorporated in 1981 in
the state of Delaware. The Parent was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GDF SUEZ § A. ("GDF SUEZ"), a
French-domiciled company. Effective, February 3, 201 1, the Parent was acquired by International Power
ple (“1PR™), which was owned 70% indirectly by GDF SUEZ (sce Note 3). As of July 28, 2012, GDF
SUEZ purchased the remaining 30% of IPR. In January 2013, the Company changed its name to GDT
SUEZ Energy North America, Inc.

As ODF SUEZ owns a majority of the Parent in both 2011 and 2012, it is considered the Company’s
ultimate parent (“Ultimate Controlling Party”).

‘The Company has 13,400 shares of common stock authorized, with 8,952 shares issued and outstanding,
‘The shares are all owned by the Parent and have no preferences or restrictions,

The Company’s primary subsidiaries and their activities are as follows:

IPR-GDF SUEZ Generation North America, Inc. ("GENCO")
retail, industrial, and nonutility wholesale power-generating facili

GDF SUEZ Gas NA Holdings LI.C ("GSGNAH") — engaged in the purchase, storage, and resale of
liquefied natural gas.

GDI SUEZ Iinargy Resources NA, Inc. (“GSIERNA") — cngaged in the marketing and sale of retail
electricity to commercial and industrial customers,

IPR-GDF SUEZ Iinergy Marketing Narth Amevica, Inc. ("GSEMNA ') — engaged in risk management
activities supporting other C bsidiari

pany 1e8.
The Company is headquartered at 1990 Post Osk Blvd, Houston, TX 77056,

On March 28, 2013, the C y's p d and authorized to issue the consolidated

financial statements of the Company for the year SM& December 31, 2012,

-9.

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Index to Accounting Policles

A
B

moa

Eaku

OIVOZZTUC RS-

Basis of Presentation

Principles of Consolidation

B.1 Subsidiaries

B.2 Associates

B.3 Joint Ventures

Business Combinations

Asset or Disposal Groups Held for Sale

Use of Estimates

E.1 Provision Estimates

E.2 Postemplayment Benefit Obligations

E.3 Recoverable Amount of Property, Plant, and Equipment and Intangible Assets
E.4 Financial Instruments

E.5 Tax Losg Carryforwards

E.6 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash
Inventories

Financial Instruments, Derivatives and Risk Management
H.! Financial Assets

H.2 Financial Liabilities

H.3 Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

H .4 Definition and Scope of Derivative Instruments

H.5 Embedded Derivatives

H.6 Hedging [nstruments: Recognition and Presentation
H.7 Derivative Instruments Not Qualifying for Hedge Accounting
H.8 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Property, Plant, and Equipment

Impainment of Property, Plant, and Equiptment and Intangible Assets
Goodwill

Intangibles

Revenue Recognition

Leases

Income Taxes

Foreign Currency Translation

Provisions

Q.1 Asszt Retirement Obligations

Q.2 Postemployment Benefit Obligations and Other Long-Term Employes Benefits
Share-Based Payments

R.1 Stock Option Plans

R.2 Share Appreciation Rights

R.3 Sharcs Granted to Emplayees

R.4 Employse Share Purchase Plans

-10-
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A. Basis of Presentation — The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) published by the International
Accounting Standards Boerd (IASB). The policies set out below have been consistently applied to
all the years presented.

The Company’s consolidated financia) statements have been prepared under the historical cost

convention except for some derivative and financial instruments d at fair value in

formity with 1 ional Accounting Standard (1AS) 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement.
The preparation of the Company's lidated financial requires g to use
certain ¢ritical accounting 2::.29- and requires to ise its judg in the
process of applying the licies. Deli d within the notes are areas involving a higher
degree of, .:RE.:E_» or oo_sv_naa.. or areas where assumptions and estimates arc significant to the

lidated fi (see Note 2 E).

IFRS Standards, Amend and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commiitea

("IFFRIC") Interpretations applicable to the 2012 annual financial siatemants:

o Amendment to IAS 12 — [ncome Taxes
e Amendment to [FRS7 Discl Transfer of Financials Assets,

These d and interp
financiel staternents,

have no material impact on the Company’s consolidated

IFRS Standards and Interpresations effactive gfter 2013 that the Company has elecied 1o early adopt
in2011:

e Amendment to [AS 1 — P of Ttems of Other Comprehensive Income

Standards and Interpretations applicable in 2013:

* 1FRS 13 — Fair Velue Measurements

* Amendments to JAS 19 — Employee Benefits

+ Amendments to IFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting Assets and Financial Liabilities
« IFRIC 20 — Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surfacc Mine

+ Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011

Amendments applicable in 2014:

e IFRS 10 — Consolidation Financial Statements

s [FRS 11 —- Joint Arrangements

e [FRS 12 ~— Disclosure of [ntcrests in Other Entities

s Amendments to IAS 28 — Tnvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures

s Amendments to TAS 32 — Offsetting Financials Asscts and Financial Liabilities
Standards applicable in 201 5:

s IFRS 9 —Fi ial (nstr : Classification and M ient

.11

The impact resulting from the application of these standards and amendments is currently being
asscssed

Princlples of C lidatlon — The lidati hods used by the Company consist of the full
consolidation method, the proportionate consolidation method, and the equity method. The
Company assesses the extent of its control of or influence over each of its investee’s operating and
financing policies, taking into the guid i

8 d in 1AS 27, Consolidated and Separate
Fi ial Si ; 1AS 28, I inAss . and [AS 31, Interest in Joint Ventures.
B.1 Subsidiaries — Subsidiaries are all n_::_nr ludi i ated entities, such as

partnerships, over which the Company exercises control. . The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when asscssing whether the
Company conrtrols another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully lidated from the dete on which the Company obtains control. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases

Tl

Intercompany tr: and lized gains on ions b companies are
climinated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset trensferred. The accounting policies of the Company* u m._cua_n:ou have
been ch d, where Y, 10 ensure consi y with the i d d by the

& P P

Company.

B.2 Associates — The equity method is used for all associate companies over which the Company
exercises significant influence, but not control. In d with this method, the Company
recognizes its proportionate share of the investee’s net income or loss on a separate linc of the
consolidated statements of income under share in net income of associates,

When the Company’s share of losses, including any other unsecured receivables, in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the iate, the C y does not Iy further losses unless
it has incurred cbligations or made payments on behalf om the associate, Unrealized gains on
transactions between the Company and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Company’s
interest in the associates, Unrealized losses are also o_::_:znn_ unless the transaction provides
cvidenco of an impairment of the asset transferred. A s policies of iates have been

changed where necessary to ensurc with the poli jes ad pted by the C

palty

B.3 Joint Ventures — Companies over which the Company exercises joint control are consolidated

3 the vqovoamo_.u_n method, g-nn on the Company’s percentage interest. The Company combines
its share of the joint venture's individual income and expenses, assets and rn.a___:on_ and cash flows
on a line-by-line basis with similar items in the Company’s lidated fi

The Company recognizes the portion of gains or losses on the sale of assets by the Company to the
joint venture that is attributable to the other venturers The Company does not recognize its share of
profits or losses from the joint venture that result from the Company's purchase of assets from the
joint venture until it resells the assets to an independent party.

A loss on the jon 1s di dintely if the loss provides a<=_n=no of a reduction in
the net realizable value of current assets or an impai loss. A polici o». 'joint ventures
have been changed where Y to ensure y with the ing poli dopted by
the Company.
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A list of the main fully consolidated and proportionately consolidated companies, together with
investments accounted for by the equity method, is presented in Note 24,

Busi Combinations — For b noa—c_:mno:m carried out since .F::E.w 1, 2010, the
Company applies the acquisition method as defined in IFRS 3, Busil Combinations (revised)
allowing a choice on a transaction-by-transaction basis for the measurement of noncontrolling
interests at the date of acquisition cither at fair velue or at the noncontrolling interests’ share of

1

recognized identifiable net assets of the acquirer, The gnition and ing
_.on_EE_..ﬁs.m for contingent consideration are measured at fair value at the wnn__:m_:o: date;

dj to the ideration are RnoE:NR_ against the cost of the acquisition only to
the ezq_.: that they arise from new inft btained within the period {(a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition mn.nv nco.: the fair value at the date of acquisition. All
other subsequent adjustments to i lassified es an asset or a :wv___Q are
recognized in profit or loss. This n:»_.ﬁo also requires the recognition of a settl gain or loss
when the business combination in effect settles a preexisting relationship between the Company and
the acquiree. Acquisitions after January 1, 2010, require related costs to be accounted for movm_.ﬂaq
from the business combination, mn:na__v. _nwn:_m to those costs being recognized as an expense in
v_.omn or loss as incurred, wh P ly they were d for as part of the cost of the
acquisition,

Assefy or Disposal Groups Held for Sale — In accordance with IFRS 5, Noncurrent Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations, assets or a group of assets held for sale are presented
separately on the face of the lidated of financial position, at the lower of their
carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. Assets ate classified as held for sale when they are
available for immediate sale in their present condition, their sale is highly probable, management is
comumitted to a plan to sell the assets and an active program to locate a buyer and complete the plan
has been initiated.

cua of Estimates — .:_n !.nvw..»:o: of consolidated fi ial requires the use of

and ptions to d ine the valuc of ccrtain assets and __nw_:anu. the disclosure of
certain contingent assets and Jiabilities al the date of the consolidated fi and
certain revenues and cxpenses Euo:& during the period. These estimates are evaluated on an
o:mo:_m basis =~._§=w historical nxun:n._nn. consultation with outside advigors, and other methods
ed inthe p lar cir Although these estimates are based on

’s best available } ledge at the time, due to uncertainties inherent in the estimation

n_.cnnuu_ actual results may differ from those estimates. The effects of revisions to estimates are
recognized when the facts that give rise to the revision become kmown.

Va3 -1

The estimates used in preparing the C

pany’s

primarily relate to:

«  The measurement of provisions, particularly dismantling obligations, disputes, and
| benefit obligati

P t

s Measurement of the recoverable amount of goodwill; intangible assets; and property, plant, and
equipment

» Financial instrument and derivative valuation
s Measurement of capitalized tax loss carryforwards

o Unbilled revenue (sec Note 2 M)

»  Allowance for doubtful accounts

2.1 Provision Estimates — Provision estimates with parameters having a significant influence on
the amount of provisions include expenditure timing, the discount rate applied to future cash flows,
and the actual level of expenditure. These parameters are based on information and estimates
deemed to be appropriate at the current time.

E.2 Postemployment Benefit Obligations — Employee benefit obligations are valued on the basis of
actuarial assumptions. Although the Company considers the assumptions used in the valuation
model to be documented and appropriate, any changes in these assurnptions may have a material
impact on the resulting calculation.

£.3 Recoverable Amount of Property, Plant, and Equipment and Intangible Assets — The
_.ooo<q_.m_v_o amount of E.oco_é _v_mzr and equipment; goodwill; and intangible assets is based on

and ptions reg g future cash flows and the market outlook associated with the
assets, Changes in these estimates w_.a assumplions may result in (he requirement to recognize an
impairment of the carrymg amount.

li.4 Financial fnstruments — The Company uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of
financial instruments that are not actively listed on a market. Changes in the assumptions used in
valuation techniques could have a material impact on the resulting calculation.

LE.5 Tax Loss Carryforwards — Deferred tax assets are recognized on tax loss carryforwards when it
is probeble that taxable profit will be available against which the tax loss carryforwards can be
utilized,

E.6 Allowance for Doubiful A — The Company an all for doubtful

based on estitnates of uncollectible revenues after B_w_vi:w <E._o:m factors, including accounts
receivable agings, historical collections, and At Dy ber 31,

2012 and 2011, the Cormpany maintained an allowance moq doubtful accounts of $6,4 million and
$6.0 million, respectively. The Company writes ofl accounts receivable balances against the
allowance for doubtful accounts when a receiveble is determined to be uncollectible.

Cash and Cash Equivslents and Restricted Cash — Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand, deposits held on call with banks, and other short-term and highly liquid investments where the
risk of a change in value is deemed to be negligible based on the criteria set out in IAS 7, Statement
of Cash Flow. Bank overdrafts are included in short-term borrowings in the consolidated statements
of financial position. Cash balances that arc restricted Icss than onc year arc included in short-term
cash.

Cash bal quired to be mai d in accordance with certain agreements that are restricted in
use for greater than one year, including maintenance reserve funds, debt-sinking funds, and certain
trading-related contracts are classificd as restricted and are included in other noncurren( assets in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

Cash Pool Arrangement — The Company and its subsidiaries address cash flow needs by
participating in a cash pool arrangement. The terms of the cash pool arrangement are detenmined by
GDF SUEZ and provide for the Company’s subsidiaries with excess funds to temporarily loan funds
into the cash pool so that subsidiaries in need of funds can temporarily borrow from the pool.
Pooling occurs first among, the Company’s subsidiaries and then with an affiliate of the Parent.
Interest is carned at rates equivalent to third-party investment rates if the Company is a net lendet to
the pool, and at the London InterBank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 1.5% if the Company is a net
borrower from the pool. The cash poal arrangement was renewed on December 31, 2012, for an
additional one-year term.
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Inventories — [nventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value, except for
storage of natural gas inventory, which is marked to market. Net realizable value corresponds to the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the ¢stimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Liquefed natueal gas (“LNG™) inventory is
determined using the first-in, first-out method, and natural gas and other fuel inventories are
determined using the first-in, first-out method or weighted-average cost method.

Since emission rights are c« d in the production pracess, they are classified as inventory.
Emission dghts granted free of charge are recorded in the consolidated of fi ial
position at a zero value, and emission rights purchased in the market are recognized at acquisition
cost. Renewable energy credits that are generated as a by-product of production are recorded at fair
value,

Financial Instruments, Derivatives and Risk Management — The Company"s overall risk
program focuses on the unpredictability of fi ial markets and seeks to minimize

potential adverse effoets on the Company’s financial performance. The Company uses derivative

instruments to hedge certain risk exposures, such as interest ates, foreign currency exchange rates,

and commodity prices.

Financial instruments and derivatives are recognized and measured in accordance with IAS 32,
Fi ial Instr Pr ion, and (AS 39, Fi ial Instri : Recognition and
Measurement,

H.1 Financial Assets — Financial assets are composed of loans and receivables carried at amortized
cost, including trade and other receivables, and fi ial assets d at fair value through
income, including derivative financial instruments (se¢ Note 14),

H.2 Fi ial Liabilities — Fi ial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables,
derivative financial instruments, capita) renewal and replacement obligations, and other financial
liabilities. Financial liabilities are broken down into current and noncurrent liabilities in the
consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 14). Current financial liabilities primarily
include:

a  Financial liabilities with a settlement or maturity date within 12 months of the cansolidated
statements of financial position date

b. Financial liabilities in respect of which the Company does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement for at least 12 months after the lidated of financial positi
date

p

c. Financial liabilities held primarily for trading purposes

d. Derivative financia) instruments qualifying as fair value and cash flow hedges where the
underlying is classified as a current item

e. All commodity dervatives not qualifying as hedges with a settlement or maturity date within 12
hs of the lidated of financial position date

Borrowings are measured at amortized cost; any difference between proceeds, net of transaction
costs, and the redemption value is recognized in the lidated ts of income over the

period of the borrowings using the effective interest method

<15

H.3 Derivatives and Hedge Accouniing— The Company uses derivative instruments to manage and
reduce its exposure to market risks arising from fluctuations in interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates, and commodity prices, mainly for natural gas and electricity (sec Note 14).

H.+ Definition and Scope of Derivative {nsfruments — Derivative instruments are contracts;
(i) whose value changes in response to the change in onc or more cbservable variables, (ii) that do
not require any material initial net investrment, and (iii) that are settled at a future date

Derivative instruments include swaps, options, futures and swaptions, as well as forward
commitments to purchase or sell listed and unlisted securities, and firm commitments or options to
purchase or sell nonfinancial assets that involve physical delivery of the underlying commodity.
Electricity and natural gas purchase and sale contracts are analyzed systematically to determine
whether they represent purchases and sales arising in the ordinary course of business, whereby they
may not fall within the scope of IAS 39.

The first step of determining whether the derivative instrument falls withia the scope of 1AS 39
consists of demonstrating that the contract was cntered into and continues to be held for the purpose
of a purchasc or salc with physical delivery of the underlying commodity, in accordance with the
Company’s expected sale or usage requirements in the foreseeable future in the ordinary course of
its operations.

The second step is to demonstrate that the Company has no practice of settling similar contracts ona
net basis. Forward purchases or sales with physical delivery of the underlying commodity that are
carried out with the sole purpose of balancing the Company energy volumes are not considered by
the Company &s contracts that are settled net — the contract is not negatiated with the aim of
realizing financial arbitrage, and the contract is not equivalent to a written option. The Company
distinguishes between contracts that are equivalent to capacity sales, whereby electricity sales
allowing the buyer a certain degree of flexibility concerning the volumes delivered are considered
transactions falling within the scope of ordinary operations from transactions that are equivalent to
written financial options, which are accounted for as derivative instruments.

Only contracts that meet pll of the above conditions in steps one and two are considered as falling
outside the scope of IAS 39. Adequate specific d is compiled to support this analysis

H.S Embedded Derivatives — An embedded derivative is a component of 8 hybrid (combined)
instrument that also includes a nonderivative host contract, whereby the effect of a portion of the
cash flows of the combined instrument vary similarly to a stand-alone derivative. The Company’s
contracts that typically contain embedded derivatives are contracts with clauscs or options affecting
the contract price, volume, or maturity. This is primarily the case with contracts for the purchase or
sale of nonfinancia) assets, whose price is revised based on an index, the exchange rate of a foreign
currency, or the price of an assct other than the contract's underlying.

Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for as derivatives when:

(i) The hybrid instrument is not measured at fait value through income

(i) 1f scparated from the host contract, the embedded derivative fulfills the criteria for classification
as g derivative instrument (existence of an underlying, no material initial net investment,

settlement at a future date)

(iii) Its characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contract
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The analysis of whether or not the characteristics of the derivative are closely related to the host
contract is made when the contract is signed,

Embedded denivalives that are separated from the host contract are recognized in the consolidated
statements of financial position at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in income
(except when the embedded derivative is part of a desi d hedging relationship). As of
December 31, 2012, the Company had no embedded derivatives that required bifurcation recognized
into the financial statements.

H.6 Hedging Instruments: Recognition and Presentation — Derivative instruments qualifying as
hedging instruments are cecognized in the consolidated statements of financial position and
measured at fair valuc. The ing for these i varies according to whether
they are classified as (i) a fair value hedge of an asset or liability or an unrecognized finn
commitment, (ii) a cash (low hedge, or (iii) a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation,

(i) Fair <»__.5 hedges are defined as a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a recognized
lity, such as a fixed-rale loan or borrowing, or of assets and liabilities, or an
E:dnomégm firm commitment denominated in a foreign currency. The gain or loss from

ent of the hedging instrument et fair value is recognized in income. The gain or loss
on the hedged item atrributable to the hedged risk adjusts the carrying amount ol the hedged
item and is also recognized in income even if the hedged item is in a category in respect of
which changes in fair value are recognized through equity. These two adjustments are presented
on a net basis in the net financial loss line item of the consolidated statements of income, with
the net effect corresponding to the meffective portion of the hedge.

(i) Cash flow hedges are hedges of the exposure to variability in cash flows that could affect the
Company's income. The hedged cash flows may be attributable to a particular risk associated
with a recognized financial or nonfinancial asset or 2 highly probable forecast transaction, The
portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument determined to be an effective hedge is
recognized directly in equity, net of tax, while the ineffective portion is recognized in income.
Gains or losses accumulated in equity are reclassified to the consolidated statements of income
under the same caption as the loss or gain on the hedged item (i ., current operating income for
operating cash flows and financial income or expenses for other cash flows) within the same
periods the hedged cash flows affect income. When the hedging relationship is discontinued due
to the hedge no longer being considered effective, the cumnulative gain or loss on the hedying
instrument remains separately recognized in equity until the forecast transaction occurs,
However, when a forecast transaction is no longer probable, the cumulative gain or loss on the
hedging instrument is recognized in the line item on the consolidated statement of income where
the forecasted transaction was expected to be recorded

(jii) Hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation is similar to a cash flow hedge, whereby the
portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument determined to be an effeclive hedge of the
curency risk is recognized directly in equity, net of tax, while the ineffective portion is
recognized in income, The gains or losses accumulated in equity are transferred to the
consolidated statements of income when the investment is sold.

H.7 Derivative Instruments Not Qualifying for Hedge Accounting — These items mainly concem
derivative i used in ic hedges that have not been, or are no longer, documented as
hedging relationships for accounting purposes. When a derivative instrument does not qualify, or no
Tonger qualifies, for hedge accounting, changes in fair value are recognized direetly in eamings,
under mark-to-narkct on dity other than trading i inthe lidated
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staternents of income for derivative instruments with nonfinancial assets as the underlying, and in
financial income or fi ial exp for currency, interest rate, and equity derivatives. Derivative
instruments used by the Company in connection with proprietary energy trading activities and
energy trading on behal £ of customers and other derivatives expiring in less than 12 months are
recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position in current asscts and current
liabilities.

H.8 Fair Value of Financial Instrumenis and Derivatives — The Company’s nontrading financial
instruments and derivatives consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
accounts payable, debt instruments, interest-rate swap agreements, currency swap agreements, and
commodity instruments. The book values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, and
accounts payable are rep ive of their respective fair values due to the short-term nature of
these instrumnents. The fair valuc of debt, related-party receivables and payables, interest-rate swap
agreements, and currency swap agreements, and commodity instruments are discussed in Note 14,

Property, Plant, and Equipment — Propetty, plant, and equipment is stated at cost and includes
all expenditures necessary Lo prepare an asset for operation, including qualifying interest incurred
during the construction period, less subsequent depreciation and impaitment, except for land, which
is shown at cost, less impairment. In accordance with IAS 16, Property, Plant, and Equipment, the
initial cost of an item of property, plant, and equip includes an initial esti of'the costs of
dismantfing and removing, the item and restoring the site on which it is located, when the entity has a
present legal or constructive obligation to dismantle the item or restore the site. A commesponding
provision for this obligation is recorded for the amount of the asset component (see Note 2 Q 1).
Property, plant, and equipment acquired by financing leases are valued at the lower of market value
or the present value of the related minimum lease payments

In accordance with the components approach, each significant component of an item of property.
plant, and equipment with a different useful life from that of the main asset Lo which it relates is
depreciated separately over its own useful life.

Depreciation is computed using straight-line methods over the following estimated useful lives of
the assets:

Main Depreciation
Pariod (Years)

Minimum Maximum

Plant and equipment:
Generating plants and cquipment:
General component (engineering, steam turbines and boiler,

gas turbines, etc ) 15 50
Turbine and rotor blades 4 30
LNG equipment:
Processing terminal 20 50
Vessel 18 40
Other property, plant, and equipment 2 30

The Company applies 1AS 23, Borrowing Costs, as amended, whereby botrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the construction of the qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of
thai asset,
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Costs incurred in connection with acquisition or devel efforts are exp d until such time as

the Company determines that it is probable the project will be acquired or developed. Once it is
determined that acquisition or development of 8 project is probable, certain incremental costs related
to the project are capitalized. The Company reviews these costs periodically and, if it is determined
that a project has no future economnic benefit, these costs are expensed.

The Company has entered into various long-term service and 5552 agreements whereby it pays a
periodic fee for routine mai major mai and rep vent of specific parts
under the various agreements. The fees paid under these agroements that _.a_-_o to parts and rnajor
5»53:58 are _.oooa& E a prepaid expense Ea included in other current assets in the

of financial position until the mai is vn_.na_.EnF at
which time 3@ sre reclassified o Property, plant end p 1 major mai services are
performed for an amount above the propaid balance, a liability is Encz_& for that payable due and
is included in trade and other payables in the panying of financial

position. Fees related to routine maintenance arc oxpensed when incurred.

Impairment of Property, Piant, and Equipment and Intangible Assets — In accordance with
[AS 36, Impairmen! of Assets, impairment tests are carried out on items of property, plant, and
equipment and intangible assets when there is an indication that the assets may be impaired. Such
indications may be based on events or changes in the market environment or on internal sources of
information, ltems of property, plant, and equipiment and intangibles are tested for impairment at the
level of the individual asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) as determined in accordance with

1AS 36.

1f any such indication of impairment exists, the Company makes an estimate of its recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value, less costs to sell, or its value in
use. [n assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are adjusted for the risks specific to
the asset and are discounted to the present value using a pretax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money. Upon gnition of an impai loss, the d iabl
amount, and possibly the useful life of the praperty, plant, and equipment item, are _.nsmnn

I lossesarer ded in the impairment of property, plant, and equipment and intangible

assets line in the consolidated statements of income.

Impairment losses tecorded in relation to property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets may
be subsequently reversed if the recoverable amount of the assets is once again higher than their
carrying value. The increased carrying amount of an itern may not exceed the cartying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized in prior
periods (see Note 8).

Goodwill — The Company accounts for acquired goodwill in accordance with IFRS 3 and
subsequently accounts for goodwill in accordance with 1AS 38, /ntangible Assets. Goodwill is
measured as the excess of the aggregate of (1) the consideration transferred; (2) the amount of a
noncontrolling interests in the acquiree; and (3) in a business combination achieved in stages, the
acquisition-dated fair value of the previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over the net of the
acquisition-date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. Goodwill
recognized on the acquisition date cannot be subsequently adjusted and that relating to interests in
associate companies is recorded under investments in associates in the consolidated statements of
financial position. Goodwill is not amortized, but tested for impairment each year, or more
frequently, where indicators of impairment are identified. Impairment losses on goodwill cannot be
reversed and are shown under impairment of property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets in
the consolidated statements of income. Impairment losses on goodwill relating to associate
companies are reported under share in net income of associates in the consolidated statements of
income,
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Intangibles — The Company carries intangible assets at cost, less any accumulated amortization
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Revenue Recognition — Revenues from the sale of electricity and thenmal power are recorded
based upon output delivered at rates specified under long-term power supply contracts, rate orders,
or market-based prices determined by the rolated power exchange. Capacity pay received by
the Company under certain _Sﬁ -term energy contracts arc fixed, rather than being based on

1 The fixed over 45 term o».___u contract. _= accordance with IAS _w
Revenue, from these gnized on a straight-line basis b in

the fair value of the services rendered n_oou not vary from one vn_.zx_ to the next. ' '

Revenues from the sale of natural gas are recorded when delivered at rates specified in the related
purchase and sale contracts. The Company charges negotiated prices for natural gas, which, in
certain instunces, are subject to federally regulated price caps. Natura) gas is sold under either firm
or interruptible service agreements. Commodity revenue from natural gas sales is recognized as
natural gas is delivered_ Call payments associated with provision of firm services arc recognized as
natural gas is delivered or the right expires,

The Company reports replacement power sales required under long-term power sales contracts, net
of the replacement power purchases in the consolidated statements of income in accordance with the
guid inl1AS 1, Pr ion of Fil jal St and [AS 18,

With the exception of natural gas revenues discussed above, sales of physical gas are reported net
with physical gas purchases for plant and retail operations in the consolidated statements of income.

GSERNA’s revenue from the sale of electricity to commercial and industrial customers is from sales
contracts that are fixed price, index, or a combination of the two to minimize price risk for the
customer. Revenues booked are based on a combination of estimated accruals (for unbilled
revenues) and actual energy bilied

Unbilled revenues are accrued each month based on estimated volumes delivered to each customer,
but not invoiced. As additional information becomes available, GSERNA revises its estimated
revenues telated to prior periods and records the resalts in subsequent periods. Factors that affect the
estimate include weather and an analysis based on historical usage or trends. GSERNA believes that
the estimates and assumptions utilized to recognize revenues are reasonable and represent its best
estimates, Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Leases — The Company halds assets for its various activities under lease contracts, These leases are
analyzed based on the situations and indicators set out in IAS 17, Leases, in order to deterrnine
whether they constitute operating leases or finance leases. A finance lease is defined as a lease that
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the related asset to the
lessee. All leases that do not comply with the definition of a finance lease are classified as operating
leases. The following main factors are considercd by the Company to assess whether or not a lease
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership: whether (i) the lessor
transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term; (i) the lessee has an
option to purchase the asset and, if so, the conditions applicable to exercising that option; (iii) the
lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the asset; (iv) the asset is of a highly
specialized nature; and (v) a comparison between the present value of the minimum lease payments
and the fair valuc of the asset concerned,
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Assets held under finance leases are recorded as ﬂ_dvn:v.. v_n:r and equipment and the related
liability is recognized under borrowings in the li 9 of fi ial position, At
inception of the lease, finance Ieases are recorded at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased
asset oz, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Payments made under operating leases are expensed in other operating expenses and amortized on 8
straight-line basis over the lease term.

IFRIC 4, Determining Whether an Arrangement Coniains a Lease, addresses the identification of
services and lake~or-pay sales or purchasing contracts that do not take the legal form of a lease, but
convey rights to customers/suppliers 10 use an asset or a group of assets in return for a payment or a
series of fixed payments. Contracts meeting these criteria are identified as either operating leases ot
finance leases. In the latter case, a finance receivable is recognized to reflect the financing decined
to be granted by the Company where it is considered as acting as lcssor and its customers as lessces.
The Company is affected by this interpretation mainly with respect to certain energy purchase and
sale contracts, particularly where the contract conveys to the purchaser of the eneryy &n exclusive
right to use a production asset,

9

Income Taxes — The Company p taxes in
countries where the income is taxabie.

with prevailing tax legislation in the

In sccordance with 1AS 12, deferred taxes arc recognized in accordance with the __._9_5 method on
temporary differences between the cartying amounts of nu_o.u and liabilities e.a their tax basis,
using tax rates that have been d by the lid of fi | position date. No
deferred taxes are recognized for temporary diffe anising from goodwill for which impairment
losses are not deductible or from the initial recognition of an asset or lisbility in a transaction which
(i) is not & business combination and (ii) at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting nor
taxable income. In addition, deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
tuxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized.

Un?:.nm tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary diffe iated with

in Jiaries and i in joint except if the Company is able to control
the timing of the temporary differcnce reversal and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Net balances of deferred tax are calculated based on the tax position of each company included
within the consolidated statements. Deferred taxes are presented in assets or liabilities for their net
amount by tax jurisdiction by tax entity.

Deferred taxes arc reviewed at each consolidated statements of finencial position date to take into
account factors including the impact of tax law changes and the prospects of recovering deferred tax
assets anising, from deductible temporary differences

Foreign Curreuncy Translation — The Company’s lidated fi ial are p d
in U.S. dollars, which is its functional currency. The results and consolidated financial vom:_o: ofall
the no_.—.__um:u\ s entities that _._N<o a finctional currency different from the presentation currency are

t d into the p y as follows:

(a) Assets and liabilities for each consolidated statements of financial position item presented are
translated at the closing rate at the consolidated statements of financial position date
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(b) Income and expenses for cach consolidated statements of income arc translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average isnotar ble approximation of the lative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions)

(c) All resulting exchange differences are recognized as a component of equity

eﬁ:;:._v.nno:mo_anmo:on?no4...mn_.C:. .. . &m.n_d:onu
arising from the translation of the net investent in foreign entities, and of borrowings and ather
currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to consolidated statements
of equity. Translation differences previously recorded under equity are taken to the consolidated
statements of income upon the disposal of a foreign entity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the year-nd exchange rate.

Provisions — The Company records a provision where it has a present obligation (legal or
constructive), the settlement of which is more likely than not 1o result in an cutflow of resources,
and the amount can be reliably cstimated.

Q.1 Asset Retivement Oblig — The Company ts for asset rebirement obligations in
accordance with IAS 16, and [AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. In
accordance with [AS 37, the Company records the fair value of an asset retirement obligation as a
liability in the period in which it ioE.u 8 legal obligation ?.. the retirement of tangible long-lived

asscty, led with a corresp g asset that is depreciated over the life of the asact. In accardance
with IF RIC 1, Changes in bnnaa.xs:eixm. Restoration and Similar Liabiilties, after the initial
measurement of the asset reli ion, the liability will be adjusted, or d, during

each reporting period to reflect changes i in the estimatcd ?Ea cash flows underlying z.n obligation
(see Note 16).

Q.2 P 1pl Benefit Oblig and Other Long-Term limplayee Benefits — The
Cormpany's obligations in _.o_BQ._ to pension Ea o:;o—. employee benefits are recognized and
measured in compliance with 1AS 19, Employ A dingly, the cost of defined
contribution plans is expensed based on the amount of contributions payable in the period. The
Corapany’s obligations concerning defined benefit plans are assessed on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and Josses resulting fiom changes in actuarial
ﬁmcau:o:m and experience m&__m:._._n:m are recognized directly in equity and are shown in the

> d of comprehensive income.

Share-Based Payments — Under IFRS 2, Share-based Payment, share-based payments made in
consideration for services provided are recognized as personnel costs. These services are measured
at the fair value of the instruments awarded. Share-based payments may involve equity-settied or
cash-settled instruments. The Company does not have its own share-based compensation plan, but
participates in the plans of its Parent. As the shares are granted by GDF SUEZ, the Company
follows IFRS 2 guidance regarding group share transactions.

R 1 Stock Option Plans — Options granted by GDF SUEZ to employess of the Company are
measured at the grant date using a binomial pricing model, which takes into account the
charactenistics of the plan concemed, market data at the time of grant, and a behavioral assurnption
in relation to beneficiaries. The value determined is recorded in personmel costs over the vesting
period, offset through equity.
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R.2 Share Appreciation Rights — In 2007, GDF SUEZ began to grant employees in the United
States share appreciation rights (“SARs") instead of stock options, SARs are also granted with
certain employee share purchase plans. SARs are settled in cash. Their fair value is expensed over
the vesting period of the rights, with an offsetting entry recorded in employee-related liabilities.
Changes in the fair value of the liability are charged to income for each period.

R.3 Shares Granted to Employees — The fair value of bonus share plans is estimated by reference to
the share price at the grant date, taking into account the fact that no dividends are payable over the
vesting period, and based on the estimated turnover rate for the employees concemned and the
probability that GDF SUEZ will mect its performance targets. The fair value measurement also
takes into account the nontransferability period associated with these instruments. The cost of shares
g d 1o employces is expensed over the vesting period of the rights and offset against equity.

R.{ Employee Share Purchase Plans — GDF SUEZ’s corporate savings plans enable employecs to
subscribe to shares at a lower-than-market price. The fair value of instruments awarded under
employee share purchase plans is estimated at the grant date based on this discount awarded to
omployees and nontransferability period applicable to the shares subscribed. The cost of employee
share purchase plans is recognized in full and offset against equity.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Choctaw Gas — Chactaw Gas Qeneration LLC (“Choctaw Gas") was sold on February 7, 2012 for
cash proceeds of $94.9 million and deferred payment of $162.8 million (§173.7 million discounted at
7%). In June 2012, the Company received $1.4 million in cash as a working capital true up, and received
the deferred compensation on January 18, 2013. The transaction resulled in a pretax gain of $4.7 million,

The components of the pretax gain from the sale are as follows (in thousands):

Intangibles $ 7924
Property, plant, and equipment 243,082
Total assets disposed 251,006
Cash procecds on sale date 94,931
Working capital true-up payment 1,427
Deferred payment to present value 162,776
Net proceeds on sale 259,134
Net assets sold (251,006)
Fees paid (3.464)
QGain on sale § 4664

In Decermber 31, 2011, the Company had $248 million net assets held for sale and an impairment roversal

of $32.1 million, consequently, the net asscts sold in 2012 were adjusted per the final sales agreement.
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Hot Springs — Hot Springs was sold on September 10, 2012 for $263.3 million, teking into account a
working capital true-up of $8.1 million related to the scholarship fund, resulting in net proceeds of
$255.2 million. The transaction resulted in a pretax loss of $8.7 million.

The components of the pretax loss from the sale are as follows (in thousands);

Intangibles $ 6,215
Plant, property, and equipment 260,921
Total assets disposed 267,136
Financial liabilities (8.087)
Total liabilities disposed (8,087)
Cash proceeds on sale date 256,989
Taxes paid 4,731
Net proceeds on sale 255,252
Net assets sold (259,049)
Fees paid (4.873)
Loss on sale 3 _(8,670)

In December 31, 2011, the Company had $255.2 million net assets held for sale and an impairment
reversal of $8.7 million, consequently, the net assets sold in 2012 were adjusted per the final sales
agreement,

Colorado Encrgy Nations — On November 29, 2012, the Company entered into a new Energy
Service Agreement (“ESA”) with MillerCoors, LLC (“MillerCoors™) to provide all steam and electricity
output as required by the buyer from the generation facility located on buyer's brewing facility (the
“Facility”). The steamn and power will be delivered to buildings which MillexCoors hes leased to the
Company according to rates in ag . The ESA stipulates that at the end of the term of the
agreement, MillerCoors will purchase the Facility for $30 million. Further, MillerCoors may, as a
retedy of non-performance, purchase the plant for $30 million discounted from September 14, 2020 to
the date that MillerCoors exercises this option. The result of the transaction is that the Company is
leasing the asset to MillerCoors. The Company assessed the lease under IFRIC 4 and 1AS 17 and
concluded that it should be accounted for as a finasice leage. Therefore, a finance lease receivable was
recorded in the amount of $89.7 million and deferred revenue of $67 3 million. [n addition,

$13.1 million of property, plant, and equipment and $3.2 million of goodwill was disposed. Finally, 8
liability of $9.1 million was Jed to recognize the obligetion to make certain capital expenditures to
inaintain the property over the term of the lease. The loss recognized in 2012 is $2.9 million.
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Divestiture of Mexico Entities — On July 3, 2012, GENCO completed the sale of its investments in
Tractebe! Energia, S.A. de C.V. (Panuco) and Tractebel Encrgia de Altanvira, S.de RL. de CV
(Altamira) to affiliates, GDF SUEZ Energia Generation Holdings B. V. and GDF SUEZ Energy Asia,
Turkey & Southern Asia B.V. As a result of the sale, Panuco and Altamira are no longer legally
consolidated with GENCO. The profit and loss for the year through July 3, 2012 for these entities
remained on the IPGSNA’s consolidated statement of income. The loss recognized on sale in 2012 is
$19 million.

Cash and cash equivalents § 3,968
Trade and other receivable 2,682
Property, plant, and equipment — net 18,106
Deferred tax asset 556
Notes receivable 23,604
Other assets 2,302
Total nsscts disposcd 51,218
Trade and other payable 2,026
Provisions 657
Deferred tax liability 1,206
Other liabilities 1,114
Total liabilities disposed 5,003
Net assets disposed $ 46215
Consideration received $ 52,068
Goodwill aliocated to disposal (14,567)
Cumulstive exchange loss in respect of the net assets of the subsidiaries (10,674)
Loss on sale $(19,388)

DEGS — On July 31, 2012, GENCO soMd its interests in the joint ventures with Duke Energy
Generation Services (“DEGS” - Ashtabula, Delta, Energy Equipment Leasing, Lansing, Lafarge,
Rochester and Tuscola) for total procecds of $56.8 million less a contingent liability of $6.3 million,
resulting in net proceeds of $30.5 million. C ly, the Company recognized a protax loss on sale
of $8.2 million.

Net assets of the following entities: Ashtabula, Delta, Energy Equipment Leasing, Lansing, Lafarge,
Rochester and Tuscola at the date of the sale are as follows (in thousands):
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Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,157
Trade and other receivable 3,270
Property, plant, and equipment — net 27,420
Inventory 3,266
Investment in associates 305
Intangible assets 2,236
Other assets 6,744
Total asscts disposed 47,398
Trade and other payables 1,886
Financial liabilities 2,150
Total liabilities disposed 4,036
Net assets disposed $ 43,362
Cash proceeds on sale date $ 56,832
Contingent liability (6,264)
Net proceeds on salc § 50,568
Goodwill allocated to disposal (13,703)
Fees (1,666)
Loss on sale § (8163)
Other — In April of 2011, a new _ni entity was fonned, GDF SUEZ wane_ m=n..r< Solutions, LLC ?
subsidiary of GSERNA), to cond iness for small ial and j ._._.n praject
has entered the ion phase, developing new lined p and purposed-designed sy
suited to serving the small customer segment.
On February 3, 2011, GDF SUEZ purch Imately 70% of the ding stock of IPR. At

that time, the Company and IPR's North American subsidiary Intcrational Power America, Inc.
(“IPA") were considered to be under common control. On July 29, 2011, all outstanding shares of IPA.
were contributed to the Cornpany, such that [PA became part of the Company’s legal and tax

lidation, The acquisition of 1PA resulted in an increase in equity of $1.96 billion. The contribution
to revenue and net income from the date of acquisition of IPA to Dx ber 31, 2011 was $889 million
and $119 million, respectively. If the acquisition had taken placc on January 1, 2011, the consolidared
revenue and net income would have been 56 6 billion and $244 million, respectively. On June 29, 2012,
QDF SUEZ completed the acquisition of the remaining 30% of non-controlling interest in IPA. GDF
SUEZ now holds 100% of the voting rights of the International Power Group.

During 2005, one of the C y's subsidiarics, Neptune LNG LLC (“Neptune™), d that it
was p g the devel t of a deep port for LNG deliveries in fedcral waters approximately
10 miles off the coast of M husetts. The project includes specialty built LNG ships, » buoy system,
and a connection to an existing pipeline. The ships are owned by en effiliate, end in January 2010, the

C d into a subcharter agr chartering the GDF Suez Neptune from an affiliate for a
vn:om .m.o:.. January 24, 2010 to December 31, 2012. The total final costs incurred and capitalized by the
Company related to this project were $406.3 million at December 31, 2012. The majority of the project
was placed in service on April 1, 2010 and an additional $66 million related to the north buoy was
placed in service in April 2012,
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The Company is custently exploring plans to suspend the Neptune Decpwater Port License for 5 years.
Preliminary conversations are being held with regulatory officials. The Company does not believe the
suspension of the license will result in any changes to the cash genevating units or potential impairment
of the facility.

On May 1, 2010, the Northfield Mountain hydro fecility began the drawdown of its upper reservoir es
part of a planned dewatering outage that was scheduled to last 23 days. The cost estimates for the
projects were approximately $2.4 million, During the drawdown of Northfield’s upper reservoir, a
significant quantity of silt migrated to the intake channel and into the pressure shaft intake structure, The
removal of the silt, especially from the tailrace, was more challenging than initially anticipated and total
costs incurred were $47.7 million, of which $27.3 million was capitalized and $20.4 million was
expensed in 2010, The station returned to service on November 21, 2010.

The Company filed an insurance claim for business interruption insurance for lost revenue as well as a
claim for property d related to complications from the drawdown of its upper reservoir in 2010.
For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, $26.8 million and $17.1 million of insurance
proceeds, respectively have been received as part of a comprehensive settlement of all remaining issues
gssociated with its claim. The Company recorded the proceeds as a reduction to other operating

on the consolidated of income

P

The Company was recently subject to tax audits by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) for tax ycars
2004-2009, The 2004-2007 IRS field audits were closed in 2011, The 2004-2005 audit closed with an
assessment of $4.5 million, of which $4 million relates to repairs and maintenance disallowance, which
will be recovered in future years, The 2006-2007 audit closed with an assessment of $3 million, of
which $1 million will be recovered in future years, The were paid in December 2011. The
Company established a $50 million reserve for these audits in 2008, and in 2010 and 2011, portions of
the reserves were relcased for issues that were effectively settled at the field level, The 2008-2009 tax
years remain under audit, and an audit of 2010 commenced in 2012, The Company believes it has
adequate provisions under 1AS 37 for the remaining audits (see Note 5.4.2).

REVENUES

The Company’s revenues for the years ended Decernber 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows (in
thousands) (see Note 2 M):

2012 2011
Revenues:
Electricity and thermal $4,315,818 $4,991,444
Natural gas 1,158,324 1,600,870
Gross margin ftom energy trading (2.544) 5,541)
Total revenues b uuad _mom 3 o_m wm_qqu
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INCOME TAXES

5.1.1. Breakdown of Income Tax Expense — Income tax expense for 2012 and 2011 consisted of the
following (in thousands):

2012 2011
Current benefit $ 7,505  $(20,770)
Deferred expense 65,835 106,727
Provision / (benefit) for income taxes $73,340 $ 85957

Current income tax expense (benefit) includes $(3.6) million and $8.1 million in net taxes relating to
prior periods and $3.2 million and $(20) million relating to unrecognized tax benefits in 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Deferred tax expense (bencfit) includes $(4.9) million and $(20.2) million relating, to prior
periods; $(5.9) and $11.2 million related to unrecognized tax benefits in 2012 and 2011, respectively.

5.1.2 Reconciliation to Theoretieal Income Tax Expense — A reconciliation between the theoretical

income tax expense (benefit) and the Company’s actual income tax expense (benefit) is presented below
(in thousands):

2012 2011

Computed “expected” tax exp at 35% $63,301 $116,960
Increasc (dcoreesc) in income taxes resulting from:

State and local incoms taxes — net of federal benefit 6,652 3,248

Other income taxed at a rate lower/higher than standerd cate - 1,359

Change in unrecognized tax benefit, related 1o net operating losses (5.939) 11,216

Revisions in estimates of deferred taxes 3,179 (15,930)

Impact of other permanent differences 2,29 (23,455)
Change in tax reserves 3,230 (6,035)

Other 626 (1,406)
Provision for income taxes $73340 5 85,957

In 2011, the effective tax rate is lower than the standard rate primarily due to 8 permanent difference on
the gain on disposal of the Canadian subsidiaries and revisions in estimates of deferred 1axes that relate
primarily to state rates on IPA items, partiaily offset by an increase in unrecognized tax benefits related
to net opereting losses. In 2012, the effective tax rate is higher than the standard rate primarily due to
state taxes and gain/loss differences on disposal of entities partiatly offset by a decrease in unrecognized
tax benefits.
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5,13 Deferred Tax Expense by Nature — Imp on the idated of income for the
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows (in Bc..mﬁn_.&

2012 2011
Deferred tax assets:
Loss camryforwards $(176,349) S 28260
Accruals and allowances 31,634 309
Investments in parmerships 56,883 (27,573)
Tax credit carryforward, including FTC, AMT
and Section 45 credits (7,472) 7,081
Other 2,853 (13,009
Impact of deferred tax assets 92,451 4,932)
Deferred tax liabilities:

Deprociation 130,150 91,350
Derivative instruments 29,652 21,687
Other (,516) 418

Impect of deferred tax liabilities 158,286 111,659
Net deferred tax expense S 65835  $106,727

5.2 Incomve Taxes Recorded Directly into Equity — At December 31, 2012 and 2011, changes in
deferred taxes recognized directly into equity resulted from cash flow hedges and net investment hedges
are as follows:

2011 Change 2012
Cash flow hedges 574,206  $(49,469) $24,737
Net investment hedges - - -
Total $74206  $(49,469) 524,737

.29.

5.3 Deferred Income Taxes — Analysis of the net deferred tax position gnized in the
of fi ial position at Dy ber 31, 2012 and 2011 (before netting of deferred tax assets
and liabilities by tax entity), by type of temporary difference is as follows (in thousands):

2012 2011
Deferred tax assets:
Loss canyforwards § 384,225 $ 218,296
Accruals and allowances 62,646 94,280
Derivative instruments - 66,422
Investments in partnerships - 10,182
Tax credit carryforward, including FTC, AMT
and Section 45 credits 14,567 7,095
Other 7,881 10,734
Gross deferred tax assels 469,319 407,009
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization (824,734) (694,584)
Derivative instruments (12,699) .
Investments in partnerships (46,701) -
Other - 6,211
Gross deferred tax liabilities (884,134) (700,795)
Net deferred tax liabilitics $(414815)  $(293,786)

A total of $398.8 million in deferred tax assets were recognized in respect of tax losses and tax credit
carryforwards at December 31, 2012, The Company estimates that these cammyforwards will be utilized
over the next ten years. The company also has $159 million of loss carryforwards which are not

ized in the of financial position at D ber 31, 2012 due to uncertain tax positions

and the pectation that the Company will not have taxable profits in certain state jurisdictions (see Note
54.1).
Deferred taxes are reported in the lidated of financial position as of December 31, 2012
and 2011, as (in thousands):
2012 2011
Noncurrent deferred income tax asset $ 359 8§ 2238
Noncurrent deferred income tax linbility (418,414) (296,024)
Net deferved tax liability $(414815)  $(293,786)

The 2012 net change in deferred tax liabilities is $121 million, which is $55 million higher than the
reported net deferred tax expense, is mainly attributable to the deferred taxes recorded through equity.

5.4.1 Deductible Temporary Differences aot Recognlzed in the Ci lidated Stn of

finsnclal position — The Company had unrecognized tax benefits relating primarily to federal loss
carryforwards, state logs carryforwards and other deductible state temporary diff in the of
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$168 million and $171 million &t December 31, 2012 and 2011, regpectively, that, if recognized, would
decrease the effective tax rate.

The expiration dates for the unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2012, are presented as follows
(in thousands):

Years Ending Ordinary
December 31 Tax Loss
2013 S 1,124
2014 2,963
2015 1,604
2016 1,337
2017 and beyond 161,451
Total $ 168,479

The Company transferred its stock in its Canadian subsidiaries to an affiliate in 2011 and it transferred
its stock in its Mexican affiliates in 2012, Therefore, as of December 31, 2012, the Company has no
undistributed earnings upon which it has not provided deferred taxes.

5.4.2 Uncertain Tax Positions — A reconciliation of the Company’s uncertain tax positions as of
December 31, 2012, is as follows (in thousands):

Unrecognized
Tax Benefits
Balance — December 31, 2011 $124,573
Dy related to sett] with taxing authorities (8,949)
Incrcases based on tax positions prior to 2012 10,640
Balance — December 31, 2012 $126,264
Tax i y reserves for in tax positions are accrued when assessments indicate that it is

probable that a liability has been incurred and an amount can be reasonably estimated. Uncertain tax
positions of $15.3 million and $8.7 million are recorded in current provisions in the consolidated
of fi ial position as of Dx ber 31, 2011 and 2012, respectively. The remaining

uncertain tax position balance of $109 million and $117.5 million for December 31, 2011 and 2012,
respectively, isincluded in deferred taxes duc to the Company’s federal net operating loss position
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

‘The Company’s intangible assets as of Decemnber 31, 2012 and 2011, were as follows (in thousands):

Intangible Accumulated Camying

2012 Asset Gross Amortization Impaimment  Amounts
Power purchase agreements $338,449 $(289,178) § - $ 49271
Fuel, administrative, operating and

maintenance, and other contracts 10,015 (8,533) - 1,482
Water rights and other 30,041 (7.805) (4,387) 17,849
Total intangible assets $378,505 $(305,516) $(4,387) § 68,602
2011
Power purchase agreements $338,449 $(264,448) $ - $ 74,001
Fuel, administrative, operating and

maintenance, and other contracts 32,312 (15,388) - 16,924
Leaseholds 21,573 (21,573) - .
Noncompete agreements and other 44,315 (10,946) (5,137) 28232
Total intangible assets $436,649 $(312,355) $(5,137) $119,157

The majority of the Company’s intangible assets have finite lives as they are celated primarily to
contracts, and are amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the respective contracts, which
range from 15 to 30 years, or are matched to scheduled fixed-price increases under the power purchase
agreement, The Company has intangible assets of $13 million related to water dights with indefinite
lives, as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the assct is expected to generate net cash
inflows

Chanpes during 2012 are attributable to amortization of power purchase agreements and fuel and other
contracts, the removal of fully amortized expired contracts, and the writeoff and the disposal of the non-
compete agreements relating to the DEGS assets (see Note 3), The carrying amount for the remaining
power purchase agreements for NELP and Oyster Creek joint ventures are being amortized over the life
of the contracts through 2016 and 2014, respectively. Amortization expense for mtangible and other
assets for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, was $37.4 million and $32.4 million,
respectively.
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7.

GOODWILL

Goodwill is the cost of a busi bination over the Company’s intercst in the fair value of
identifiable assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities at the acquisition date. Goodwill is tested for
impairment each year as of June 30, and upon review of triggering events in the sccond half of the year.
No impairment of goodwill has been ded through D ber 31, 2012, Mo in the carrying
amount of goodwill at Decemnber 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows (in thousands):

At January 1, 2011 $ 908,353
Acquisitions 597,000
Disposal of subsidiary (63.101)
Transtation adjustments _ 1084

At December 31, 2011 1,440,336
Disposal of subsidiaries (31.424)

At December 31, 2012 $1.408912

‘The 2011 acquisition is from the acquisition of 1PA (see Note 3), and the 2011 disposal is from the
transfer of the common stock of 6425496 Canada Inc. to an affiliate. The 2012 disposal is from
divestiture of the Mexican subsidiaries ($14.6 million), divestiture of DEGS joint ventures

($13.7 million), and disposal of assets at the Colorado Encrgy Nations ($3.2 million) (sce Note 3),

All goodwill CGUs have been tested for impairment based on data as of June 30, 2012. The calculation
of the recoverable amount of CGUs is determined using discounted cash flows (“DCF™) and the carrying
amount of the assets, The discounted cash flow method uses cash flow forecast covering an explicit
period of six years and resulting in mediwm-term business plan approved by the corresponding business
unit’s business controllers and CEQ. When the discounted method is used, value in use is calculated on
the basis of three scenarios (“low,” “medium,” and *high™). The “medium” scenario, which management
deems most probable, is usually preferred. The CGUS, as determined in accordance with [AS 36, are the
primary subsidiaries listed in Note 1, with the exception of GSEMNA. GSEMNA is not considered a
stand-alone CGU because it does not have separate assets and the only cash flow that GSEMNA will
independently generate is related to trading and origination, which does not rely directly on physical
assets,

The recoverable amounts determined under the three above-mentioned scenarios are generated by
modifying the key assumptions used as inputs for the underlying models, and particularly the discount
rates applied. The discount rates applied are determined on the basis of the weighted-average cost of
capital adjusted to reflect business, industry, country, and currency risks associated with each CGU
reviewed, Discount rates correspond to a risk-free market interest rate and risks specific to the asset for
which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. The Company uses estimates and
assumptions in calculating the recoverable amount. 1€the key assumptions or estimates change, the
recoverable amounts may be different

The major assunplions used to review the recoverable amount of the CGU are as follows (in thousands):

Carrying
Amountof  Measurement Discount
Cash — Generating Units Goodwill Method Rate
TPGSNA — Gas $ 245,449 ner T2%
TPGSNA — Guncrativn 1,155,460 DCF 52%tw835%
IPGSNA — Relail R,003 LCF 9 0%

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

8.1 Movements in Property, Plant, and Equipment — Movements in property, plant, and equipment
at December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows (in thousands):

Plant and Finanes  Conalrucion
Land Equipment  EAP Aszely Leases in Progresa Total
Groas book value — January |, 2011 = at
conl % 65,600 § 7404,692 32197 3 487084 5173998 $ 3,183,048
Additionn 0 36282 . . 249,201 285,561
Additions due to acquisition of IPA 24020 2,907,636 . . BORI? 1012773
Dirpaxals . (16043 219M) @407 @054) Q42178
I ransliess 61,629 124,604 - 2508 (187.450) 1,261
Fald for Bale (440 (904,485) . (),386) 906,319)
Danponal of Cenudian submidiury (08) (592,788) . - (A.R12) (398,365)
Lranslation . (18,592) . . Q20) (18712)
Cron book wulug — Desember 31, 2001 —
1 coal 130,493 B.840,67% . SUTARS SOB.110 9,796,769
Addinons . 25468 . 162,813 1RR241
Dispouls ) (91.49) 2 (760) 30 ©2.752)
I ransfers . 286,784 1904 (293.569) (4.382)
Dispom] of DIiGS sad Mexico anutic . (44,720 - - (44,720
Grous book valur — December 31,2012 —
al cost $150422 $ 9,016,262 s - $ 488,629 $ 177,384 S 9.832.695
Aceumuluicd depreciation and
impairmenl — January |, 201} $ (228)  S(1856,619)  S(ILSM S (98.975) 5 (37.469)  $(2,004.805)
82,956 1153t 421 680 95,588
.22 . 119.709) 355 ®2.132)
5,753 . . . 5753
= (1,262) . . . (1.262)
Held for salc - 439,553 . . . 419,553
Thyposl of Cunodion subsidiary - 151,780 . . 151,780
Charge for the year - (418,025) an 9.927) - {422,967
Accumulated dupreciation
and impairment — Docember 31, 2011 (228) (1.558,640) - (28,190) (36.434) (1.823.492)
Dispocals 55208 - 246 1 55,454
Tmpuirment (57,700) - . (57.700)
Lransfars . 5392 - 76 (586) 4,882
Dispoual of Canacian subsidiary B - - z
Charge for the year - Q%578 __(3.661) - (404.239)
Accumuinted deprecialion
znd impaurment — December 31, 2012 5 28) 5(1950318) § - $237530) 5 (370i9)  ${2.225.095)
Carying amount
Jonuacy 1, 2011 $ 65372 $ 5,548073 S 10460 $ 388,109 5 136529 $ 614,543
Deconher 33, 2011 150.267 7,282,039 - 259295 271676 7963217
Meembey 31,2012 150,194 7,063,544 - 251,099 140,365 7,607,601

In 2012, the Company recorded net impairment expense of $56.9 million, prsnarily related to the
impairment at Mt, Tom Generating Company, LLC. Decrease in gas prices is viewed as a triggering
event that is negatively affecting the value of the Mt. Tom facility, The plant remains in operation due to
a Forward Capacity Market obligation. This unit is expected to be mothballed in 2014 duc to low gas
prices and uneconomic dark spread (the difference between power prices and the cost to generate
electricity with coal).
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In 2012, $18.0 million of grants were received from the U.S, Treasury Department for capital
investments made by the Company with respect to energy efficiency projocts. As the grants received
related to acquiring tangible fixed assets, the Company has elected 1o net these proceeds them from the
cost of the fixed assets (o which they relate and depreciate over the life of those assets.

1n 2011, the Company recorded net impairment expense of $82.1 million. During 2011, the Choctaw
Generation, LP (“Red Hills") facility experienced operational issues that impacted its near lerm financial
liquidity, and was not ful in obtaining agr from the lessor on funding for needed capital
improvements to the facility. Due to these triggering events and Red Hills continued net losses, an
impairment enalysis was performed, and an impairment loss of $119.7 million was recorded to reduce
the carrying value of the facility to its fair value based on discounted future cash flows. Impairment
associated with Syracuse was $3.2 million as of December 31, 2011. The Company dctermined that both
Choctaw Gas and Hot Springs facilities met held-for-sele criteria in 2011. Fair value of theso assets
based on expected sale prices resulted in a | of impairment of $32.1 million for Choctaw Gas and
$8.7 million for Hot Springs. Impairments taken prior to January 1, 2011, totaled $585.4 million.

In 2011, disposal of assets, net of $8.7 million is comprised of a gain of $3 million from the sale of the
E&P assots, and losses of $11.7 million primarily related to the major outage replacement of
compaonentized parts that had not been fully depreciated.

1n 2012, disposal of assets, net of $28.2 million is comprised of a gain of $4,7 million related to the sale
of Choctaw Qas, and losses of $8.7 million related to the sale of Hot Springs, $13.2 million related to
ges turbine compressor disposal at Bellingham, $4.1 million related 10 unit compressor disposal at
Armnstrong and Troy, $2.9 million related to lease amendment with MillerCoors st Colorado Energy
Nations, and $4 million related to insignificant asset disposals at several other plants,

The Cornpany accrued u total of $1 million and $2.8 million in construction costs for property, plant,
and equipment in 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Company also transferred $24.5 million and

$12.8 million from other current mysets to property, plant, and cquipment related to meintenance
performed under long-tenn service agreements (LTSAs) in 2012 and 2011, respectively (see Note 2 1).

8.2 Capital Commitments — In the ordinary course of opcrations, the Company has entercd into
coimmitments related to the purchase or construction of property, plant, and equipment. The Company’s
projected committed capital expenditures are as follows (in thousands):

Development commitments at FirstLight 5 13,393
Maintenance — LTSAs 406,900
Total $420,293

FirstLight started a construction project at its Northfield facility that will involve the overbaul of each of
the motor-generator pump turbine units. The project includes strengthening of four rotors, three new
turbines, four new generator windings, refurbished poles in existing units, and a new transformer. The
project is expected to increase the rated capacity of each unit by 22 megawatts and also increase energy
production efficiency and began in January 2011 with a planned completion date of May 2014.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company have entered into long-tecm warranty agreements with Siemens and
LTSAs with multiple vendors that provide for routine mai major mai and repl
of specific parts covered in the agreements. The terms of the agreements vary.
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9.

Borrowing costs cag d on constructi

progress expenditures were $1.1 million and $1.2 million
in 2012 and 2011, respectively.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
9.1 Breakdown of 1 In Assoclates — Breakd of i in iates as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows (in thousands):
Cartying Amount ot Share in Net Incomai{Loas)
In of Assoclates
P N, 3, O M, D 2,
Interest 2012 2014 2012 2011
Aslonia Project Partners 11 LLC 2775% Y7.583 105,526 (314) (4.598)
SUEZ/VWNA/DEGS of Lanaing LLC 392 . 259 306 "2
Shreveport Red River Ulilities, LLC w2 2,008 2,293 222 47s
Tolal s ao.mwx $108.074 S _4i4 P M ERINN

9.2 Key Figures of Assoclates — Key figures of associates as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as
follows (in thousands):

Perceantsge Total Nat
2012 Intsrest Assem Liabilitles Revenues  Incama
Astoria Project Partners I} LLC 27.75%  $1.216920 $1.260,739 $133.218 s 1105
SUEZ/VWNA/DEGS of Lansing LLC 39.2 - . 2,961 1,292
Shrevepont Red River Ulilities, LLC 392 8,766 - - 566
Tolal $1222686 51260739  §136179  § 2.963

Percentage Total Nat
2019 Interest Asnets. Liabilties  Revetives  Income
Astorla Project Paniners 11 LLC 2775%  §12554TR  $1.2555B4  $ 64493  §(9,002)
SUEZ/VWNA/DEGS of Lansing LLC 392 2430 1,768 5,071 2072
Shreveport Red River Ulilitics, LLC 392 5.958 109 1,956 1213
Totsl $1.263.866 $1.257.46) $ 71.520 $(5.71D

The Compary adjusts its share of net income of associates for the depreciable portion of the premium
paid for its investment in Astoria 1I.
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10. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 11. INVENTORIES

‘The Company accounts for its interest in joint ventures .E:m 9n Ed_uo:._oau_ consolidation method. Major classes of inventory at December 31, 2012 and 2011, were as follows (in thousands):
Contributions of joint to the Company’s are as follows (in
thousands): 2012 2011
Currant Current A Tn Currant Net LNG inventory $ 23,147 $ 16,767
Percaniage Assabn Assats Uabllides  Uubilites  Revenues Incoma (Loss) Natural gas and other fuel m:<n=3_.v. 132,894 133,961
Ay Docenber31.2012: Spare parts 80,273 78,802
Nertheaal miﬁ 50%  S28920  SI960R2 5 44 SIBGESI 9 78766 521,548 Green certificates 8,275 7,361
i..sosr. One Partnership 50 533 97 465 . 1,788 1,208 G b [¢ iesian all v 39,336 34,929
8 4803 63l 1219 2,027 1278 m Other inventary 1 82
“M . - - - - 343 "M“
SUBZ-DEGS af Ashtabis, L1.C 5l 2 . i i 6125 S Total inventaries $284682  $272,662
SUEZ-DEGB af Rochasier, LLG o . . . 3,708 m
e e ) .- : ] : o o The Company hed fair value adjustments of its natural gas inventory of $1.4 million and 5(6.1) million
Owinga Mills Encegy as of Decernber 31, 2012 and 201 1, respectively.
N Pt o N H . M N ) It 79
SUBZ-DRQA of Tusoola, L1, . = . . N 2
Frocport Power Limilod iy N9 OIS 158 7968 K285 2,828 12. OTHER ASSETS

* The Company wold |ts intcrost dunng 2012 12,1 Other Noncurrent Assets — Other noncurrent assets at December 31, 2012 and 2011, were as

follows (in thousands):

Current Curent v Currant Nat
Pa Assen  Assats  Liabiites Uabiiles Revenues Insome (Lot
At Dosomber 31, 2011: roang A - e glasomaions| 2012 2011
Northosst Encrgy LP 0%  $33.020  S108016  SINGST 547791 $114M08  $33,793
Winoonki One Parincrahip 50 a7 2m 620 : 2104 1,301 9—_«_. noncurTent assets:
?._.._wo m.__w._.ar nussuﬂ —SUEZ, 0 2002 a6 - .- 1309 - | executive reti plan cash surrender value $14,831 $13,645
Gl ) y . g . Wndv_ trust 25,250 22,851
4 19 2527 2424 n 640 367 | g
807 DEGS e ,.a o e y ! ‘ i Prepaid broker fecs 620 188
SURZOROSof Recbemr Ll 31 1mae awm ow S R Sl 23 17088
XIS of Rogl "y Lol N - < -
SULZ-DIS of Silver Grove LG~~~ 51 203 2373 o ; %0 39 Long:term restricted cash _19,028 18,908
wcs__mu.umn"_u ,_,u_.Qs._w. MillsLLC I 5054 FEAY) 59 - 544 31
E:.__E 3!.: .__.L_Mﬂrrn . . b e R - . Total other noncurrent assets $59,962 $74,420
SUEZDEQS of Tuscols, LLE st 6783 9455 189 . 10932 428
Frocport Nower Limliod 0 20,560 97059 16738 16R%0 97,533 23983 12.2 Other Current Assets — Other current assets at December 31, 2012 and 2011, were as follows (in
thousands):
After the sale of the DEGS assets (see Note 3), the Company retained both SUEZ-DEGS of Owings )
Mills LLC and Owings Mills Energy Equipment Leasing LLC, with Duke Energy Generation Services 2012 20114
Holding Company, Inc. (“DEGS™), each partner has 50% of the voting rights, but either 51% or 49% of
the rights to the earnings and net assety of the venture. Other current assets:
Prepaid expenses $55,412 $ 51,447
IPA has 8 50% interest in Freepoct Power Limited (*Oyster Creek™). After the scquisition of IPA, Oyster Current taxes 8,589 3,595
Creok is proportionslly congolidated. Other current assets 10,617 7,360
Current portion of loan receivable 5,300 -
Total other current assets §79.918 3 62,402
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS OTHER THAN DERIVATIVES

13.1 Financial Assets — The Company’s financial assets are classified under the following categories
at December 31, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands):

2012 2011
Noncurrent  Current Total Total
Trade and other receivables — net $90,074 $651,303 $741,377 $496,057
Short-term notes receivable
from affiliates - 25,748 25,748 305,497
Cash and cash equivalents - 119,108 119,108 189,621
Total financial assets $90,074  $796,150  §886233  $LI7S

13.1.1 Loans and Receivables Carried at Amortized Cost — Loans and receivables carried at
amortized cost at December 31, 2012 and 2011, were as follows (in thousends):

2012 2011
Noncurrent  Current Total Total
Trade and other receivables — net:
Trade debtots 5 - $365,062 $365,062 $224,585
Trade-deb related - 74,405 74,405 33,635
Unbilled revenue - 170,722 170,722 189,022
Allowance for doubtful accounts - (6,383) (6,383) (6,032)
Loans and teceivables carried at
amoritzed cost — NC 50,074 - 90,074 -
Collateral cash — asset - 47,497 47,497 54,847
Total trade and other
receivables — net 90,074 651,303 741,377 441,210
Notes receivable from
affiliates — cash pool - 25,748 25,748 305,497
‘Total $90,074  $677.051 $767,125 $801,554
Margin ivable and payable rep primarily cash on deposit with or received from
counterpasties and brokers to satisfy margin (cash collateral) requirements with respect to financial and
forward Such deposits will be refunded back to the Company or the counterparty at the time in
which all obligations under the have been fulfilled.

13.1.2. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash — The Company’s financial risk

ap! policy is described in Note 2 H. Cash and cash equivalents totaled $119.1 million and
$189.6 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, which includes restricted cash of
$122 million at December 31, 2012, and $19.3 million at December 31, 2011, and excludes noncurrent
restrictod cash of $19.0 million and $18.9 willion at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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13.2 Financial Liabilities — Financial liabilities include borrowings and dcbt and trade and other
payables, s well as financial derivative instruments which are reported in the derivative instruments line
items in the consolidated statements of financial position.

The Company’s financial liabilities other than derivative mstruments at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
are as follows (in thousands):

2012 2011
Noncurrent Current Total Total

Borrowings (Note 15,
financial debt and borrowings) £3,688,542 $585,071 $4,273,613 $5,409.162
Trade and other payables - 346,394 346,394 480.492

Total $3,688,542 $931.465 $4,620,007 $5,889,654

13.2.1 Trade and Other Payables — Trade and other payables at December 31, 2012 and 2011, were
as follows (in thousands):

2012 2011

Noncurrent  Current Total Total
Trade accounts payable 38 - $176,022 $176,022 $£186,926
Accounts payable — related party - 29,537 29,537 36,623
Collateral cash - 4,151 4,15) 51,971
Accrued expenses - 136,684 136,684 204,972
Total 5 - $346,3%4 $346,394 $480,492

13.3 Fair values — Fair values reflect the cash that would have been received or paid if the instruments
were settled at year-end, The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and
trade and other payables are not materially different from their carrying amounts because of the short-
term nature of these instruments and/or because the stated rates approximate market The fair value of
variable rate debt approximates book value due to the variable nature of the rate,

At December 31, 2012 and 201 1, the Company’s carrying value of long-term fixed-rate debt was
$3.3 billion and $2.2 billion, respectively, with estimated fair values of approximately $3.5 billion and
52,3 billion, respectively (in thousands):

2012 2011
Carrying Falr Carrying Falr
Value Value Value Value
Long-term fixed-rate debt $3,266, 739 $3,516,243 $2.207,225 $2,303,656
240 -



14.

RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

14.1 Risk Management Activities — Trading — The Company employs various types of derivatives
including futures, forwards, swaps, options, and other physical and financial instruments for the
purposes of risk management and trading activities. The trading activities include both exchange-traded
and bilateral coniracts. GSEMNA conducts those trading activities to generate profits on short-term
differences in market prices, This frading activity is centered on commodities and geographical areas in
which the Company has an assct presence. Trading activity is govemed through the usc of various
limits, including value at risk (VaR), deal tenor, and location restrictions. GSEMNA also serves as a
market marker for the other affiliates by fulfilling those affiliates” hedpes requirements.

Tn accordance with IAS 39, the Company accounts for all derivative-trading activity at fair value under
the mark-to-market method of accounting, with changes in the value of open positions recorded through
income, Because GSEMNA conducts its trading activity to generate profit from short-term movements
in market price, the assets and liabilities are recorded at market value, net of future physical delivery-
related costs and reserves, as current assets and liabilities in the derivative instruments line items in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

The Company utilizes gas storage in its trading activities. Consequently, the Company includes the fair
value of its trading gas inventory in the derivative instruments line items in the consolidated statements
of financial position,

The Company records both realized and unrealized profit and loss from trading activities in revenues in
the consolidated statements of incorne.

14.2 Risk Management Activities — Nontrading — In addition to trading activity, the Company
utilizes a variety of financial and physical instruments to mitigate its exposures (o market risk created by
the Company’s physical generation, retail clectricity, UNG, and financing activities. Those market risks
include exposures to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, and energy and
energy-related dity prices. N ding risk activities arc broadly defined by two
major categories — financial and commadity.

As described in Note 21, the Company entered into warrant agreements under which it will receive cush
to settle its liability incurred via stock appreciation rights issued to employees. The Company accounts
for those warrants as derivatives under 1AS 39. The fair valuc of the warrants as of December 31, 2012
and 2011, was $0.9 million and $2.1 million, respectively, which was included in the derivative
instruments line items in the lidated of financial position. The Company recognized the
wanants’ change in value in personnel costs. The counterparty to those warrants is an investment-grade
entity, and those warrants will continuc to scttle in 2012 through 2015. Note 21 further discuascs the
warrants along with other share-based transactions.

Financial Risk Management Derivatives — The Company ges its exp to fl jons in
foreign currency exchange rates and interest rales in its financial rigk management activities. The
Company uses interest-rate swap ag to cffectively convert a portion of its floating-rate debt to a
fixed-rate basis, thus reducing the impact of interest rate changes on future income These agreements
involve the receipt of floating-rate in exch for fixed-rate interest payments over the life of
the without an exch of the ::uniua:m principal amount n«:!: interest-rate minnw are

accounted for as cash flow hedges. In 2011, the cash flow hedge ref hips previously desi d

related to interest payments at the Hot Springs power facility was disq lificd b the d

interest payments are no longer expected to occur. Additionally, in 2011, the cash flow relationship
related 10 interest payments on outstanding debt at Firstlight was de-designated due to a possible
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refinancing on the associated debt. In 2012. equity in the amount of $(15.8) million was reclassified to
m-_w:n_w_ cxpense when the interest rate swaps were terminated. The debt that gave rise to the hedged

d interest rate pay ts was terminated concurrently with the interest rate swaps. See
“Accounting for the change in Risk Management Derivaiive Values™ below.

The Company limits its exposure to foreign currency fluctuations by entering into foreign currency swap
agreements, which effectively fix the exchange rates of liabilities required to be settled in currencies
other than the U S. dollar and cross-currency swaps to hedge investments in foreign currencies. In 2011,
the Company had a net investment hedge of its exposure to fluctuations in Canadian dollars from its
controlling investment in Ventus Energy Inc., which settled in 2011, The Company also designated
foreign currency swaps as fair value hedges of the foreign currency risk of issued Eurobonds which also
settled in 2011, The Company recognized no ineffectivencess from these hedging relationships.

Commodily Risk Management Derivatives — The Company manages commodity price risk arising from
changes in its natural gas sales revenue, LNG costs, fuel costs for running its power-generating facilities,
and future electricity prices related to certain of its power-generating facilities and retail electric supply.

The Company uses commodity futures and swaps to hedge price risk exposure on future sales of
vaporized LNG under a designated cash flow hedge program. Under the futures and swaps, the
Company receives a fixed price and pays 2 floating price, respectively, which effectively fixes the price
the Company expects to receive for its future natural gas sales, The Company settles those swaps in
cash, vather than by physical delivery of natural gas. The Company recognizes the realized pains and
losses on its commodity swap contracts that qualify as cash flow hedges when the related vaporized
LNG is sold.

The Company uses commedity futures and swaps to hedge price risk exposure on future sales of LNG
under a designated cash flow hedge progran. Under the futures and swaps, the Company receives a
fixed price and pays a floating price, respectively, which effectively fixes the price the Company expects
to receive for its future NG sales, The Company scttles those swaps in cash, rather than by physical
delivery of natural gas. The hedged forecasted transaction are sales of liquid LNG, the price of which is
referenced to average naturul gas prices from the year prior to physical delivery. The Company
recognizes the realized pains and losses on its commodity swap contracts that qualify as cash flow
hedges when the related LNG is sold. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, $8.1 million and $5.1 million
of equity (net of deferred taxes) remained in the lidated of financial position to be
recognized when the LNG sales referencing the prior year gas prices are made.

In 2009, the Company began purchasing LNG at a price indexed to natural gas, with a reference to an
average of settled gas prices for the six months preceding the start of the calendar quarter in which the
LNGis uc_.n_..nuoa. Natural gas futures and swaps were used 1o fix the price of the purchases, The
Company recognizes the realized gains and losses on these natural gas futures and swaps that qualify as
cash flow hedges when the refated LNG is v_..qnswmnn. As of December 31, 2011, $(7.8) million on.ss.:.v~
(net of deferred taxes) ined in the ¢ of i ial position to be recognized in
2012 as LNG purchases that reference 2011 gas prices are made. The purchase contract being hedged
under this u_.cﬁ.w-: expired in 2012, -:oqnmoa as of December 31, 2012, no equity amoums cemaincd in
the lid of fi | position related to future LNG purchases.

The Oo_.:vna periodically sells natural gas option contracts. These contracts give a third party the right
to exercise a call option to purchase quantities of natural gas from the nc_.:vw:v. ata »von_mnn price, for
o specified duration, In return, the Company receives nonrefundabl P are
recognized as revenuc in the vn:om the option expires or is nxo_.n_won_ The no:.ﬁua tecords its
outstanding options at fait value in the balance sheet and recognizes changes in fair value in net incorne.
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‘The Company also owns certain transportation tights for gas in the northeastern portion of the United
States. Because the Company has established a history of reselling portions of that transportation, the
Company marks those transportation positions to market.

The Company uses commodity swap and option contracts, forward physicals, and futures to manage its
price risk exposure related to natural gas purchases for its power plants. Under the swaps and futures, the
Company pays a fixed price and receives a floating price, which effectively fixes the price it will pay for
the gas.

The Company enters into commodity swap contracts and forward physicals to mitigate its exposure to
the effect of changes in future clecimicity prices on its power plants’ sales. Under the swaps, the
Company pays a variable price and receives a fixed price, which effectively fixes the price to be
received for the electricity,

The Compeny uses swaps and forward physicals to mitigate the exposure 10 forward electricity price
changes on its forecasted electricity purchases necessary to satisfy its retail sales load under a designated
cash flow hedge program. Under the swaps, the Company pays a fixed price and receives a floating
price, which effectively fixes the price the Company pays for the electricity. The Company accounts for
qualifying hedges of its forecasted electricity purchases as cash flow hedges.

During the reporting period, there were no instances of a forecasted transaction in the Company’s
various commodity cash flow hedging programs that the Company no longer expects to occur.

Financial Position Treatment — The Comparty accounts for its nontrading derivatives at fair value on
the consolidated of fi ial position in accordance with IAS 39. A summary of the
Company's trading and nontrading derivative short-tenn and long-term assets and liabilities as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, is as follows (in thousands):

2012 2011
Noacumrent  Cusant Total Total
Derivative asscls ot fair valuc through income:
Derivative instrumenis (including commodity
derivatives) — trading $ « 85 622 § 6222 $ 32,04
Derivalive i (includi 5
derivalives) — undesignated hedges 96.488 186.967 283455 298,864
Derivalive i ial 81,866 16,120 97,986 132,081
Derivative i designated Financials Hedpes 1718 918 2.636 . 6420
Total derivalive asscia at fuir value through income 180.072 210.227 390299 469,439
Designated hodges:
Commodity 15,606 25854 41,460 119770
Financial - - - .
Total demignuicd hedges 15,606 25.854 41.460 119.770

Total derivative asscly

-
I
\n
3
=

$236.081 $431.759 $589.209
_—

.43

2012 2011
Nonamremt  Curment Tolal Total
iabilitica at fair valuc throngh income:

Derivative instrumens (including commodity

derivalives) — trading 5 - $ 22014 22014 $ 17232
Derivative i Gincluding "

derivatives) — undesignated hedges 61.754 121,276 183,030 253226
Derivalive i — ial 19.631 6113 25,744 20,054
Derivative instruments — financial . - - 47,755

Tolal derivative liabiliLics at air value through income 81,385 149,403 230,788 338264

Designated hedges:
Commodity 24.418 97,931 122349 262,303
Financial 637 4283 4920 10,999
Total designaled hedges 25,055 102214 127 269 273,302
Total derivalive liabilitics $106,440 5231617 $358.057 $611.566

The Company's current and noncurrent derivative assets and liabilities at fair value by type as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows (in thousands):

it w1
Asseny Cabiices Assenn Liabiiises
Current  Moncument Currant Nooturmant  Cermen!  Noocurreal Curnent Mancurmant
Designaled hedges
Nutwoul pas
FormaneMurex 8 - s - 5 (524) % s 49 s - $ @ s -
Swap 2569 2723 85964 23806 (1,589 (L168)

Es
EE_,._m-. C% N.E H:xxv . gc_u Nu..sm ?@ H:S
Elwtricily’

(23,230)

Forwardw/futures 14,194 10,813 (54,110) {11,130 12,223 4,682 (96.824)
Swap 5,355 3932 (38,584 13013) = 252 101,267 22.113)
Towl
elecinaly 20,549 14.745 92.694) (24,144 12223 4.934 (198.091) (55.843)
Financial
Intero muie . a.283) 37 . . ©,57) (4,429
Fnchonge N . . N . . .
Jouu)
Gagneis] - (4.28)) ©3n - - 16970 4.429)
Other (2,264 1,862) {4,233 274) 5598) {1207 1,046 250)
l'ots| designated
hedgan 525834 $15.606 $(lo2214 $(25.058) $92.233 327,533 $Qi1615)  3(61686)




Iﬁr_@ll 1
LT — L7, Llabdiities

Carrant  Poncisrenl Cutrunt Nencerrini Curmt Nencumenl =) Honcerreal

Underignated hedges:
Nalurs) gas
Porwardw/luturcs  § 21,977 § 33078 $ (4638) 5 (6249) 8 14771 § 25640 S (0668 S
Options. 1347 - - - 31,804 20,130 (296) -
Swap 76,520 20358 _(29.201) _ (26B4)  _ 27,527 45094 104130 _ a9
Toual nslural
wan 121,968 62,13 (33,839 (13979 74.102 90865  _(11L,191) 7,425
Elkeetricily:
Forward:/(utures 41,620 29,855 (43,186) {30,802) 33,159 10,603 {58,562) (28.980)
Opliony m . (684) (3S) 950 . (286) 62
Swap 29804 4062 _(42329)  _ (11864) 74,263 noly (235 (11,920
Total
eleetricity 71,535 29T _(B6I9 (42751 108412 621 _(BLIE}) _(40962)
Warranis (Note 211 415 567 . a5 1,695 .
Financial:
Exchange 918 [t - . - . . .
[nterest rale - . - - 1,040 5380 22,303) 25.452)
Toda] financial 918 1,718 - - 1,040 5,380 _(22303) (25.452)
Other 6951 (729 (1239) (5.030) 3812 (2,0%) 11.058) 035D
{roding assets
ond liabilitics 6.222 - {22,014) - 32,074 - 13,232y
Commarcial
contrcls 16,120 41,866 (6115 19,631y 41,430 90,631 784 2210
Total undesignated
derivatives $210,227 §180,072 5(149,403) S (81,3k%) 3261335 $208,103 S(250.808)  $(XT456)
Grand Total

all devivatives  $236 081 $195,678 3251617y 5(106.440) $261.335 $208.103 $(250.808)  $(¥7.456)

Co ial contracts marked to market as disclosed in the above table refers to contracts that support
the Company’s core business lines, but are required to be marked to market under 1AS 39, as they are
not scoped out of [AS 39 under the “own use™ scope exception and they do not qualify as hedges,
Examples include medium-term and long-term sales of natural gas with volumetric variability,
renewable energy credit sales, and certain transportation capacity contracts. The realized income or
expense from these cial contracts rep the physical settlement of these contracts at contract
prices, and is recorded in gross margin with the remainder of the Company’s commercial activity,

The “Other” line in the table above is made up predominantly of liquidity reserves that are used to adjust
the fair values of derivative instruments from midmarket prices to bid and ask prices as appropriate for
purchases and sales, respectively. The liquidity reserve and other netting adjustments in the above table
are allocated to assets and liabilities based upon the relative values of current and noncurrent assets and
Jiabilities. As the table above is segregated into more categories than used on the balance sheet, the value
of individual assets and liabilities before allocation of the liquidity reserve is different in the table above,
and thus the allocation of the liquidity reserve is different in the table above than the allocation used for
the balance sheet. This allows for the total fair value of each of the assets and liabilities in the table
above to match the balance sheet asset and liabilities, while still reflecting the gross assets and liabilities
by category and type in the table above

Accaunting for the Change in Risk Management Derivative Values — The Compeny inmediatcly
recognizes changes in the fair value of non-hedge derivatives in “Mark-to-market on commodity
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contracts other than trading instrunents™ line of the lidated of i The Company
applics cash flow hedge accounting, to certain of its financial and dity rigk

derivatives and applied fair value hedge accounting to certain of its financial risk management
derivatives, which settled in 2011,

The Company recognizes the changes in fair values of dertivatives appropriately documented as cash
flow hedges of forecasted trensactions in equity until the hedged transactions occur and are recognized
tn earnings. The following table shows the year in which the Company expects the derivatives that it has
designated as cash flow hedges to affect eamnings. The first tabie discloses the notional amount of the
commodity hedged forecasted transaction (in gigawatt hours (“GWh™)) and the second table discloses
the notional amount of the financial instrument hedged forecasted transactions (in thousands):

Year of Eamings } ct (GWh

2013 2014 2015 2016 + Total
Commedity:
Natural gas (3,098) (1,966) (787) - (5.851)
Electricity 16,219 4,974 1,258 635 23,086
Total commodity hedges 13,121 3,008 471 635 17,235
Year of Eamings impact {000’s)
2013 2014 2015 2016 + Total
Financial hedges — expected
swap settlemenls $ 1,022 $ 92 $ 183 5 - $ 1,297
Total financial hedges 3 1022 $ N $ 183 5 - $ 1,297

“Natural gas” amounts include forccasted transactions related to both natural gas and LNG. The figures
in the table above related to financial hedges are the gross expected variable leg of future swap
settlements and are designed to demonstrate the amount and timing of impacts to eamings. As the
financial hedges are highly effective, the swap sett) rep a ble approximation for the
hedged forecasted transaction.

The Company formally assesses, both at inception and at least quarterly thereafter, whether the
derivatives that are used cash flow hedging relationships have been highly effective in offsetting the
changes in the cash flows of the hedged item and whether or not there is a reasonable expectation that
the hedges will continue to be highly effective on a prospective basis. The ineffective portion of a
hedging derivative’s change in fair value is recognized in eamings in the pedied of change. When it is
determined that a derivative ceases to be a highly cffective hedge, the Company discontinues hedge
accounting.



The movements in other comprehensive (loss) income resulting from the Company’s cash flow hedge
activity, including the recognition of ineffectiveness in eamings as of Decemmber 31, 2012 and 2011, are
as follows (in thousands):

2012 2011
Cther comprehensive (loss) mcome movements:
Losses recognized in equity — effective portion of the hedge $(65,073)  $(109,749)
Gains reclassificd from equity into income — settlement 189,161 105,140
Profit and loss — gains (losses) recognized for
hedge ineffectiveness 1,681 7,162

In 2011, the Hot Springs power facility was deemed held-for-sale and the Company determined that at
the time of the facility sale, the debt associated with that facility would be repaid, thus terminating, all
interest paytnietits that had been designated as the hedged items in a cash flow hedge. As such, the
Company reclassified ${10.4) million from equity to eamnings related an interest rate hedye that was
disqualified due to the hedped forecasted transaction not being expected to occur. The amount is not
reflected in the table above.

Also in 2011, one of the cash tlow hedge relationships was de-designated due to a possible refi

of associated debt for FirstLight, In 2012, equity in the amount of $(15.8) million was reclassified to
financial expense when the interest rte swaps were terminaied The debt that gave rise to the hedged
forecasted interest rate payments was terminated concurrently with the interest rate swaps, The $(15.8)

million is included in “Gains reclassified from equity into income™ in the table above.

A ing for the Settl of Risk Manag Derivatives — When the Company realizes ils mark-
to-market assets and liabilities related to its nontrading risk management activities, it records that sctticd
result in operating earnings. The Company reflects electricity and steam sales as revenue and records the
cost of purchasing fuel commodities to satisfy those sales in purch lidated

in the c ! of
income. For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded $(148.4) million and
$(48.6) million, respectively, in gross margin for the settlement of risk management derivatives,

including both desi d and undesi d hedges.

Other Commodity Contracts — All of the Company’s physical electricity capacity sales contracts and
the majority of its retail electricity sales are own-use contracts, which 1AS 39 requires to be accounted
for on an accrual basis.
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The Company's trading and nontrading financial and commeodity derivative results as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, are as follows (in thousands);

1012 2011

Expensan income Net Expeaven Mreome [
Finkned cost on bormuwings
Inlorest on groxs borrowinga, including
sustanloe and other foen $(273853) S 5084 $(268,709) S27.281) 8 - $(327.281)
Runk anil other intersal income (®8.310) 13,922 5612 (8.308) 1,760 (5,548)
Cainh ond losse an hedgea of barrowings (34,908 31,962 (22,046} (10,208 9.541 [(24])
Financial {esponac) incoma 03707 0968 286,10 (48797 12301 11,496)
Commedily derivalive (lo) income:
Unreuled change in undemgnated hedgon - 36,706 35,706 (16.522) - (16.522)
Devignated hedpe inelfoetvonats - 1,68} 1,581 (7.162) - (1.162)
Unrealized ehange in value of commorcial
contracts markod b mathd (45.995) 3.021 (42.974) . 19.806 19,806
Mark to mark on eommodiiy
voniracin ather than Lrading
indlrumenty {43,998 41,408 (4.587) {23,084 39,806 16,122
Cruss rarin (rom cneegy trading (Nole 4) 2,544 - S4e 3541 - (5.541)
Tolal financin) {expenss) income $(385610) 392.376 @924 5(375022)  $52,107 $(322915

14.3 Market Risk — The Company’s cormmodity and financing activities subject it to the risk of
changes in forward commodity prices, interest rates, and foreign currency exchange rates. To manage its
risks, the Company has established and monitors various controls, GSEMNA has established a risk
committee composed of bers of senior that meets at least monthly to analyze any
transaction that is not explicitly approved by GSEMNA’s documented hedging policies. The Company’s
trading activity is governed through the use of various limits, including VaR, deal tenor, and location
resirictions, which the risk committee periodically reviews and updates. VaR measures the Company’s
maximum exposure to an economic loss on its commodity portfolio over one-day holding period. It is
not an indication of expected results. The Company measures VaR at a 99% confidence interval.
Trading VaR includes the risk attributed to positions executed in connection with trading activities, with
the exception of the Company’s storage-trading positions. Storage-trading activity includes storage
capacity contracts, stored physical gas, and derivatives, such as swaps, futures, and options that arc used
to optimize the value of the stored gas. Storage activity is governed by volumetric and tenor limits.
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The Company's VaR measurements for its trading portfolio as of Decernber 31, 2012 and 2011, are as
follows (in millions):

Trading

Opening VaR:

January 1, 2012 5 0.18
Ianuary 1,2011 0.55
Clasing VeR:

December 31, 2012 0.13

December 31,2011 0.18
Average VaR:

Decernber 31, 2012 0.58

December 31, 2011 0.34
Maximum VaR:

December 31,2012 1.50

December 31, 2011 0.77
Minimum VaR:

Deceinber 31, 2012 0.16

December 31, 2011 0.12

Market _._ur E,_m:_n from noBE_&_Q derivative instruments utilized in risk management activities is

w d, and ged using sensitivity analysis, together with other market risk exposure
indicators. These uo:u_zsq analyses are calculated based on 8 fixed portfolio of risk management
derivatives at each year-end and may not be ily repr ive of future ch in income and
equity of the Company. The analyses are determined excluding the impact of commodity purchase and
salc contracts entered into within the ordinary course of business (“own-use™ no:n.no_uv To calculate the
impact of potentlal price movements on the value of the Company's uon:.o__o the price movements
shown in the table below are upplicd to all fixed price tr ions open in the comrespondi dity
at year end. No potential price movement is applied to open basis contracts that swap the v_._oa of the
samo noaaon_q at different locations, mn__q_:,_iw. of income to market risk arises mainly from
econamic hedges not eligible for hedge accounting under IFRS (in thousands).

2012 2011

Pretax  Prutax Pretax Pretax
Price Impacton  Impact on Impacton  Impact on
Sensitivity Analysls Movements Income Equity Income Equlty
Fuels (Oil) $10/bbl $(14,616) § - $ (2800) § -
Natural gas $4/MWh (2207 {9,657) 42,897 (48,538)
Electricity $TMWh (84296) 161,611 94,257y 175,900
Coal $10/1on - - 1,550 -
Emission rights $3/ton 278 - 555 -
Capacity S$TIMW (4,199) - 2,761 -
Foreign Exchange $ 02/SCAD 2,172 - 2,746 -

In addition to the commodity risks listed in the above table, the Company is also exposed to movements
in equity balances that are sensitive to changes in forward interest rates. As of December 31, 2012, the
Company has two outstanding interest rate hedges that effectively fix the interest payments under
varigble rate debt. The interest rate hedges are fully designated as cash flow hedges and are highly
effective, thus changes in forward interest rates only impact equity balances. Due to the limited duration
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of the swaps and the current low interest rate environment, a 10% movement in the forwerd rates would
impact equity by less than $0.2 million,

14.4 Liquidity Risk — B the Company’s risk aclivibes contr: Ily obli itto
exchange commoditics and cash flows based on commodity prices at future dates, the no=€n=< is
exposed to the risk that it will not be able to purchase or sell commodities at those dates to fulfill its
obligations, That liquidity risk can limit the Company's ability to mitigatc its market price risk exposure,
The Campany applies a valuation reserve to adjust the fair value of its mark-to-market commodity assets
and liabilities to fair value. That reserve is more fully explained in the faic value of financial instruments
and derivatives section below. The undiscounted cash flows that the Company expects to receive or pay
by the year of expected payment on its derivative contracts as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as
follows (in millions):

<1 Yasr 2 Yeurs IYears 4Years 5 Ymam Total

Deccmber 31, 2012:

Derivative financial liabilitics $(2435) S (670) S$(206) $ (64) S(104) $(3479)

Derivative financiyl sesets 2429 1024 398 174 434 4459

Total December 31, 2012 $ (06) S 354 $ 192 s 110 $ 330 $ 98O
Uonﬂ:_uon i, Nn:_

S(658)  S(1121) $(192) S (67) 8 (94) $(6132)

Derivalive financial asscis 3710 1174 506 273 522 6185

Total December 31, 2011 $ (94.8 S 53 $ 314 $ 206 5 428 3 53

The Compeny manages liquidity risk 935..: n:_v_oS__w a number of internal controls, :E:_& use of
netting und other g s to mi req for posting collateral, and participeting in
vhared working capital arrang with its parent company and affiliated entities. Internal controls
employed include duration lirits on trading and nontrading transactions, limiting and monitoring open
positions by location, limiting transaction locations, and monitoring cash and uses.

14,5 Major C % and Conc ions of Credit Risk — Credit risk relates to the risk of loss
associated with nonperformance by counterparties. The Company maintains credit :ur policies that
govern the management of credit risk. These policies require an cvaluation of a p \ party’s
financial condition, credit rating, and other quantitative and qualitative criteria; ”_.._u evaluation results in
establishing credit limits or collateral requirements prior to entering into an agreement with a
counterparty. Additionally, the Company has established controls to determine and monitor the
appropriatencss of these limits on an ongoing basis. Risk mitigation tools include, but are not limited to,
the use of standardized master contracts and agreements that allow for nctting of exposures across
8..:....5&:3,. rights to margin, and termination upon the occurrence of certain events of default. Credit
such as p [ letters of credit, and margin deposits are also utilized. The
impact of credit Q,.__.an_.:n:w held by the Company to its overall credit exposure is equal to
$83.4 million. Credit exposure is monitored daily and Lhe financial condition of our counterparties is
reviewed periodically. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, the Company held $5.5 million
and $8.63 mllion of cash collateral and posted $2.9 million and $17.6 million of cash collateral with
counterparties, Cash collateral provided to counterpartics is included in the trade and other receivables
item on the balance sheet, and cash collateral held is included in the trade and other payables balance.

Other than cash collateral held, there were no instances in which the Company took possession of
collateral held as security during 2012 and 2011.
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Many of the Company’s power-generating facilitics have one primary utility or industrial customer
under a long-term contract. A cogeneration facility may also have a single industrial customer to which
it provides steam under a long-term contract. The Company does not ao__n.a that these customers

repeesent a significant credit risk. Howover, changes in 4 Y, Or az._un fuctors could have
a significant efTect on the Company's | rel hips. §i ful i ions of these
plants are larpely dependent on the continized perfi by and suppl s of their

bligations under the rel power sales controct and, in particular, on the credit quality of the

_ucar!ﬂ- If o substantial portion o_.__xa. pany's long-term power sales was modified or
1, the Company would be ad affected to the extent that it might be unable to find other

customers at the same _Sn_ of contract a_.om.nz:?

The Company considers an unaffilixed party ap il ion risk if any one

counterparty accounts for 509 of either sales or receivable of any business
unit of the Company as of the end of a reporting period. As of _u.z,h_uan- 31,2012, GSEMNAs Iwo
largest unaffiliated receivable bal | 5% of GSEMNA’s total receivablus, and
GSGNAH's two largest receivable balances represented T2% of GSGNAH's total receivables, OF the
two GSGNAH reccivable balances, one unaffiliated balance represented 50% of the GSGNAH's total
teceivables. The Company did not have any concentrations under this criteria as of December 31, 2011
GSERNA systematically reserves a p ge of its ding receivable bal based on the age of
that balance. GSERNA requires collateral, in the form of cash and letters of credit, from customess
determined to be high risk for delinquency or default. Additionally, GSERNA carries an insurance
policy that pays a portion of its uncollectible amounts

Furthermore, no significant past-duc financial asset is impaired. The Company assesses financial assets
for impairment once those assets have become post due for greater than 60 days. The i impairment

takes into the creditworthiness of Lhe applicabl party and ci that
caused the asset to become past due.

The following table shows the Company's gross and net forward exposures to counterpartics, exclusive
of accounts receivables. Tn 2011, the exposures included the forward value of contracts that receive both
mark-to-market and own-use accounting treatment. For 2012, the forward exposure calculation was

The aging of the Company’s trade receivable exposure without considering the impact of collateral or
ather credit enhancements, if any, held by the Company securing those receivables as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, is as follows (in thousands):

Total Aagount
Receivsbier Current PitOus  Allowanze 1-3Months 3-8 Montha  6-12Munths > 1 Yaar

012 $651.303 5042536 $15,149 31638 S 0dd2 slyod 51,646 $2.257
201 $496057  $473727 3362 $603Y  §20,70) 51,730 51,366 $3475
14.6 Fair Value of Fi isl 1 and Deri — The Company's nontrading financial

instruments and derivatives consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, accounts
payable, debt instruments, interest-rate swap agreements, currency swap agreements, and commodity
instruments. The book values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, end accounts payable are
representative of their respective fair values due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The fair
value of debt and related-perty receivables and payables are discussed in Note 13. See below for details
on the Company’s inlerest-rate swap agreements, CurTency swap agreements, trading derivatives, and
nontrading commodity derivative instruments.

The Company detenmines the fair value of these contracts using quoted prices, forecasted market prices,
Ez_ m?__omn are ilable, valuation models available from industry sources, and eppropriate

methodologies. Certain valuation models include s inputs forward commodity und
basis prices, “which extend beyond the period ..Q. which _E._a market pricing is available. [n those cases,
the Company nxu.nuo_»»om forward price curves incorp ions about lity and

P

volatility of prices and other fuctors specific to E&Snﬁ_ ooaaoa_anm and markets.

The Company classifics the fair value in its consolidated fi il using a fair
value hicrarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The
hierarchy splits measurements in three levels. Level 1 includes only those fair value measurements that
are taken directly from unadjusted quoted prices in active merkets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 includes inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable either directly or
indirectly. Finally, Level 3 inputs arc those that are not based on observable market data, The

Company's fair value measurements by level as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows (in
thousands):

refined to betrer illustrate the impact of netting agr and other enl based on the
reparting methodolopy used by 2 The forward exposure table in 2012 does not include
own-use contracts, In addition, the table 3&_.5» the exp toils1 grade pariies.
“In Grade" ponds fo ons with counterparties with 2 minimum cating of BBB- by
Standard & Poor’s, Bag3 by Moody's, or an equivalent by Dun and Brad taking into the
existence of collateral, letters of credit, and parent company gi (in millions):
2012 2011
Investment Investment
Grade Total Grade Total
Counlerparty exposure:
Groas exposure $ 4290 $431.4 $2788 52844
Net exposure 2141 2141 2783 2839
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fait value by Level as of
December 31, 2012:
Portfolio management:
Derivative assels $161,800 $ 1B4,491 $ 104,609 $450,900

Derivative li
Trading activities:

Derivative assets

Derivative liabilities

Total December 31, 2012

(93,636)  (239.815)

171,228 10,997
(187,649) 10,369

(27,954) (361,405)

. 182,225
- (198,018)

$ 51,743 3 (54,696)

$ 76,655 $ 73,702
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Fair value by Level as of
December 31, 2011:
Portfalio management:
Derivative assets $265,821 $ 385,486 $98,809 $750,116
Derivative liabilities (166,693)  (613,608) (7.012)  (787,313)
Trading activities:
Derivative assets 301,844 23,772 - 325,616
Derivative liabilities (286,804) (23.972) - (310,776)
Total December 31, 2011 $114168  $(228322) $91,797  §(22.357)

Assets and liabilities in the table above reflect the total fair value for all maturities of individual financial
instruments and derivatives, and are calculated based on the fair value of each contract Contracis values
are not preacnted on a net basis by party as on the bal sheet. There have been no transfers of
assets and liabilities between lovels of fair value. The movement of Level 3 values between

December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows (in thousands):

Assaets Liabllities

Level 3 fair value — December 31, 2011 § 98,809 § (7.012)
Gaing (losses) recorded through eamings 20,861 (26,375)
Issues - -
Setilements (15,061) 5,433
Level 3 fair value -— December 31, 2012 $104,609 8(27,954)
Total gains or (Josses) for the period recorded through

incorne statement for derivatives held at December 31, 2012 $(21.337) 827,499
Level 3 fair value — December 31, 2010 $ 80,690 $(22,325)
Gains (losses) recorded through camings 30,954 12,563
[ssues 59 -
Settlements (12,8%4) 2,750
Level 3 fair value — December 31, 2011 $ 98808 5 _(7,012)
Total gains or (losses) for the period recorded through

income statemnent for derivatives held at December 31, 2011 $ 37,860 $ 2139

The gains or losses recorded through carnings and the earnings impact of settlements in the table above
are recorded in the line, “Mark-to-market on commodity contracts other than trading instruments™ line
on the consolidated statements of income. The Company has not recognized a gain or loss from the
purchase or sale of assets or liabilities with a fair value measured using Level 3 inputs.

.53-

The Level 3 fair values for 2011 above include liabilities related to a long-term gas sales contract. The
value of this contract is largely dependent upon the gas price at two locations in the northeast United
States. The pricing information for these locations is considered illiquid. In order to account for the
illiquidity of the prices, the Company reduces the spread between the two locational prices when they
are used for valuing the gas sales contract. The spread reduction is based on statistical analysis of price
movements at each location. If the spread had not been reduced, liabilities would have been

$4.4 million higher al December 3], 2011 The contract settled im 2012.

The Level 3 fair values also include a long-tenm salc of Locational Fixed Reserve Margin (“LFRM™),
The LFRM contract is a financial swap that exists to fix the price thet the company will receive for
providing an ancillary service from a combined-cycle generating facilities to the New England 1SO.
LFRM is a loed-balancing product whereby the company must stand ready to deliver energy in cases of
foad or congestion in the NEPOOL market. The contract tecem is through 2019, and forward prices are
not available for the LFRM market. The price is sct in seasonal auctions, and the most current scasonal
prices are used to value all contract periods. A 10% increese in the capacity price would increase the
asset value of this contract by $2.5 million.

In connection with the market valuation of its fixed-price the Company maintains certain
reserves for risks and costs associated with these future commitments. These reserves represent
valuation n&:ﬁ:.n._: to reflect risks and costs associated with the _BEQQ of ﬁ_._n portfolio and
consideration of the time value of money for long-term li these val
adjustments sdequately adjust the value of the mark-to-market positions to reflect the value that would
be obtained from the liquidation of the positions in an orderly, unforced manner. The Compeny applics
these valuation adjustments to the value of the total portfolio and allocates the reserves to short-term and
long-term assets and liabilities from its trading and nontrading risk management activitics bascd upon
the proportion of each short-term and long-term asset and liability in relation to the total portfolio value.

>&_=a=:=<. the Company reserves material inception gains and losses on products traded in markets
with prices that are not directly supported by readily observable prices supported by a _.:m_, liquid
market, Thess reserves are _.oooa& against the related derivative bal sheet
or ather comprehensive income (if a designated cash flow hedge at inception). mxu:._v_nu

include power deals that include only super-peak hours or basis trades with locetions on limited
liquidity, While the prices used in valuing these deals are genorally derived from observable market
sources, the inception reserves are created under the p ption that ions are dat
market prices. The Company regularly reviews thesc inception reserves for bl , and the
Company releases these regerves into earnings when the valuation risk is mitigated, This is typically due
to a market or delivery period b ing liquid, a tr ion or delivery settling, or an illiquid

ion being hed with a ion that fully offsets the commodity position, In the absence of
one of these occurrences, inception reserves are reversed in the period or periods during which the
underlying transaction is settled.
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The change in Company’s inception valuation reserves for the years ended Decemnber 31,2012 and 15. FINANCIAL DEBT AND BORROWINGS
2011, is as follows (in thousands):

Rate st December 31
2012 2014 Waturity 2012 011 2012 2011
Aokt dit
. . Revolving linc of aredit 2011-2024 181%4 16% 190%443% S 512760  $ 540,560
_ﬁonv.no_.. gesTsl . s Line of eredil reluted to GSGNAH 20.5 645 645 225000 225,000
g unamortized $ 14,863  §13,143 Torm loan reloted (o FirsiLight 017 437 - 453618 ;
Deferral on new transactions 8,286 11,151 Term “_!_ relaiod o Walerbury 2017 437 - 83 862 -
P Term loan reluted to GSGNAH 2014 249 224 250,000 250,000
Amortization . . (10,507) (8.402) Torm loan related to Hal Springs 2015 . Iy : 25000
Reserve reversal due to inputs becoming observable _ (54D 1,029 Term loon related (o Askoria | 2013 ) 218 48200 48,200
Termn loan rolited to Choclaw Gus 2017 - 204 - 61,875
" {erm laan related (0 Viking 2005 206 212 7613 R.663
Ending balance $12101  $14.863 “Term loan related to nnis 2015 176 203 60,656 68.744
Term loan related to PGENCO 2015 187 196 53,068 59,702
Term loan rolsied 1o IPGSNA 2018 186 192 100,195 114015
Term loan related to FPGSNA (formerly for E & P) 2014 448 417 114,853 114853
“T'erm loan relalod to PGSNA (formerly for £ & P 2014 216 226 24,655 24,655
Term Joan refatud 10 Colelo Creck 2016 411 465 504,000 553.000
Term loan related to Colclo Creck 2016 an 289 296,250 263,750
‘I erm loan related to [PA Centrol 2008 - 453 . 214550
Verm loun related to [PA Central 2016 393 289 315250 107,200
Intemstional Power Americs, loc 20i8 384 384 - 512,750
tcd debt 3,049,980 3612517
Leuse (inancing obligation — Choctaw Genezation LP 2047 723 723 334567 341210
Industsis| revenue bands relsicd lo Rycgale Associaten 2012 . 042 . X
Bonds related to Nassau Energy Corporalion 2015 . 200 . 14350
Senior Socured Bonds Serics rolated o FirstLight 2026 x| 881 276,250 287,000
Sceond Lien Crodit Agroement reluted 1o FirLight 014 - 481 - 168,136
First Lien Credit Agreement related to FirniLght 2013 . 282 254847
2019 . 183 - 64.631
2020 . 330 17374
Project loans rolatud Lo Dol Township 2017 . 727 . 2,506
l'erm Ian related lo Winoonki 2012 . 208 . 164
Roveniug bonuds — Pupoo Enerpry Survios 022 023 023 1252 3580
2015 1400 1400 43,850 4549
201 199 . 5,000 .
202) 1020 1020 217,187 218011
0168 710 710 259.732 306,328
2014 866 866 16576 25,104
Tolal prajest financing 1,156,394 1,752,136
Total bormowings beforc keoruod inlerest and deferred Cinanoing costs 4206374 5364.653
Accrued interest 71,145 43,878
Duferred finsnciag conts 3,906) (4,369)
‘| otal borrowings 4.273.611 5,409,162
Lew outrent portion ol borrowinga 583,071 203,765
T'otal long=lerm borrawings 33,688,542 §5,205,397

15.1 Notes Payable to Affiliate — The Company has a line of credit with an affiliate of GDF SUEZ for
up to $1 billion at December 31, 2012. The majority of the outstanding borrowings under the linc of
credit bear interest at LIBOR, plus 1,.5% to 3.85%. The Company had advances under this line of credit,
of $0.7 billion outstanding and $0.3 billion available at December 31, 2012. The amounts outstanding
under the credit lines are included in long-term borowings and short-term borrowings at December 31,
2012 and 2011, as eppropriate.
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15.2 Project Financing — During 2002, the Company sold and leased back the Choctaw
Generation, LP facility in a transaction accounted for as a fi ing lease. The ion was

ar dforasafi ing lease due to d involvement in the form of additional collateral
provided by the existing power contract. As a result of the salc/lcascback transaction, the Company
recorded a financing obligation equal to the sales proceeds received of $390.4 million, which is being
amortized over the 45-year term of the sale/leaseback agreement. The effective annual interest rate
imputed to reflect the interest cost of the financing obligation is 7.23%. The future minimum lease
payments, which include interest, were $939.8 million at the inception of the lease, with annual
payments of approximately $32.6 million yearly over the next five years. See Note 23, Subsequent
Events, for updates on the sale of Choctaw Generation, LP,

All project financing is secured by subsidiaries’ assets, except for the revenue bonds of Pepco Energy
Services — Suez Thermal, LLC and the project loans related 1o Astoria Encrgy LLC and Astocdia
Partners LLC, which are secured by an irrevocable letter of credit.

Certain of the Company’s credit agreements contain restrictive covenants and place restrictions on the
amount of cash that can be used for making debt payments and mai and repair expenditures for

plant facilities The Company is in compliance with all such covenants except for Choctaw
Gencration, LP.

15.3 Interest Rate Swaps — The Company and certain subsidiaries have entered into interest-rate swap
agreements for notional principal amounts aggregating to $277 million and $1 billion at December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively. These agreements effectively change the variable interest rate to fixed rales
ranging from 1.22% to 5.3% at December 31, 2012 and 2011, on the portion of the debt covered by the
notional amounts. The agreements expire at various dates through December 2019.

The Company was exposed to interest cate f] jons on app ly $0.6 billion and $2.2 billion of
variable rate debt at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. In the event of default by the
counterparties on the interest rate swap agreements discussed above, the Company would be exposed to
fluctuations in the interest rates. The Company does not anticipate nonperformance by the
counterparties.

15.4 Letters of Credit — At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had $900 million available to
obiain letters of credit for operational obligations for its subsidiaries and affiliates, The Company had
issued letters of credit of $304 million and $501 million under these available lincs at December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively.

15.5 Scheduled Maturities — Scheduled maturities of borrowings as of December 31, 2012, arc as
follows (in thousands):

Years Ending

December 31 Maturities
2013 § 517,565

2014 518,867

2015 718,947

2016 1,149,335

2017 547,052

Thereafter 754,608

Total borrowings before accrued interest and deferred financing costs $4,206,374
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PROVISIONS AND OTHER LIABILITIES

16.1 Provisions — Provisions for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, were as follows
(in thousands):

Ducembar 31, Amounts Decembar 31,
2010 Additions Used Disposal  Translation 21
Noncurrer, provisior
Aseet retirement obligations 515966 32209 $ 1,515 $(6,352) $(150) $13218
Provision (or penkions 3,509 74 (803) . @ 212
APBO — niree medical 2,689 " - - - 2,766
Regerves — cvironmental 12,566 . (148) . - 12418
| olol noncurrent pravisions 34,730 2,390 564 (6352) 158 314
Curvent provisions:
Resiruclunng costs N 32,800 . . $32.800
Provisian for tax contingencies 35353 - (20.035) . . 15318
Provision for conuingercies loss Lt 6023 - . - 6,01
[alal cwrent provirions 35,353 38,823 (20,035 54.141
Total provisions $70.083 $41.213 $(19471)  3(6352) $(158; $85.215
Decamber 31, Amounts Decembaer 31,
201 Addilons Used Disposal  Tranalaiion 2012
‘Noneurrent provisions
Aasel relircmeni obligations $1321% 5 9, s - 3 4D L33 $13,364
Provision lor pensions 27712 139 . 65 - 10,097
APBO ~— relirer medical 2766 2353 . 5119
Rustrves — cnvironmental 12418 . 69 . - 12,349
Loal nomcurrent provisians KINKL] 10,736 ()] 012 - 40.929
Current provisiony
Reslrusturing coss 532.800 . (18,700) = : $14.100
Pravison (or lax conlingencics 15318 5297 (11887 - . 728
Proviaion for continyencicy loss 6023 . (4.603) . . 1420
Total curront provisions S4041 5257 (35,190 - - 24248
Tolal provisions 585315 $16033 533259 § 012 5- $65,177

16.1.1 Asset Retirement Obligation — Certain plant and equipment, including conventional power
stations, transmission and distribution pipelines, storage facilities, and LNG terminals, have to be
dismantled at the end of their operational lives. This obligation is the result of prevailing environmental
regulations in the countries concerned, contractual agreements, or an implicit commitment. The related
liability is calculated using the most appropriate technical and budget estimates. Upon initial
recognition, the Compary records a pravision for the present value of the expected obligation at the
decommission date and recognizes a dismantling asset. The amount of the provision is adjusted sach
year to reflect the imnpact of unwinding the discount or adjustments in the expected obligation based on
new or updated information. The additions in 2012 comprised of amounts related to several plants at
GENCO. The disposal of $0.8 million is from the disposal of Choctaw Gas, Mexico Entities and the
restructuring of Colarado Energy Nations (see Note 3).
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16.1.2 Reserves — Envir | — Envi
that it is probable that a liability has been incurred and an smount can be rea:
amount recorded for envi | reserves rep 3 'y best
FirstLight for environmental cost and takes into consideration site

| reserves are sccrued when assessments indicate

16.1.3 Unrecognized Tax Benefit — Sce Note § and discussion of IRS audit in Note 3.
16.1.4 Legal Provision — See discussion of litigation in Note 19.
16.1.5 Pensi:

— See di ion of in Note 20.

P

16.1.6 Restructuring Costs — Costs telated to the restructuring of Syracuse’s power purchase
agreement of $14,2 million and $32 & million were accrued at December 31, 2012 and December 31,
2011 respectively. The reduction of the accrual is due to payment of $13 million to RockTenn and
cancellation of termination payments of $5.7 million. Restructuring costs of $4 million in 2012 primarily
relates to the Ilation of Sy termination p ioned previously, offset by

$2.2 million of expenses at First Light Resources related to severances from transitioning functions and
$7.5 million of expenses at IPA related 10 integration into the Company, primarily severances.

16.2 Other Liabilities — Other liabilities for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, were as
follows (in thousands):

2012 2011
Other noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred revenues $113573 $ 74,378
Employee benefit-related liabilities 39,574 35,374
Other liabilities — noncurrent 38,580 34,169
Total other noncurrent liabilitics 191,727 143,921
Other current liabilities:
Other taxes payable 66,903 61,857
Deferred revenue and other operating payables 44,935 60,084
Employee benefit-related payables 76,704 76,906
Total other curtent liabilities 188,542 198,847
Total other liabilities $380,269 $342,768

16.2.1 Deferred R — Deferred is related to capacity levelization where the revenue is
recognized ratably over the term of the agreement (see Note 2 M).

16.2.2 Pension and Other Employee Benefits-Related Liabilities — See Notes 20 and 21.
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LEASES -— FINANCE AND OPERATING

‘The Company is contractually engaped in current lease obligati hereby the Company has both
|essee and lessor obligations in variois arrangements, In accordance with IAS 17, the following tables
gt the Company's cont lly obligated fease .

Noncancelable Finance Leases for which the Company Acts as the Lessee — The Choctaw

Generation, LP facility is leased under a financing lease, as discussed in Note 15.2. Related to this lease
at December 31, 2012, $334.6 million is recorded in borrowings in the consolidated statements of
financial position, and a net capital lease asset of $251 million is recorded in property, plant, and
equipment (see Note 8).

A reconciliation of maturities of liabilities under finance leases with the maturities of undiscounted
future minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, is as follows (in thousands):

2012
Years2-5  Bayond 2011
Total Year 1 Inclusive Yaar 5 Total
Liabilities under finance koases £334,567 $ 8325 $ 42,691 $283.551 3341211
Impact of discounting futurc repayments
of principal 283.676 23,854 88411 171411 308.103
Undi d futore Icasc puy
al present value $618.243 $32.179 $131,102 §454.962 $649.314

Operating [eases for which the Company Acts as Lessee — The Company has two main lease types:

(i) the Company leases its office facilities under operating lease agreements, and (i) the Cormpany has
entered into “bare-boat™ charter agreements for LNG carrier ships. The Company has a twenty-year and
a two-year charter agreement on two LNG carrier ships. In addition to the base charter cost, the
Company is required to reimburse the carrier operator for all costs incurred in the operation of the ships.
Specific 1o the “bare-boat” charter, anly the base charter cost is included in the schedule below. These
leases contain | options and lation clauscs.

Total lease expense for 2012 and 2011 was approximately $91.7 million and $75.5 million, respectively,

Under these operating leases, a schedule of future labl lease pay under leases
with an initial or remaining term of more than one year is as follows (in thousands):
2012 2011
Year | $ 29,353 $ 27,203
Years 2 to 5 inclusive 90,372 91,250
Beyond year 5 86,414 94,786
Total future minimuw lease payments at present value $206,139 $213,239
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19.

20.

Oparating Laases for which the Company Acts as Lessor — These leases fall mainly within the scope of
1ERIC 4 guid on the interpretation of TAS 17 (sce Note 2 N)). They concern primarily capacity
payments at the various plants. Future minimum lease payments rcceivable under operating leases, can
be analyzed as follows (in thousands):

2012 2011
Year 1 § 201313 $ 186,180
Years 2 to 5 inclusive 635,156 678,223
Beyond year 5 1,449,397 1,429,018
Total future minimum lease payments $2,285,866 $2,293 421

CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

In the ordinary course of its activities, the Compariy enters into long-term contracts, some of which
include “take-ot-pay™ clauses, These consist of firm i to purchase (sell) specified quantilies
of natural gas, electricity, and steam and related services, in exchange for a firm i from the
other party to deliver (purchasc) said quantitics and services. Theso contraots arc outside the scope of
1AS 39. The tain future commitments arising from contricts entered into by the Company at
December 31, 2012, are as follows (in GWh's):

Within ~ 1to
2012 {1 Year &years >6&years 2011
Total i given (purch ) 601,719 79,554 280,834 241,331 731,20]
Total commitments received {sales) 412,025 75,184 143301 193,540 469,872

CONTINGENCIES AND LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Contingencies correspond to conditions that exist as of the date of the consolidated financial statements
that may result in a loss to the Company, but which will only be resolved when one or more future

events occur or fail to occur. Conti ies include outstanding | or claims for possible damages
to third parties in the ordinary course of the Company’s business, as well as third-party claims arising
from disputes concerning legislative interpeetation. Such liabilities are assessed by the

Company's management based on available evidence and legal opinion.

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are defendants in various | its and proceedings. While
the of these | its and proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty and could possibly
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations,
and cash flows, it is the opinion of" after Iting with coumsel, that the ultimate
dispaosition of such lawsuits will not have a material adverse offect on the Company’s consolidated
financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Defined Contribution Plans — The Company imaintains a defined contribution retirement pian (the
“401(k) Plan") for its employees. Under the 401(k) Plan, cach participant may elect to defer taxation on
a portion of his or her eligible earnings, as defined by the 401(k) Plan, by directing the Company to
withhold a percemage of such earnings. The Company contributes 3% of each employee’s defined

el ion and also hes S0% of the first 6% of each employee’s compensation contributed,

P

subject to a cap of $200,000, The employees vest immediately in the Company's contributions, The
Company s contribution expenses were $9.3 million and $10.3 million for the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively,

Deferred Compensation Plan — The Company has a senior a deferred P ion plan,
under which certain key employees may elect to defer any percentage or dollar amount of his or her
compensation, bonus, or incentive compensation and instead have that amount credited to his or her
deferral account, The Company docs not match contributions to this plan. The amount owed to
employees under this plan at December 31, 2012 and 2011, was $25.2 million and $22.9 million,
respectively, and is included in other noncurrent obligations in the lidated of fi ial
position. Such amounts are invested in securities through a trust and are included in other noncurrent
assets. The securities held by the trust arc considered available for sale, with the income eamed and
changes in market value adjusting the asset and corresponding liability by equal amounts.

Performance Unit Plan — The Oo_._._umi —_nu [ vna.o.._:nsoa unit E-: a_n :v_e__J that provides
incentive awards based on the Company’s perft on ] perfonnance measurss over
8 three-year performance nwnmn Under this program, new _un_.mo:_ﬁ___on cycles begin every year and end
three years later. The program is subject to renewal annually for each cycle. Payouts :_..._nn the Plan are
made afier the completion of a given cycle and are made in cash. The Cotmpany of
$22.1 million and $16 8 million for amounts awarded under the program during 2012 and 201 ~
respectively.

Penslon and Other Postretirement Plans — The Company provides a retiree medical plen to
emplayees upon retirement provided that, at the time of their termination, they ere coveced under the
Company's medical plan, arc at least 55 years of age, have completed 10 years of service, and are not a
member of a collective bargaining unit The retiree and his or her eligible spouse will be entitled to

b ially the same medical and dental benefits as those to active employees under the
vnammo: and other postretirement plan option. The cost for retiree coverage will be primarily covered by
EaEE_:m paid by the retirees. Amounts expensed in 2012 and 2011 related to the costs of this plan were
illion, respectively Under IAS 19, a liability for the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation of $5.1 :._____c._ and $2.8 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, has
been recorded in noncutrent provisions in the consolidated statements of financial position, with the
uneamned portion of $0,5 million and $(1. & million being 88_.@& in equity. The increase in the
obligation during 2012 is due (o ch in actuarial ptions, primarily a reduction in the discount
rate.

The Company has an unfunded Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, which provides retirement
benefits to certain officers. This plan is a nonqualificd defined contribution plan and does not have a
minimuwn funding requirement, For the years ended Decemnber 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company
expensed $1.4 million and $1.2 million, respectively related to this plan.

Certain former employees of FirstLight continue to participate in two defined benefit pension plans. The
plan benefits are gencrally based on years of service and compensation and are generally
noncontributory, Effcctive December 31, 2009, the pension plan for a portion of the FirstLight non-
bargaining employees was amended to cease the accrual of additional benefits. This plan was terminated
on February 28, 2011, and the Company is in the process of settling the liabilities under this plan, In
December 2010, the plan covering bargaining employees was amended to cease the accrual of additional
benefits. Under ~>m 19, a liability for accumulated postretirement vn:a...; obligation of $10.1 :::.o...
and $6.1 million has been recorded in provisions in the consolid: of fi ial at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, The increase in the obligation during 2012 is m_._n primarily
to changes in unEE._m_ assumptions including a reduction in the discount rate and the valuation being
performed on a plan termination basis.
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The information relating to the C y's pension plans is

P

ized in the table below (in

thousands):
2012 2011

Benefit obligation (beginning of the plan year) $16,591 $12,838
Service cost 467 403
Interest cost 713 693
Benefit payments (5.397) (187}
Changes in assumptions 1,67 2,735
Actuarial loss 283 109
Effect of settlement 1,827 ~
Benefit obligation (end of the plan ysar) $16,155 $16,591
Change in plen assets:

Fair value of plan assets (beginning of the plan year) $10,448 S 9,329

Employer contributions 361 1,232

Benefit payments (5,397) (187)

Actual return on plan assets 646 74

Fair value of plan asscts (cnd of the plan year) § 6058  $10448

2012 2011

Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit

obligation in excess of plan assets:

Prajocted benefit obligation $16,155 $16,591

Fair value of plan assets 6,058 10,448
Accumulated postr benefit obligati $10097 § 6143

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Certain employees of the Company are eligible to participate in various share-based compensation
swards. The shares granted or used for the basis of the awards are those of GDF SUEZ. The plans in
effect and expenses under each are as follows:

Expensa for the Year

Settlement 2012 2011
Stock option plans Equity 5 27 S 848
SARs (stock option replacements) Cash 35 (154)
Bonus/performance share plans Equity 1,644 1,741
SARs (employee share purchase leverage) Cash (358) 304
Hedge of stock wartants Cash 1,129 1,983

The Company has awarded stock options to certain officers through the stock option plans of GDF
SUEZ, The aptions were awarded to officers at various times from 2001 through 2007, and each plan
has a four-year vesting period and an additional four-year exercise period. The Company also awards
bonus shares to certain employees under the bonus share plans of GDF SUEZ. Expense for each of these
equity awards is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting term of the plan,

.63+
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In connection with the U.S. delisting procedure of GDF SUEZ, stock options granted to U.S. employees
of the Company werc replaced in 2007 by a SARs plan, which entitles beneficiaries to a cash payment
equel to the profit they would make on exercising their options and immediately selling the underlying
shares.

Employces of the Company are eligible to participate in the GDF SUEZ Company corporate savings
plans. .:._Q may subscribe to GDF SUEZ shares at a discount. The discount is expensed immediately as
ion exp , offset to additional paid-in capital, es shares purchased are GOF SUEZ shares,
‘The v_nz also entitles 5n employees to benefit from the positive perfornance of GDF SUEZ shares at
the end of the mandatory holding period through SARs. The impact of these cash-settled SARs consists
of recogrnizing a payable to the nau_ovﬁn over n_._a five-year vesting peciod of the rights, with the
corresponding adj to . At D ber 31, 2012 and 2011, the fair
value of the __nc___q related to these ninam was $0.5 3.:5_.. and $0.8 million, respectively, which was
determined using the Black-Scholes model. The Company and GDF SUEZ have entered into warrant
agreements under which cash needed to settle the SAR liabilities will be received from a third party. The
cost of these agrecments has been paid by GDF SUEZ, and their fair value has vnﬂ_ tecorded Bs
administrative expense and additiona) paid-in capital by the Company. C p related 1o
the SARs was taken on a straight-line basis over the vesting term. Ca.naﬁ& Joss from the change in the
fair value of the warrant agreements was $(1.1) million and $(1.9) million in 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Over the five-year term of the SARs and warrant agreements, the net income staterent
impact will be zero.

Employees of IPA were cligible 1o participate in a corporate savings and stock option scheme called
ShareSave. Employees could choose to have deducted from their paychccks and deposited into
a savings account for 3 or 5 years, At the end of the savings period, they Sz_n exercise ﬂonx on:o_._w
with the savings, The options were on the shares of IPR, Former IPA employees who b

of the Company will be allowed to continue this savings v_u? and at the original maturity of the v_-_._u.
will be able to exercise their options at a predetermined price of 418 pence due to the purchase of the
remaining outstanding shares of IPR by GDF SUEZ

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company frequently in tr ions with the Parent and Ulimate Controlling Party,

P

joint , and

Parent and Ultimate ControMing Party — The Company pays certein nx_s_._unu on behalf of its Parent
and affiliates. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had di | of $5.9 million
and $10 million, 338: <n_<. a._u from its Parent included in accounts receivable in the consolidated

A of f

P

The Company receives certain services from its Parent, as well as certain financial guarantees. Expenses
incurred during 2012 and 2011 related to these services and guarantees were $17.3 million and

$18.5 million, respectively recorded in financial expense and other operating expease in the consolidated
statement of income.

GSGNAH entered into a subcharter lease of one LNG carrier with its Parent from April 2009 with a
novation intent, which was actualized in 2010. The Company recogunized expenses of $8.3 million and
$16.2 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively related to these transactions. GSGNAH also entered into a
subcharter |ease for another LNG carrier in 2009, which was reassigned to an affiliate in 2010. The
subcharter lease required that GSGNAH sought reimbursemcnt for some of these expenses as they were
incurred by the Parent Company during the lease period. The Company recognized $7.5 million and



$7.4 million of reimbursement income for 2012 and 2011, respectively, related to these transactions. At
December 31, 2012 and 2011, tho reccivable was $0 million and $4.0 million, respectively, related to
these transactions.

GSGNAH occasionally receives services from its Parent. The Company gnized consulting exp
of $0.7 million and $1.3 million, for 2012 and 2011, respectively. Consequently, at D ber 31, 2012
and 2011, the payable was $0.7 million and $0.9 million, respectively, related to these transactions.

GSGNAH occasionally sells LNG cargos to its Parent. The Company recognized revenue of
$237.5 million and $155.8 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively, from its Parent. December 31, 2012
and 2011, the reccivable was $31.4 million and S0 million, respectively, related to these transactions.

GSGNAH occasionally purchases LNG cargos from its Parent. The Company recognized expense of
$1.8 million and $0 in 2012 and 2011, respectively, related to these transactions,

23.

Other Related Parties — GSGNAH occasionally sells LNG cargos to affiliated companies. The
Cormpany recognized revenue of $435.4 million and $533.9 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively. The
related-party receivable related to these cargo sales was $30.3 million end $19.6 million at

December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

GSGNAH is under long-term charters with affiliated comp The Cornpany of
$56.2 million and $52.2 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively, related to these :.E:Enno:m GSGNAH
also reassigned a charter to an effiliate in 2010, ._._a Company récognized income of $32.2 million and
$26.8 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively, related to these transactions. GSGNAH entered a Contract
of Affreightment agreement with an affiliate in 2010. The Company recognized exp of £9.9 million
and $9.3 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively, rclated to these transactions.

GSGNAH occasionally receives services from its affiliates. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the
related-party payable was $0 for both years.

GSGNAH occasionally purchases LNG cargos from affiliates. The Company recognized expense of
$189.3 million and $406.8 million, for 2012 and 2011, respectively, The payable related to these
transactions at December 31, 2012 and 2011, was $25,7 million and $24.0 million, respectively,

The Company and its subsidiaries receive certain services from its affiliates. At December 31, 2012 and
2011, the d related-party exp was 54,0 million and $3.9 million, respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries enter into certain pass-through deals on behalf of its Parent and
affiliates, At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had losses of $0.7 million and $10.6 million,
respectively, which were offset by the third-party gains on these related deals, included in gross margin
from energy-trading activities in the consolidated statements of incoine.

A subsidiary of the Company provides services to its associate, Suez Energy Astaria 11 (“SEA I1”), The
Company recognized fees of $2.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, relating to a
praject construction oversight agrecment between SEA Il and Astoria {1.

See Note 15 for di i with QDF SUEZ and afliliates,

of debt agr
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Key Management Personnel - The Cotnpany's key management personnel is composed of the

meimbers of the executive Their P breakd as of Dx ber 31, 2012 and
2011, is as follows (in thousands):
2012 2011
Short-term benefits $11,773 £10,377
Postemployment benefits 1,376 1,190
Share-based payment 399 296
Total $13548  §11,863
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 28, 2013, GENCO sold its 100% interest in TP[ Choctaw Generation, Inc, and Choctaw

G ion Inc., which combined held a 100% intcrest in Choctaw Generation LP ("CGLP"). The equity
was gold for a nominal amount and on Februery 28, 2013, the liabilities of CGLP exceeded the assets,
CGLP leascs the Choctaw generating facility from the owner-lessor through e finance lease under JAS
17. As a result of the transaction, the C y's indebted d d by $348 million and propesty,
plant, and equipment decreased by $243 million. The salc is final with no contingent consideration
except for working capital adjustments for pre-sale activity and a net gain on sale will be recognized as
the details of the sale is comnpleted.




24, LIST OF THE MAIN CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES
Duc. Dec. Owe, Dea. Daa.

Dac,

Company Nama 2012 2011 aniz 2011 2012 2011

Businces unils
IPR-ODF SUEZ Energy Genevalion North Americe, Inc 100 % 100 % 100 % 100 % FC FC
‘GDF SUEZ Gon NA Huldings LLC [T} 100 (L1 JLC1} FC FC
‘GDF SUEZ Encrgy Resoursed NA. Ine e 100 too lon FC FC
IPR-GDF SUEZ Enetgy Markeling North Amcrica, e [y 100 [lY lvo FC EC

Gencrativn entives:
Aptufia Project Partpem 1T, LLC 278 278 213 7% EM EM
Astoria Project Partneru, LLC 585 385 585 583 FC FC
Freeport Power Lioiled s0 50 50 50 PC PC
Northeast Encrgy LP 50 50 50 50 PC PC
Pepen Encrgy Services — SUEZ Thermal, LLC S0 50 so 50 PC PC
Rycgaiz Asrouialcs 66.9 669 669 G669 FC FC
Shicreport R Rlver Ulililjes, LLC 92 392 392 392 EM BM
SUEZ-DEGS of Ashtabuln, LLC - 51 - S0 NC PC
SUEZ.-TEQK of Owings Mills, LLC s) L1 s su PC rC
BUEZ-DEQS of Rovhasler, LLC Hil 50 NC PC
SUE2.DBOY of 8iiver Grave, LLC s 30 NC PC
SURZ-DKOS of Tusools, LLC - 5) - S NC pc
SUBZ/VWNA/DEGS f Lansing. LLC - 92 . 192 NC EM
‘Winocaki One Partnemhip 30 50 50 50 c PC
Alsbama-Decatur Encrgy Corportion 100 100 100 100 FC FC
Choelaty Oue Genalien LLC - 1o - oo NC FC
10t Spring Power Company LLC - wu . low NC FC
ANP Ballinghsm Bnergy Company, LLC [ (2] 100 100 FC FC
ANP Bloakilooe Energy eompasy, LLC 100 100 100 100 FC FC
ANP Fuel Servicas, Ino 100 oo 100 141 FC FC
ANP Hunding L LLC 100 loo 100 e FC FC

Encrgy Limited Partnership, LLP 100 100 100 100 FC FC

?.ﬂsﬁh 100 100 100 00 FC FC
Choalay Liemited 100 100 100 100 FC (o
Colsto Crock Fower, L 100 100 100 100 FC FC
College Park Encryy, LLC 100 o0 100 100 FC FC
Colormds Bna gy Nuliony Company, LLLP 100 we LY 1w FC FC
el Township Utilides LLC - 49 - 50 NC PC
Gnniv vuﬁﬂ:!—!:&. LLe 100 100 __e: 00 “M ¥C
Farnllight Hy o Crenuniticg Compaay oo [[ni] U0 00 FC
FigrtL ight Poer Resciros, log 100 100 lov fug FC FC
Handkine Poknl Enengy. LLC 100 100 100 100 FC FC
Haye mnﬂﬁ. Limited Partnership 100 100 100 0 FC FC
Hagpawell Limited 10 100 100 100 FC FC
PA Cenlral, LLC 100 100 lod (i} FC FC
IPA Operalivag, Inv (157 1w 1o 100 FC Fe
(PA Survioes, Ine 100 100 Loo oo FC FC
IPA Truding. LLC [I0] luo o 10 FC rCc
[PA Wind Dovclopmenl, LLC 100 100 oo o0 FC FC
Midiothlas Energy Lirited Marinerabip log 100 on 1o FC PC
Trantebel Encrgia de Allsmun S A deCV - 100 - 100 NC o
Truotehel Energin de Panuce § A de ©V - oo - tog NC PC
Milford Poter Limited Partnership 100 100 100 100 FC PC
M1 Tom Ceneraling Company 11.C 100 100 100 100 Fe FC
Naamt Encrgy Corporallon 100 100 100 100 [} FC
Northmislem Power Company 100 100 1co 100 FC Fc
Pinetreu Powet, Ina 00 100 1ov L] FC FC
Pinchioe Powar-Filoht I 100 e ov oy FC FC
Pinsreo Puwer-Ta: lng e w [ oo FC FC
Plangars E. LLC 100 100 100 100 FC FC
SUEZ Deaver , LLC 100 1 o0 Ivo FC ¥C
Syracuse Encrygy Corporation 100 100 100 100 ¥C FC
Troy Enargy. LLC 100 100 100 100 yc ¢
Viking Encrgy af Lingoln, LLC [0} 100 100 100 FC FC
Viking Enargy of McBain, LLC 100 100 100 100 ¥c FC
Viking Enargy of Northimbarland LLC 100 100 100 100 FC Fe
Waterbwy Qenertion. LLC 100 | L1E3] 100 100 FC FC
‘Whartan County Oeacration LLC 100 oo 100 o FC FC
Wise County Power Campuny. LLC 00 100 100 o FC FrC

FC fully sonsoliluted; EM equity metbod PC: i Jick NC: not

The table sbove includen the main aparsiing subsidiarics and invesiments of (he Company Melding cormmanles and
comipenies with insignificant sativity hava not been included

whdRwn
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GDF SUEZ ENERGY NORTH AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

{In thousands)
2013 2012
ASSETS
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Intangible assets — net $ 41,977 $ 68,602
Goodwill 1,328,752 1,408,912
Property, plant, and equipment — net 5,541,155 7,607,601
Derivative instruments 199,662 195,678
Investments in associates 281,459 99,588
Loans and credits at amortized cost — net 76,035 90,074
Other noncurrent assets 56,462 59,962
Deferred tax assets 619 3,599
Total noncurrent assets 7,526,121 9,534,016
CURRENT ASSETS:
Derivative instruments 276,344 236,081
Notes receivable 173,217 25,748
Trade and other receivables — net 452,746 651,303
[nventories 361,713 284,682
Other current assets 97,511 79,918
Cash and cash cquivalents 38,258 119,108
Total current assets 1,399,789 1,396,840
TOTAL $ 8,925,910 $10,930,856
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
EQUITY:
Shareholder’s equity $ 4,063,598 $ 4,901.481
Noncontrolling interests 9,622 187,451
Total equity 4,073,220 5,088,932
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Provisions 36,409 40,929
Long-term borrowings 2,522,870 3,688,542
Derivative instruments 203,970 106,440
Other noncurrent liabilities 127,523 191,727
Deferred tax liabilities 340,746 418,414
Total noncurrent liabilities 3,231,518 4,446,052
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Provisions 30,921 24,248
Short-term borrowings 756,025 585,071
Derivative instruments 299,705 251,617
Trade and other payables 360,171 346,394
Other current liabilities 174,350 188,542
Total current liabilities 1,621,172 1,395,872
$ 8,925,910 $10,930,856

TOTAL

CONFIDENTIAL




GDF SUEZ ENERGY NORTH AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

{In thousands)

Revenues

Purchases

Personnel costs

Depreciation, amortization and provisions
Other operating expenses

CURRENT OPERATING INCOME

Mark-to-market on commodity contracts other than
trading instruments

Impairments of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

Restructuring costs

Gain (loss) on disposal of subsidiaries

Loss on disposal of assets — net

INCOME FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Financial expenses

Financial income

NET FINANCIAL LOSS

Net (loss) income before tax and income of associates

Income tax provision

Share in net (loss) income of associates
NET (LOSS) INCOME

Company share

Non-controlling interests

CONFIDENTIAL

2013 2012
$ 5,606,308  § 5,471,598
(4,117,306)  (3,960,836)
(234,848) (252,875)
(419,886) (437,728)
(249,544) (230,205)
584,724 589,954
(170,273) (4,587)
(556,519) (56,942)
(7,812) (3,995)
44,723 (26,895)
(33,643) (28,213)
(138,800) 469,322
(202,780) (337,071)
5,479 50,968
(197,301) (286,103)
(336,101) 183,219
77,245 (73,340)
(o84 414
$ (259,940) $ 110,293
(264,360) 107,519
4,420 2,774
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Exhibit C-2 “SEC Filings,” provide the most recent 10-K/8-K Filings with the SEC. If applicant does not have such
filings, it may submit those of its parent company. If the applicant does not have such filings, then the applicant may
indicate in Exhibit C-2 that the applicant is not required to file with the SEC and why.

GDF Suez Energy Resources NA. Inc. does not file 10-K/8-K filings. GSERNA is a direct, wholly-owned
subsidiary of GDF Suez Energy NA, Inc. GDF Suez Energy NA, Inc. is a subsidiary of GDF SUEZ SA. Please
refer to the attachments for Exhibit C-1 for the GDF Suez Energy NA, Inc. annual reports, which contain
information regarding 10-K/8-K filings.



DOCKET 04-1015-EL-CRS

Exhibit C-3 “Financial Statements,” provide copies of the applicant's two most recent years of audited financial
statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement). If audited financial statements are not
available, provide officer certified financial statements. If the applicant has not been in business long enough to
satisfy this requirement, it shall file audited or officer certified financial statements covering the life of the business.

Please refer to the attachments for Exhibit C-1.
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Exhibit C-4 “Financial Arrangements,” provide copies of the applicant's financial arrangements to conduct CRES
as a business activity (e.g., guarantees, bank commitments, contractual arrangements, credit agreements, etc.,).

[CONFIDENTIAL]



DOCKET 04-1015-EL-CRS

Exhibit C-5 “Forecasted Financial Statements,” provide two years of forecasted financial statements (balance
sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement) for the applicant's CRES operation, along with a list of
assumptions, and the name, address, email address, and telephone number of the preparer.

Preparer:
Craig DeMello

Senior Financial Analyst

1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900
Houston, Texas 77056

Tel: (713) 636-1937

Fax: (713) 636-1601

Email: craig.demello@gdfsuezna.com

[CONFIDENTIAL]
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Exhibit C-6 “Credit Rating,” provide a statement disclosing the applicant’s credit rating as reported by two of the
following organizations: Duff & Phelps, Dun and Bradstreet Information Services, Fitch IBCA, Moody's Investors
Service, Standard & Poors, or a similar organization. In instances where an applicant does not have its own credit
ratings, it may substitute the credit ratings of a parent or affiliate organization, provided the applicant submits a
statement signed by a principal officer of the applicant’s parent or affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations
of the applicant.

Please see attached.



STANDARD & POOR'S
" & RATINGS SERVICES

MCBRAW HILL FINANCIAL

Summary:

GDF SUEZ S.A.

Primary Credit Analyst:
Nicolas Riviere, Paris (33) 1-4420-6709; nicolas.riviere@standardandpoors.com

Secondary Contact:
Vittoria Ferraris, Milan (39) 02-72111-207; vittoria.ferraris@standardandpoors.com

Table Of Contents

Rationale

Outlook

Standard & Poor's Base-Case Scenario
Business Risk

Financial Risk

Liquidity

Other Modifiers

Government Influence

Ratings Score Snapshot

Related Criteria And Research

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT MAY 12,2014 1
$315074 | ZB53455RN



Summary:

GDF SUEZ S.A.

Business Risk: EXCELLENT

o CORPORATE CREDIT RATING
Vulnerable Excellent a- 8 G
o o]

o]

Financial Risk: SIGNIFICANT A/Negative/A-1
o]

Highly leveraged Minimal

Anchor Modifiers Group/Gov't

Rationale

Risk: Excellent

o Comprehensive scale with outstanding business and » Strong record of financial discipline.
Significant financial flexibility.
Strong liquidity.

High shareholder returns.

geographic diversity.

e Sizable and increasing share of regulated and
contracted business.

¢ Leading and integrated market positions.

e Modern and clean power generation assets.

¢ Depressed market conditions for the core European
operations.
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Summary: GDF SUEZ S.A.

f:%";(_)r'li't:lé:o_l’{::"-N__élgat_i'i."e'

Standard & Poor's Ratings Services' negative outlook on France-based multi-utility GDF SUEZ S.A. reflects the
likelihood of a downgrade if energy market conditions in Europe worsen and upset the execution of GDF SUEZ's
plans, including the consolidation of its credit metrics.

Downside scenario

We would likely Jower the rating if we considered that GDF SUEZ could struggle to maintain a resilient cash flow
base and Standard & Poor's-adjusted funds from aperations (FFO) to debt comfortably above 20% over the next
three years. This might result, in our view, from significant delays or failure of GDF SUEZ's cost-cutting initiatives,
as well as new asset commissioning or rotation. In addition, a more material and structural deterioration in
European energy markets than we expect could lead us to revise our assessment of GDF SUEZ's business risk

profile downward and lower the ratings.

Upside scenario
We would likely revise the outlook to stable if GDF SUEZ's strategic plan were successful or the company adapted

to potentially more adverse market conditions while maintaining its credit metrics.

Rating upside is remote at this stage and contingent on GDF SUEZ maintaining its "excellent" business risk profile
and a more rapid and significant strengthening of its financial risk profile than we currently assume. This could
result, in our view, from a rebound in the group's earnings, thanks to higher commodity prices or supportive
developments in European energy markets, leading to an improvement of the adjusted FFO-to-debt ratio to close

to 30% on a recurring basis.

Standard & Poor's Base-Case Scenario

In our base-case scenario, we expect GDF SUEZ's adjusted FFO to debt to slightly and temporarily weaken in 2014,
but to remain on average comfortably in excess of the 20% threshold we consider commensurate with the rating. We
expect GDF SUEZ to self-finance its higher investments and its lower shareholder returns with cash flow from

operations and disposals.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS,COM/RATINGSDIRECT MAY 12, 2014 3
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Summary: GDF SUEZ S.A.

e A decrease of cash flow from operations in 2014

. . 2013A 2014E 2015E
from the higher-than-expected figure in 2013, before
. . . Unadjusted 13.0* 12.5-13 13-14
resuming single-digit growth in 2015. EBITDA (bil.
¢ Organic growth in rapidly expanding markets under €)
contracted terms in upstream, liquefied natural gas, Spf;g ,agjl:,md 217 20-22 20-23
and energy services. .
s Increased focus on cost-cutting and lower interest *Pro forma the implementation of International
charges, which should more than compensate for Financial Reporting Standards 10 and 11. A—Actual.

shrinking margins and volumes in Europe from
2015, although weather and foreign exchange
effects may accentuate year-on-year volatility.

e Earnings roughly in line with the company's
indicated EBITDA of €12.3 billion to €13.3 billion in
2014, and single-digit growth in 2015.

e Capital expenditure and acquisitions, net of
disposals, of about €7 billion annually.

e Dividends in line with the group's guidance of a
minimum €1 per share or a 65%-75% payout ratio
{excluding dividends of the group's subsidiaries to
minority shareholders).

o Energy prices aligned with forward prices at the
beginning of the year.

E--Estimate.

Business Risk: Excellent

Our assessment of GDF SUEZ's business risk profile chiefly reflects our view of its "excellent” competitive position,
underpinned by its comprehensive scale, broad business and geographic diversity, leading and integrated market

positions, and resilient profitability.

The group has a dominant position in the Belgian power market and in gas supply in France. It has a critical size in
Central and Western European markets and leading positions in most rapidly expanding markets, where it has become
a system operator through vertical integration. The number of businesses GDF SUEZ operates distinguishes it from

other large integrated utilities.

Overall, the group's industry risk is "intermediate.” The *moderately high” risks of its core unregulated power and gas
activities are balanced by lower-risk activities, including regulated utilities, midstream, oil and gas exploration and
production, and services. The group is in a position to capture value added wherever it exists in the chain, depending
on cycles and market conditions. This is supported by strong geographic diversification and enhanced by its

acquisition of International Power (IPR).

The group's outstanding scale and diversification contribute significantly to earnings resilience, in our view.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT MAY 12, 2014 4




Summary: GDF SUEZ S.A.

Furthermore, cash flow predictability benefits from a significant and increasing share of regulated or long-term
contracted operations with minimal volume and market risk. In 2012, GDF SUEZ targeted 65% of its net recurring

income to come from such activities in 2015, up from 51% in 2011.

Although of little earnings support under the current European carbon market conditions, we also view GDF SUEZ's

low-carbon dioxide (CO2) and modern-generation portfolio as a competitive advantage in the long term.

Constraints to the business risk profile are depressed market conditions for GDF SUEZ's core European operations,

increasing exposure to volatile overseas markets, and some political risks.

Oversupply, depressed demand, and declining carbon and coal prices have greatly reduced power prices and the
utilized capacity of European gas plants. As reflected by massive impairments for 2013, this has structurally weakened
GDF SUEZ's profitability, although merchant power generation in Europe contributes only a small portion of earnings.
We believe difficult market conditions could persist or worsen, absent capacity closures or a market redesign by

policymakers.

Weak economic conditions, increasing energy costs, and decreasing household income could also expose European
energy markets to political interference in our view. That said, a recent French court decision has, in our view,
neutralized this risk regarding domestic gas tariffs, and the 10-year extension of a nuclear reactor has somewhat
improved visibility in Belgium. Deteriorating wholesale markets and negative gas-to-oil spreads in recent years have
also squeezed the company's gas margin. However, GDF SUEZ's margins remain positive, thanks to its competitive
advantages, including its capacity to divert liquified natural gas using its fleet and superior negotiating power conferred
by its very large and diversified procurement portfolio. Moreover, GDF SUEZ's expanding exploration and production

activities provide a natural hedge against adverse commodity trends.

Although, overall, country risk is "low,” GDF SUEZ has significant exposure to rapidly expanding markets with
inherently higher country-related risks than France. Such risks include foreign currency depreciation and convertibility
or government intervention. This exposure is poised to increase, as suggested by the group's former target of
generating 40% of recurring net income from high-growth markets in 2015, compared with 23% in 2011. Mitigating
these risks are the group's high proportion of cash flows secured by very long-term contracts; the listing of local
subsidiaries, which provides a political hedge; and GDF SUEZ's long-established international presence.

We assess GDF SUEZ’s management and governance as "strong” as defined under our criteria. GDF SUEZ has a
strong risk-management culture and expertise. Its management team has a strong record of organic and external

growth, while maintaining a conservative financial policy and track record of delivering on financial goals.

Financial Risk: Significant

Our assessment of GDF SUEZ's "significant” financial risk profile is benchmarked against our standard volatility table,
as defined in our criteria. Our assessment is supported by our view of management's continuous commitment to
financial discipline and the group's significant financial flexibility. Management considers its 'A’ category credit rating a
strategic asset for the group and has set a 2.5x net debt-to-EBITDA limit, which is relatively low by utility standards, as

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT MAY 12, 2014 5
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Summary: GDF SUEZ S.A.

a cornerstone of its strategy.

This discipline is supported by management's solid track record of avoiding burdening its balance sheet with debt, as
suggested by the cash-free reverse takeover of IPR and its scrip dividend option to finance the buyout of minority
shareholders. The company's metrics have also consistently exceeded our rating guidelines and expectations. At
year-end 2013, GDF SUEZ reduced net debt by one-third, one year ahead of schedule, notably thanks to asset rotation.
The group executed €17 billion of disposals over 2011-2013 after €10 billion over 2008-2010.

We believe GDF SUEZ maintains a high degree of financial flexibility through asset disposals, which show proactive
portfolio management, and through capital expenditure, which we understand consists only of €2.5 billion in

maintenance annually.

The group's financial risk profile is further supported by its proactive and prudent liability management and by its
consistently strong liquidity position.

These strengths are moderated by the group's high shareholder returns, including to the high proportion of minority
shareholders. Management, however, has recently revised its dividend policy to a minimum of €1 per share from €1.5
and announced a payout ratio of 65%-75% from 2015, which is better aligned with peers".

Additional weaknesses include significant asset-retirement obligations, mostly related to the Belgian nuclear fleet, and
significant nonrecourse debt in project finance operations (notably in the Middle East), which could represent a
contingent risk if GDF SUEZ sought ta avoid a threat to its reputation. We are also concerned by continually weak
conditions in European power markets that could challenge GDF SUEZ's cash-flow generation.

Liquidity: Strong

The 'A-1" short-term rating is supported by GDF SUEZ's liquidity, which we consider to be "strong" under our criteria.
Projected sources of funds exceed projected uses by more than 1.5x over the next 12 months and the subsequent
12-24 months. Our assessment is further supported by the group's ongoing and proactive liquidity and debt
management, solid relationships with banks, and ample and proven access to capital markets, even under dire market

conditions.

o About €8.7 billion in available cash at group level at ¢ Short-term debt of about €8.4 billion, including

year-end 2013. outstanding commercial paper,

e About €12 billion in available committed credit lines o Our estimate of gross capital expenditures (with no
maturing beyond 12 months. This includes two flexibility) not exceeding €7 billion;
syndicated facilities: €4.5 billion maturing in March e Dividend cash payments of about €3.6 billion
2018 and a recently contracted €5 billion maturing (including dividends of the group's subsidiaries to
in April 2019 (with two optional extensions); and minority shareholders); and

e Our forecast of unadjusted FFO of about €9.5 billion o Working capital needs of about €150 million.
over the next 12 months.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT MAY 12,2014 6
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Summary: GDF SUEZ S.A.

Other Modifiers

We have incorporated an upward adjustment of one notch to the anchor, due to our assessment of GDF SUEZ's
*moderate” diversification, which reflects the broad reach of the group's moderately correlated activities and markets

that support its strong earnings resilience.

Government Influence

Although we consider GDF SUEZ a government-related entity, in our view, there is a “low" likelihood of extraordinary
government support for GDF SUEZ in the event of financial distress. Consequently, this has no impact on the rating.

We base our opinion on our assessment of GDF SUEZ's “limited importance" for, and "limited” link with, the French

government.

Ratings Score Snapshot
Corporate Credit Rating
A/Negative/A-1
Business risk: Excellent

e Country risk: Low

e Industry risk: Intermediate

e Competitive position: Excellent
Financial risk: Significant

e Cash flow/Leverage: Significant
Anchor: a-

Modifiers
e Diversification/Portfolio effect: Moderate (+1 notch)
e Capital structure: Neutral (no impact)
o Liquidity: Strong (no impact)
e Financial policy: Neutral (no impact)
e Management and governance: Strong (no impact)

o Comparable rating analysis: Neutral (no impact)

Stand-alone credit profile : a

e Likelihood of government support: Low (no impact)

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT MAY 12, 2014 7
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Summary: GDF SUEZ S.A.

Related Criteria And Research

¢ Key Credit Factors For The Unregulated Power And Gas Industry, March 28, 2014

o Methodology And Assumptions: Liquidity Descriptors For Global Corporate Issuers, Jan. 2, 2014
e Key Credit Factors For The Oil And Gas Exploration And Production Industry, Dec. 12, 2013

o Key Credit Factors For The Regulated Utilities Industry, Nov. 19, 2013

e Key Credit Factors For The Midstream Energy Industry, Dec. 19, 2013

e Corporate Methodology, Nov. 19, 2013

o Methodology: Industry Risk, Nov. 19, 2013

e Corporate Methodology: Ratios And Adjustments, Nov. 19, 2013

e Country Risk Assessment Methodology And Assumptions, Nov. 19, 2013

o Methodology: Management And Governance Credit Factors For Corporate Entities And Insurers, Nov. 13, 2012
« Rating Government-Related Entities: Methodology And Assumptions, Dec. 9, 2010

¢ Use Of CreditWatch And Outlooks, Sept. 14, 2009

Ll e WY

Financial Risk Profile
Business Risk Profile N mn; Modest Intermediate Significant Aggre;xv'_e__ Eghly leve;ged
I Excellent aaa/aa+ aa at/a a- bbb bbb-/bb+

Strong aa/aa- a+/a a-/bbb+ bbb bb+ bb
Satisfactory a/a- bbb+ bbh/bbb- bbb-/bb+ bb b+

Fair bbb/bbb- bbb- bb+ bb bb- b

Weak bb+ bb+ bb bb- b+ b/b-
Vulnerable bb- bb- bb-/b+ b+ b b-

Additional Contact:
Industrial Ratings Europe; Corporate_Admin_London@standardandpoors.com
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Exhibit C-7 “Credit Report,” provide a copy of the applicant’s credit report from Experion, Dun and Bradstreet or a
similar organization.

Please see attached.



Preinier Profile - GDF SUEZ ENERGY RESOURGES NA

+« #n @8
Subcode: 695910 Ordered: 05/15/2014 15:11:13 CST 4”4 Experian-
Transattion Number: C014706266 S e
Search Inquiry: 786666414 A world of insight

Model Description: intelliscore Plus V2

Bus!nuss Nania g'{ / } Buginassildentification MUmbéar
oy 786666414
Doing Business GOF SUEZ ENERGY RESOURCES NA, Website: wWww.suezenergyresources.com
As ING Phone: (713) 636-0000
Primary Address: 1990 POST OAK BLVD STE 1800 TaxID: 760685846
HOUSTON, TX 77056-3831 ’
Ultimate Parent: GDF SUEZ SA X This business is a member of a corparate family
See the corporate hierarchy by clicking here

Risk Scores and c:odlt Limit Recommendation Days:Beyond Terms Dorogalory Legal Fraud Alerts

Intelliscare Plus Financial Stability Risk Company DBT Original Filings High Risk Aleris
'l T 1 [ !
6 LOW-MEDIUM | LOW RISK ] \ I [ |
RISK iré e ] N el U B L ] ' | 1 S |
. J ' | |
Score range: 1 - 100 percentile
Credit Limit Recommendaiion: $4,200

o o L ) o, B e R E g A ) .

Years on F:!e. 17 (FILE ESTABLISHED 05/1987) SIC Code EtECTRIC SERVICFS 4911
State of Incorporation: DE COMBINATION UTILITIES, NEC - 4839
Date of Incorporation: 01/30/2004 El ECTRIC & OTHER SERVICES COMBINED - 4931
Business Type: Profit  NAICS Code: Electric Power Distribution - 221122
Contacls: SAM HENRY - CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER Utilities - 221000
ROBERT WILSON - CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER Etectric Power Generation, Transmission and Distribution - 221100

Number of Employees: 650

RAY CUNNINGHAM - PRESIDENT

1C0 &)

Commercial Fraud Shleld

Business Al,uh Verlﬂca‘tlon Trlggors

. ) The primary Business Name, Address, and
Active Business Indicator: Experian shows this business as active Phone Number on Experian File were reviewsd
for High Risk indicators. no High Risk indicators
were found.
Possible OFAC Match: wigin  No OFAC match found
Business Victim Statement: i ¢31 No victim statement on file

Credh Risk Score: Intelliscore Plus

Current Intelliscore Plus Score: 60 Risk Class: 2

AR g piahe et A
B PO R S RNV TSN,

The risk class groups scores by risk into ranges of similar

Premier Profile - GOF SUEZ ENERGY RESOURCES NA 116



| High £ =" ™ Low
LN T ——— ) Risk |
0 10 25 50 75 100 |

This score predicts the likelihood of serious credit delinquencies for this business
within the next 12 months. Payment history and public record along with other
variables are used to predict future risk. Higher scores indicate lower risk.
Factors lowering the score

> NUMBER OF COMMERCIAL. ACCOUNTS WITH NET 1-30 DAYS TERM

» NBR OF ACTIVE COMMERCIAL ACCTS WITHIN THE LAST 12 MOS8

» NUMBER OF RECENTLY ACTIVE COMMERCIAL ACCOUNTS

+ NUMBER OF COMMERCIAL ACCOUNTS WITH HIGH UTILIZATION

e
L

Quarterly Score Trends

Action or risk based on your compal

Quarterly Score Trends

Credit Risk Score: Financlal Stabllity Risk
Current Financial Stability Risk Score: 90

90
. -_—.—-——n«‘:‘-—‘
' Low

High &~ - . :
Risk &~ SUERNpT_NS—— = ) Risk

T 30 65

100

The score uses tradeling and collections informatien, public filings as well as other
variables to predict future risk. Higher scores indicate lower risk.

Factors lowering the score

» NUMBER OF ACTIVE COMMERCIAL ACCOUNTS

» RISK ASSOCIATED WITH THE BUSINESS TYPE

> BALANCE TO HIGH CREDIT RATIO FOR COMMERCIAL ACCOUNTS

This score predicts the likelihood of financial stability risk within the next 12 months.

performance. Range & is the highest risk, range 1 is the
lowest risk.

Industry Risk Comparison
58% of businesses indicate a higher likelihood of severe
delinquency.

ny’s specific score thresholds: LOW-MEDIUM RISK

The Quarterly Score Trends provide a view of the
likelihood of delinquancy over the past 12 months for this
business. The trands will indicate if the score improved,
remained stable, fluctuated or declined over the Jast 12
months,

Risk Class: 1

vy, I

The risk class groups scores by risk into ranges of similar
performance. Range 5 is the highest risk, range 1 s the
lowest risk.

Industry Risk Comparison
89% of businesses indicate a higher likelihood of financial
stability risk

Credit Limit Recommendation
Cradit Limlt Recommendation This racommendalion compares this business against siniilar businesses in the Experian business
credit database. It is based on trade information, industry, age of business and the Intelliscore
$4,200 Plus. The recommendation is a guide. The final diecision must be made based on your campany’s

business palicies.
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Payment Performarice Trade and Collection Balance

Current DBT: 0 Total trade and ccllection (3):
Predicted DBT : N/A All trades (3):

Manthly Average DBT: 0 All collections (0):
Highest DBT Previous 6 Months: 0 Continuous trade {2):

Highest DBT Previous 5 Quarters: 0
Payment Trend indication:
Paymeni trend indicator not available

6 month average:

Highest credit amount extended:

Most frequent industry purchasing terms:
Industry purchasing terms not available

Industry Comparison

Industry DBT Range Comparison
The current DBT of this business is 0. 80% of businesses have a DBT range of 0-5.

DBT for this business: 0

"DBT Range T 0-5 6-15 16+ |

Premier Prafile - GOF SUEZ ENERGY RESOURCES NA

2

Maonthly DBT Trends
10 10
g g
8 8
7 7
6 6
5 5
4 4
3 3
2 2
1- 1
‘}0\!"303(."3 Qp\"“,‘ee“““p&"hhek“ko“ﬁk“‘ a3
Monthly Payment Trends
Payment Trends Analysis
e — ELECTRIC SERVICES -4911 ———
Date Reported c:j?du%?T Business DBT Balance
CURRENT 89% 3 0 $700
APR14 89% 3 0 $700
MAR14 91% 3 0 $700
FEB14 86% 4 0 $600
JAN14 B6% 4 0 $600
DEC13 87% 3 Q 8600
r NOV13 91% 3 a $600

$200
$900
$0
$700
N/A
$800

Legal Fllings

Bankruptcy: No
Tax Lien filings: 0
Judgment filings: 0
Sum of legal filings: %0
UCC filings: 4
Cautionary UCC filings: Yes

Quarterly DBT Trends
o La® v eV
Account Status
 DaysBeyondTerms
Cur 1-30 3160 61-80 91+
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
36




Quarterly Payment Trends
Account Status

Payment History - Quarterly Averages Days Beyon d Terms

I

Lo§7

s

—Quarter B Maonths _DBT Balance Cur 1-30 31-60 61-20 B 914-_
o114 an-MaR o se0  100% - -
Q4-13 OCT-DEC 0 $600 100%
Q3-13 JUL - SEP 0 $600 100%
Q2-13 APR - JUN 0 $600 100%
Q1-13 JAN - MAR 0 $600 100%

Trade Line Type Lines Reported DBTY  Recent High Credit Balan.ce- ACurrent - 0130 -31-60 . 6190 M+
Continuous 2 $800 - $700 160“_/0

New 0 $0

Combined Trade 2 $800 $700 100%

Additional 1 $200 $200 100%

Total Trade 3 _51,000 $900 100%

Payment Experlences Account Status
(Trade Lliias with an (*) after the date are newly reported) Days Beyond Terms
Business Date Last Payment Recent High
Category __ Reported Sale Terms Credit Balance .Cur 1-30 31-60 6180 91+ Comments
COMMUNICTN 0372014 VARIED $800 $700 100%

PACKAGING 05/2014 NET 30 50 CUST 4 ¥R
1or 8

Premier Profile - GDF SUEZ ENERGY RESOURCES NA

s 4.7 SEre TLN
Payment Expérlences Account Status
{Trade Lines with-an (*) after the date are newly reported) Days Beyond Terms

Business Date Last Payment Recent High

Category _ Reported  Sale Terms Credit Batance Cur 1-30 3160 861-90 91+ Comments
AIR TRANS 12/2011 OTHER $200 $200 100%

' Tor @
I ) f—‘l-.'-.-:.::f.)a”-"-? CHL ;;,:-"_-':-:.'\ it 137 ¥ il ke ARl TS S ST TEIEA f h 2!
UCC Filing Summary
Cautionary Tofal Released / Amended /

Daﬁ.Railge- _ B '} uccs Filed Tarmination Co_ntlnuous Assigned

JAN - PRESENT 2014

JUL -DEC 2013

JAN - JUN 2013

JUlL - DEC 2012

JAN - JUN 2012

PRIOR TO JAN 2012 3 4

Total 3 4 0 0 0

** Cautionary UCC Filings inciude one or more of the following collateral:

Accounts, Accounts Receivables, Conlract Rignts, Hereafter Acquired Properly, Inventory, Leasas, Notes Recelvable or Proceeds.

UCC Datalls

UCC FILED Date: 11/05/2010 UCC FILED Date: 11/05/2010

Filing Number: 100032054388 Filing Number: 20103892621

Jurisdiction: SEC OF STATE TX Jurisdiction: SEC OF STATE DE

46



Secured Party: ROCHESTER GAS AND ELECTRIC Secured Party: NEW YORK STATE ELECTRIC AND GAS
CORPORATION NY BINGHAMTON 13902 1 CORPORAT NY BINGHAMTON 13902
Collateral: ACCTS REC, AFTER ACQUIRED PROP. UNDEFINED

UCC FILED Date: 04/12/2010 UCC FILED Date: 04/12/2010

Filing Number: 2010 1260673 Filing Number: 201004125327736

Jurisdiction: SEC OF STATE DE Jurisdictlon: SEC OF STATE NY

Secured Party: CON EDISON OF NEW YORK, INC. NY NEW YORK Secured Party: CON EDISON OF NEW YORK. INC, NY NEW YORK
10003 4 IRVING PLAC 10003 4 IRVING PLAC

Coflateral: AFTER ACQUIRED PROP. UNDEFINED Collateral: AFTER ACQUIRED PRQP, UNDEFINED

120

Corporate Registration
THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION WAS PROVIDED BY THE STATE OF DELAWARE.
State of Origin: DE
Date of Incorporation: 01/30/2004
| Current Status: Active

Business Type: Fiofit
Charter Number: 000137554
Agent: CAPITOL CORPORATE SERVICES. INC,
Agent Address: 222 JEFFERSON BOULEVARD SUITE 200 WARWICK, RI

o . N o rcs'_o
Corpaate Linkage . .. 2 Mo ol L L AN s S T s 2 SadEss ioid)
Business Name Locatlon BIN
Ultimate Parent of the inquired upcn business and the top antity within the corporate family:
GDF SUEZ SA PARIS 000146149
Immediate Parent of the inguired upon business:
GDFE SUEZ ENERGY NA INC 1990 POST OAK BLVD STE 1900 - HOUSTON,TX 789791212
Branches of the inquired upon business:
GOF SUEZ ENERGY RESOURCES NA 15 CABOT ST - TURNERS FALLS . MA 711050479
GDF SUEZ ENERGY RESOURCES NA 333 THORNALL ST - EDISON NJ 828010875
GDF SUEZ ENERGY RESOURCES NA 112 PLANTATION CT - EAST AMHERST.NY 829034098
GDF SUEZ ENERGY RESOURCES NA 5605 N MACARTHUR BLVD STE 640 - IRVING TX 829145288
GDF SUEZ ENERGY RESOURCES NA 2625 BUTTERFIELD RD - OQAK BROOK,IL 830521077
GDF SUEZ ENERGY RESOURCES NA 2809 BUTTERFIELD RD STE 140 - OAK BROOK,IL 893039870
GDF SUEZ ENERGY RESOURCES NA 815 S DUPONT HWY - DOVER,DE 923604730
GDF SUEZ ENERCY RESOURCES NA 919 CONGRESS AVE STE 1450 - AUSTIN,TX 935700545
GDF SUEZ ENERGY RESOURCES NA 6 ROWE SQ - GLOUCESTER MA 952627490

- - Q'

Summary of Inquirlea
Seincas MAY14  APR14  WMARi4 FEB14  JAN14  DEC13  NOVI3  OCT13  SEP13
Category . o
GENERAL 1
Totals 1 - il [

Experian prides itself on the depth and accuracy of the data maintained on our databases. Reporting your customer's
payment behavior to Experian will further strengthen and enhance the power of the information available for making sound
credit decisions. Give credit where credit is due. Call 1-800-520-1221, option #4 for more information.

End of report 1 of 1 report
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The wfarnition frereln is furnished i confidence for your exchisive use for legitimate business purpos
Intormation Solitions, lnc., nor theil sources or distributors wareant such information not shall they

& fable for your use or reliance v

ses and shall not be reproduced, Neithor Experiati

» niarks or regislered tradenarks of Expe
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Premier Profile - GDF SUEZ ENERGY NORTH AMERICA, INC

A4 .3 »
Subcode: 523174 Ordered: 04/10/2014 15:09:27 CST
Transaction Number: C401009562
Search inguiry: gdf suez ener/1990 POST OAK BLVD STE
4900/HOUSTON/TX/77056/USF713-636-0000/788791212
Model Description: Intelliscore Plus V2

i Experian

A weorld wiinsight

.
Mlll.

Businass Identification Number

'7@9791212;._”“_
Doing Business GDF SUEZ ENERGY NORTH AMERICA Website: www.slezenergyna.com
As: INC Phone: (713} 635-0000
Primary Address: 1990 POST OAK BLVD STE 1900 ) 0951380
HOUSTON, TX 77056-3831 Jaxi0:  00-098
Ultimate Parent: GDF SUEZ SA R This business is a member of a corporate farnily.
SHd Seel

T

Risk Scores and Credit Limit mmnm-ndafllon

it

RN

Intelliscore Plus Financial Stability Risk Company DBT Original Filings High Risk Alerts

51 ‘v 5w | 7 6 Y

Score range: 1 - 100 perceatile Industry DBT- 7

Credit Limit Recorrmendaimn. $102,300

"&@Eg}_ﬁ“ AT e s ah:'H' PRI b L-;«: M

Years on Flle: 17 (FILE ESTABLISHED 0211997) Slc Code: EL ECTRIC & OTHER SERVICES GOMBINED 49’31
State of Incerporation: DE NATURAL GAS DISTRIBUTION - 4924
Date of Incorporation: 12152008 ELECTRIC SERVICES - 4911
Business Type: Profit  NAICS Code: Other Electric Power Generation - 221118
Conlacts: ZIN SMATI - CEO Natural Gas Distribution - 221210
GEERT PEETERS - EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT Utilities - 221000

Number of Employees: 2.000

PAUL CAVICCHI - EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT  Safes: $39,600,000

or

Business Alerta Veriﬂcaﬂon Trlggers
The primary Business Name, Address, and

Active Business Indicator: Experian shows this business as active Phone Number on Experian File were reviewed
for High Risk indicators, no High Risk indicatars
were found.

Possible OFAC Match: mit No OFAC match found

L
Business Victim Statement: No victim statement on file

w3, e e Ll

\Gadlt RiskScommand Credis Lt Recommen:
Credit Risk Score: Intelliscoré Phis

Current Intelliscore Plus Score: 51 Risk Class: 2

ation. .

= AT oo i E o B i e SR R e e S
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e . - e —————— r—————— The risk class groups scores by risk into ranges of similar
i 51 perfarmance. Range 5 is the highest risk, range 1 is the
| High @ = — Lo | lowest risk
| Risk % - I 1=H._.__‘_;__—£, Risk
fr— — T =1
0 10 25 S50 75 100 )
This score predicts the likelihood of serious credit delinquencies for this business
within the next 12 months. Payment history and public record along with other
variables are used to predict future risk. Higher scores indicate lower risk. This
oompany is classified as a large buginess and is compared to husinesses of similar
skze
Factors lowering the score industry Risk Comparison
| » NUMBER OF COMMERCIAL ACCOUNTS THAT ARE CURRENT fjg;'f' vl indicate a higher fikelihood of severe
nquen
| » FERCENT OF SERIOUSLY DELINQUENT COMMERCIAL ACCOUNTS B Y
> PERCENT OF DELINQUENT COMMERCSAL ACCOUNTS
> PCT OF TOTAL COMMERGIAL BAL THAT IS SERIOUSLY DELINQUENT
| Action or risk based on your company's specific score thresholds: LOW-MEDIUM RISK l
Quarterly Score Trends
Quarterly Score Trends
[
100
o0
80
70 . i R
58 The Quarterly Score Trends provide a view of the
&0 54 likelihood of delinquency over the past 12 months for this
50 48 45 business. The trends will indicate if the scare improved,
a0 remained stable, fluctuated or declined over the last 12
nonths
30
20
10
)
oL o3 ot~ P
pot Ry ot JF"""‘a
Credit Risk Score: Financial Stability Risk
Current Financial Stability Risk Score: 51 Risk Class: 2
»-
l-llfgh e ] A L Low The risk class groups scores by risk into ranges of similar
Risk Gz, e —— ud, Risk performance. Range 5 is the highest risk, range 1 is the
6% 10 30 €s 100 lowest risk.
This score predicts the likelihood of financial stabifity risk within the next 12 months.
The score uses tradefine and collections information, public fiings as welt as other
variables lo predict future risk Higher scores incicate lower risk.
Factors lowering the score Industry Risk Comparison
» NUMBER OF COMMERCIAL DEROGATORY PUBLIC RECORDS 50% of businesses indicate a higher likelihood of financial
stability risk.
» RISK ASSOCIATED WITH THE BUSINESS TYPE Y
» PERCENT OF TOTAL COMMERCIAL BALANCE MODERATELY DELINQ
» BALANCE TO HIGH CREDIT RATIO FOR OTHER COMMERCIAL ACCOUNTS
Credi Limit Recommendation
Credit Limit Recommendation This recommendation compares this business against similar businesses in the Experian business
credit dalabase. It is based on trade information, incdustry, age of business and the Intelliscore
$102,300 Plus. The recommendation is a guide. The final decision must be made based on your company's

Premier Profile - GDF SUEZ ENERGY NORTH AMERICA, INC 2/6



l business policies. J

\Bayimantand L

Payment Performance Trade and Gollection Balance Legal Filings
Current DBT: 7  Total trade and coliection {16): $203.100  Bankruptcy: No
Predicted DBT as 06/04/2014 : 6 All trades {16): $203,100  Tax Lienfliings: 6
Judgment filings: 0
Monthty Average DBT: 0 All cotiections (0): 50 sum of legal filings: 334,300
Highest DBT Previous 6 Months: 7  Continuous trade (8): $97.100  UCC filings: L
Highest DBT Previous 5 Quarters: 3 € month average: $81.600 - §102,600  Cautionary UCC fllings: Yas
Payment Trend Indication: Highest credit amount extended: $66,000
Paymentis are increasingly late Most frequent industry purchasing terms:
NET 30,CONTRCT,REVOLVE
Industry Comparison
industry DBT Range Comparison DBT Norms
The cunent DBT of this business is 7. 11% of businesses hizve & DBT range of 8-15. All industey: 8
DBT for this business: 7 Same industry: 7
- ——— s i e i ~ - - Industry Payment Comparison
| Has paid sooner than 50% of simiiar businesses

Monthly DBT Trends Quarterty DBT Trends
10 10
il
8
_ 7
? =
3 - &
5 5
4 .
3 3 . 3
2 3
2= 2
1 . L 1-
o 8 8. D 0 : o BHET s
3 -3 A &
s"rfﬁncﬂ r\c‘pao@’\ NUN v"‘“\ o e
Monthly Payment Trends
Payment Trends Analysis Account Status
ELECTRIC & OTHER SERVICES COMBINED - 4931 - Days Beyond Terms
Date Reported =t Business DBT Balance Cur 130 3160 6120 91+
Cur DBT
CURRENT /A N/A 7 $97.100 0% 2% 2% 3% 3%
FEB14 3% 7 3 $28.400 93% 3% 2% 2%
JAN14 79% 7 2 $36,700 99% 4% 2%
DEC13 79% 7 0 $108,600 98% 2%
NOV13 80% 7 G $108,600 100%

Premuer Profile - GUF SUEZ ENERGY NORTH AMERICA, INC 36



F L

s

DBT

Recent High Credlt

Balance

Current

QOCT13 83% 7 0 $112.700 100%
SEM3 83% 5 0 $117,300 100%
Quarterly Payment Trends
Payment History - Quarterly Averages Da?gc;euyrzlﬁit?:fms
Quarter Manths DBT Balance Cur 4-30  31-60 61-30 91+
Ql-14 JAN-MAR 3 $96,100 3% % 2% 1% 1%
Q4-13 OCT - DEC 0 $109,900 99% 1%
Q3-13 JUL - SEP 0 $74,500 99% 1%
Q2-13 APR - JUN 0 $56,600 98% 2%
Q1-13 JAN - MAR 1 $64.100 96% 3% 1%

31 -60

Trade Line Type Lmes Reported 61 -90

Continuous 8 7 $134.600 97,100  90% % 2% 3% 8%

New 0 $0

Combined Trade 8 7 $134,600 $07,100  90% 2% 2% 3% 3%

Additicnal 8 $118.600 $106,000  77% 23%

Total Trade 16 $254,200 $203,100  B5% 13% 1% 1%
o - - o - N TP °

Account Status

Paymom Experlences

(Trade Lines with an (%) after the date are newly reported) Days Bayond Terms
g;fe'gz‘:‘;' _E;;mq o ‘;a‘z:- LT plvy High Baance Cur 130 3160 6190 S+ Comments
AIR TRANS 12014 01/2014 OTHER $600 $500 100%
BUS SERVCS  03/2014 NET 36 $500 $400 100%
FACTOR 0242014 02/2014  VARIED $5200 $1.700 100%
FINCL SVCS 01/2014 CONTRCT $14,700 $13,800 98% 2%
FINCL SVCS 0172014 CONTRCT $46.400 $46,400 100%
OFFC EQUIP 03/2014 08/2013 REVOLVE $1.200 $0
PACKAGING 022014 112011 NET 30 $0 CUST 3 YR
SERVICES 04i2014 09/2013 NET 30 $66,000 $34.300 72% % 5% 9% 9% CUST14 YR

Tor @

%&ﬁﬁﬂ!ﬂﬁmﬂ QS!&L 3l ..e-,-_,-w.‘ab

Paymont Experiences Account Status
(Trade Lines with an (*)-after the date are newly reportad) Days Beyond Terms

EL‘Z,';ES,; - gz:fo I .'::3’;“;"' Sﬁ;j{:‘ High  galance Cur 130 3160 6190 91+  Comments
CHEMICALS 10/2013 09/2013 NET 30 $91.300 $91,300 73% 27%
COMMUNICTN 1072013 VARIED $8,900 <$100 100%
DP EQUIP 0472012 1142003 NET 30 $0
FINCLSVCS  08/2013  01/2008 NET $2,000  $300 100% SHARGE
FRGHT FWRD  08/2011 OTHER <$100 <$100 100%
LEASING 0312014 CONTRCT $17,200 $14.200 100%
LEASING 0372014 NET 10 $100 50
SAFTY PROD 07/2012 NET30 50 CUST 4 YR

) S = - S Iv‘Pé

46
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Tax Llens

File Date Filing Type Status Amount
011242013  State Tax Lien  Released  $6,137 ED322B6181W0036 ALBANY COUNTY CILERK
Filed by:; STATE OF NEW YORK

Filing Number Jurisdiction

11/06/2012  State TexLisn  Filed $6,137 E032286181W0036 ALBANY COUNTY CLERK
Filed by: STATE OF NEW YORK

1012142011 State Tax Lien Filed $859 52301050 MADISON COUNTY CIRCUIT
Filed by: STATE OF MISSISSIPP!

01/11/2011  State Tax Lien  Released  $5,421 ER49226873A5421 NASSAU COUNTY REG
Filed by: STATE OF NEW YORK

09/02/2010  State Tax Lien Filed §1,230 24110008740 BALTIMORE CITY COUNTY 8TH JUDIGIAL CIRCLS
Filed hy: STATE OF MARYLAND

C8/25/2010  Slate Taxlien  Filed $5.241 201008251675 NASSAU COUNTY REG
Filed by: STATE OF NEW YORK

080142010 State Tax Lien  Filed $4,586 13016 KENNEBEGC REGISTRY
Filed by: STATE OF MAINE

10114£2009  Staie Tax Lien Filed $213,247  X0926800 ALBANY COUNTY CLERK

Filed by: STATE OF NEW YORK

UCC Filing Summary

Date Range Year Ezuctiso'r)ary lﬁ;‘: $§:$§2€i(’m Continuous ﬁ'::lg:: f
JAN - PRESENT 2014

JuL - DEC 2013

JAN - JUN 2013

JUL - DEC 2012 1 1

JAN - JUN 2012

PRIOR TO JAN 2012

Total 1 ) 0 0 0

*- Cautionary UCC Filings include one or niore of the following collaterel:
Accounts, Accounts Receivables, Conlract Rights, Hereafier Acquited Property, Inventory, Leases. Noles Receivable or Proceeds.

UCC Detalls

WCC FILED Date: 08/02/2012

Filing Number: 2012 2984377

Jurisdiclion: SEC OF STATE DE

Secured Party: OCE FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. 1L CHICAGO 60656 5450 NORTH CUM
Collateral: EQUIP, AFTER ACQUIRED PROP, UNDEFINED

Acdditiona

Corporate Registration

THE FOLL OWING INFORMATION WAS PROVIDED BY THE STATE OF DELAWARE.
State of Origin: NE

Date of Incorporation: 12/15/2008

Current Status: Active - IN GOOD STANDING

Business Type: Profit

Charter Number: 0857664

Agent: CAPITOL CORPORATE SERVICES INC.

Agent Address: 330 ROBERTS ST STE 203 EAST HARTFORD, CT

Premie: Profiie - GDF SUEZ ENERGY NORTH AMERICA, INC B



| e [ AN aal-eia i
Business Name Location S

Ultimate Parent of the inquired upon business and the top entity within the corporate family:
GDF SUEZ SA PARIS 000146143

Immediate Parent of the inquired upon business:
GDF SUEZ ENERGY INTERNATIONAL BRUSSELS 000131001

Subsidiaries of the inquired upon business:*

ASTORIA ENERGY LLG 1710 STEINWAY ST - ASTORIANY 708440896

F SUEZ ENERGY GENERATIO IN 1990 POST OAK BLVD STE 1900 - HOUSTON.TX 784785610
GDF._SUEZ ENERGY MARKETING NORTH AMERICA, INC 1990 POST OAK BLYD STE 1800 - HOUSTON,TX 786404194
GDE SUEZ ENERGY RESOURCES NA 1980 POST OAK BLVD STE 1900 - HOUSTON,TX 786666414
GDF SUEZ GAS NALLC 1920 POST OAK BLYD STE 1900 - HOUSTON,TX 791155034
SUEZ ENERGIA DE MEXICO 1990 POST OAK BLVD STE 1900 - HOUSTON,TX 872164062
GOF SUEZ RETAIL ENERGY SOLUTIONS, LLC 1990 POST OAK BLYD STE 1900 - HOUSTON,TX 982555747
GDF SUEZ PLAINFIELD RENEWABLE CO, LLC 1990 POST OAK BLVD STE 1990 - HOUSTON,TX 982555748
GDF SUEZNAE&P.ILC 1990 POST OAK BLVD - HOUSTON,TX 982555749
GDF SUEZ E&P HOLDING US CORP 1990 POST QAK BLVD STE 1900 - HOUSTON,TX 982555827

Branches of the inquired upon business:

GDF SUEZ ENERGY NORTH AMERICA, INC 918 CONGRESS AVE STE 1450 - AUSTIN,TX 935700672
GDF SUEZ ENERGY NORTH AMERICA, INC 12085 NORTH FWY - HOUSTON.TX 94534686G

DF SUEZ ENERGY NORTH AMERICA. INC 1990 PQST QAK BLVD STE 18900 - HOUSTON. TX 954351280
GDF SUEZ ENERGY NORTHH AMERICA, INC 99 MILLERS FALLS RD - NORTHFIELD,MA 955674122
GDF SUEZ ENERGY NORTH AMERICA, INC 200 GLASTONBURY BLVD - GLASTONBURY.CT 964789915
GDF SUEZ ENERGY NORTH AMERICA, INC 4601 BROOKHOLLOW DR - MIDLOTHIAN.TX 973279780
GDF SUEZ ENERGY NORTH AMERICA. INC 4001 W ENNIS AVE - ENNIS, TX 975629910

* The inquired upon business has more than 10 subsidiaries.

Summary of Inquiries

g =iness APR14 MAR14 FEB14 JAN14 DEC13 NOV13 0cT13 SEP43 AUGA3
Category .

GENERAL 1

LEGAL SVCS 1

Totals 1 1

Experian prides itself on the depth and accuracy of the data maintained on our databases. Reporting your custoiner’s
payment behavior to Experian will further strengthen and enhance the power of the information available for making sound
credit decisions. Give credit where credit is due. Calf 1-800-520-1221, option #4 for more information.

End of report 1 of 1 report

The information herein is furnished in confidence for your exclusive use for legitimate business purposes and shalf not be reproduced. Neither Experian
information Solutions, Inc., nor their sources or distributors wairant such information nor shall they he fiable for your use or reliance upon il

@ Experian 2014 Al rights reserved Privacy policy.
Expenan and the Experian niarks helein are service marks or registered iradernarks of Experian
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DOCKET 04-1015-EL-CRS

Exhibit C-8 “Bankruptcy Information,” provide a list and description of any reorganizations, protection from
creditors or any other form of bankruptcy filings made by the applicant, a parent or affiliate organization that
guarantees the obligations of the applicant or any officer of the applicant in the current year or within the two most
recent years preceding the application.

None.



DOCKET 04-1015-EL-CRS

Exhibit C-9 “Merger Information,” provide a statement describing any dissolution or merger or acquisition of the
applicant within the five most recent years preceding the application.

None.



DOCKET 04-1015-EL-CRS

Exhibit D-1 “Operations” provide a written description of the operational nature of the applicant’s business. Please
include whether the applicant's operations include the generation of power for retail sales, the scheduling of retail
power for transmission and delivery, the provision of retail ancillary services as well as other services used to arrange
for the purchase and delivery of electricity to retail customers.

GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc. (“GSERNA”") operations include the scheduling of power for transmission and
delivery and the provision of retail ancillary services as well as other services used to arrange for the purchase and
delivery of electricity to retail customers. GSERNA provides risk-managed retail electricity to commercial and
industrial customers, with products and services that offer budget certainty, reduce energy expenditures, and set new
standards in electricity supply. In-house expertise and market-based knowledge helps control costs and manage risks
and volatility through a variety of energy products. GSERNA's sources of supply include power generation facilities,
which are owned and operated internally by GDF Suez Energy Generation NA, Inc., and power purchase agreements
with power generation and wholesale partners around the United States. GSERNA manages the supply and
procurement of electricity through its power generation units, gas distribution and storage facilities, and more than
100 power purchase agreements with power generation and wholesale partners around the United States. GSERNA
schedules and causes the delivery of electricity through agreements with Independent System Operators (ISO) and
relationships with regulated transmission and distribution companies. The origination, supply, and delivery of power is
handled by GSERNA’s 24/7 operation facilities across the United States. GSERNA has invested significant
resources to ensure that all customers receive on-time switching, timely and accurate billing, and immediate
response to customer care issues. Our Customer Service and Support organization is designed to provide dedicated
professionals to handle all aspects of energy supply, delivery, and risk management. GSERNA publically guarantees
an on-time enrollment. GSERNA is recognized a leader in quick problem resolution, execution on price quotes, and
on-time billing. GSERNA will respond to all customer inquires and/or complaints in accordance with the Commission
rules adopted pursuant to Section 4928.10 of the Revised Code. GSERNA has also instituted quality control and
quality assurance practices to ensure our people, processes, vendors and systems operate at this highly level of
quality.



DOCKET 04-1015-EL-CRS

Exhibit D-2 “Operations Expertise,” given the operational nature of the applicant's business, provide evidence of
the applicant’s experience and technical expertise in performing such operations.

GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc., GSERNA, is the one of the largest and one of the fastest growing C&l retail
electricity suppliers in the United States, with more than 50,000 commercial and industrial accounts in Connecticut,
Delaware, lilinois, Maryland, Massachusetts, Maine, New Jersey, New York, Pennsylvania, Washington D.C. and
Texas. Its success is based on the ability to provide innovative products and services that help customers control
costs and minimize risk. Based in Houston, GDF SUEZ Energy North America, Inc. is a business unit of GDF SUEZ
Energy International and is responsible for managing GDF SUEZ's positions within the energy value chain in the
U.S., Mexico, and Canada, including electricity generation and cogeneration, natural gas and LNG, asset-based
trading and origination, and energy sales and related services. GSERNA serves customer accounts representing
almost $2 billion in contract value and to more than 25,000 meters. GSERNA's financial strength sets it apart. As part
of GDF SUEZ, GSERNA is backed by the resources of one of the world's top 10 power producers with annual
revenues exceeding $110 billion. Our company leadership team comprises some of the best talent in retail energy,
with extensive experience from many of the top companies in the industry Additionally, GSERNA maintains a
centralized, scalable back office to enable competitive pricing.

GSERNA currently serves commercial and industrial customers in the following the following states: Connecticut,
Delaware, District of Columbia, lllinois, Main, Maryland, Massachusetts, New Jersey, New York, Pennsylvania, and
Texas. Affiliates of GSERNA have FERC authorization to market wholesale electric power. GSERNA’s sources of
supply include power generation facilities, which are owned and operated internally by GDF Suez Energy Generation
NA, Inc., and power purchase agreements with power generation and wholesale partners around the United States.
GSERNA's sources of supply also include physical bilateral purchases both from GDF SUEZ Energy Marketing NA,
Inc. (GSEMNA) and other third party suppliers. SERNA manages the supply and procurement of electricity through its
power generation units, gas distribution and storage facilities, and more than 100 power purchase agreements with
power generation and wholesale partners around the United States. GSERNA schedules and causes the delivery of
electricity through agreements with Independent System Operators (ISO) and relationships with regulated
transmission and distribution companies. GSERNA has received high marks in customer satisfaction, as evidenced
by independent surveys placing SERNA in the top-tier of all energy providers. Additionally, GSERNA enjoys industry
leading receivables performance. GSERNA has also instituted quality control and quality assurance practices to
ensure our people, processes, vendors and systems operate at this highly level of quality.



DOCKET 04-1015-EL-CRS

Exhibit D-3 “Key Technical Personnel,” provide the names, titles, e- mail addresses, telephone numbers, and the
background of key personnel involved in the operational aspects of the applicant's business.

SAM HENRY - President & CEO

1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900

Houston, TX 77056

T: 713-636-0000

F: 713-636-1601

Email: sam.henry@gdfsuezna.com

Sam Henry is the President and CEO of GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc. (GSERNA), one of the nation’s
leading energy providers serving commercial and industrial customers and a subsidiary of IPR-GDF Suez North
America, Inc. (IPR-GSNA), a member of the internal energy groups International Power and GDF Suez, active in the
development, acquisition, and operation of electricity and cogeneration facilities, the marketing and sales of products
and services, and the import and distribution of natural gas and LNG. Prior to joining GSERNA, from 2004 to 2012,
Mr. Henry was the President and CEO of IPR-GDF Suez Energy Marketing, Inc., the trading and portfolio
management operating group of IPR-GSNA. His responsibilities included all commercial activities surrounding power
generation plants and the hedging of commaodity price risks for the company in North America. In Mr. Henry's three
decades in the energy industry, he has focused on asset and risk management. Prior to joining the IPR-GSNA group,
Mr. Henry was Vice President of Risk Management at Edison Mission Energy, a company with 25,000 MW of
generation in the United States, United Kingdom and Australia. Mr. Henry also served as Vice President of Trading
and Risk management for Conoco’s natural gas and gas liquids division, as well as its affiliated power marketer,
Dupont Power Marketing. Mr. Henry also held positions at Chevron in the crude oil, gas liquids, and natural gas
marketing sectors in Texas and New York. Mr. Henry is a member of the Global Association of Risk Professional and
has been a member of the New York Mercantile Exchange advisory committee on propane, natural gas, and
electricity trading. He also serves on the Advisory Board of the University of Houston Global Energy Management
Institute.

RAY CUNNINGHAM - Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900

Houston, TX 77056

T: 713-636-0000

F: 713-636-1601

Email: ray.cunningham@gdfsuezna.com

Mr. Cunningham joined the retail business unit of GDF SUEZ in October 2012 as its Vice President & Assistant
General Counsel where he is responsible for government affairs, regulatory compliance, corporate transactions,
litigation, risk management, and all legal matters impacting the retail business. Mr. Cunningham has over 25 years of
experience in the energy industry and was most recently Vice President & Assistant General Counsel of the
wholesale gas and power business unit of GDF SUEZ. Mr. Cunningham is a graduate of Texas Tech University and
South Texas College of Law.

JOHN HENDERSON — Vice President, Retail Strateqy
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900

Houston, TX 77056

T: 713-636-0000

F: 713-636-1601

Email: john.henderson@gdfsuezna.com

Mr. Henderson jointed the Retail group in October 2012 to focus on strategies for extending the company’s
commercial and industrial capabilities to the B2C market. Previously, Mr. Henderson served as Vice President,
Central Portfolio Management focusing on compliance with the new Dodd-Frank financial reform regulations and
hedging strategy and optimization of GDF SUEZ North America electricity, LNG and retail portfolio. Mr. Henderson
joined GDF SUEZ in 2002 and has served in a broad ranges of commercial and operational executive roles including
retail marketing and operations, COO of Mexico regulated gas distribution and co-generation, North America
merchant generation management, and portfolio risk management. Prior to joining GDF SUEZ, Mr. Henderson held
energy-related executive positions at The New Power Company, a joint venture between Enron, AOL, GE and IBM to
serve residential customers, and Enron in North America and the United Kingdom. Mr. Henderson began his career
working in New York in investment banking prior to moving to Houston and focusing on energy. Mr. Henderson holds
a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering and also Economics from Rice University (with highest
distinction) and an MBA degree from The Standard Graduate School of Business. Mr. Henderson is a member of the
Global Association of Risk Professionals and is actively involved in advancing competitive policy through numerous
gas, electric and retail industry associations.
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VIKRAM KULKARNI -Vice President, Supply

1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900

Houston, TX 77056

T: 713-636-0000

F: 713-636-1601

Email: vikram.kulkarni@gdfsuezna.com

Mr. Kulkarni joined the company in June 2003 and is responsible for a number of critical operational aspects including
load analysis, forecasting, order fulfillment and information technology. Mr. Kulkarni has more than 10 years of
experience in the retail energy space within operations, structuring and risk management functions. He was
previously with TXU Energy and an associate with Enron Energy Services. Mr. Kulkarni's staff manages the retail
business unit's project management, load analytics, data analysis, business services, and customer service. Mr.
Kulkarni holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Economics from the University of Wisconsin — Madison, and a Master
of Science degree in Finance from Boston College.

DOUGLAS STEIN — Vice President & Controller, Business Control

1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900

Houston, TX 77056

T: 713-636-0000

F: 713-636-1601

Email: douglas.stein@gdfsuezna.com

Mr. Stein is responsible for the financial functions, including accounting, performance reporting, planning, settlements
and credit. In addition, he heads up the customer billing and account management functions. Mr. Stein began his
career working with PricewaterhouseCoopers before joining GDF SUEZ. Prior to GSERNA, Mr. Stein was a Director
for GDF SUEZ Generation NA LLC. He is a certified public accountant and holds a Bachelor in Business
Administration and Masters in Accounting from Trinity University.

J.D. BURROWS - Vice President, Marketing
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900

Houston, TX 77056

T: 713-636-0000

F: 713-636-1601

Email; jd.burrows@gdfsuezna.com

Mr. Burrows rejoined the retail business unit of GDF SUEZ in April 2013 as its Vice President of Marketing where he
is responsible for lead generation, brand positioning, market analytics and pricing strategies. Prior to rejoining the
retail business unit, Mr. Burrows worked as the Vice President of Origination & Procurement for GDF SUEZ Energy
Marketing NA, Inc. where he was responsible for wholesale origination of structured energy products; mid-marketing
of energy, capacity, RECs; and procurement of natural gas, fuel oil, coal, transportation and rail capacity; and prior to
that he was the Vice President of Strategy & Marketing for GDF SUEZ Energy North America Inc. Before joining
GDF SUEZ, Mr. Burrows held positions with Enron in structuring and risk management, and with Dynegy in Northeast
market development. He started his career in energy with the Public Utility Commission of Texas, where he served
as a witness and staff expert on rate design and fuel factors. Mr. Burrows earned a Bachelor of Science in
economics from the University of Texas and a Master of Science in economics from Texas A&M University.
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Exhibit D-4 “FERC Power Marketer License Number,” provide a statement disclosing the applicant's FERC Power
Marketer License number. (Power Marketers only)

Not applicable.
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